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BLVD Centers Corporation (“BLVD”) is considering expanding its product offering to include 
products in the cannabis space in the United States in some capacity that is yet to be determined. 
In the event that BLVD enters into the cannabis industry, it may derive, indirectly and/or directly, a 
substantial portion of its revenues from the cannabis industry in certain states of the United 
States, which industry is illegal under United States federal law. The cultivation, sale and use of 
cannabis is illegal under United States federal law pursuant to the United States Controlled 
Substance Act of 1970 (the “CSA”). Under the CSA, the policies and regulations of the United 
States federal government and its agencies are that cannabis has no medical benefit and a range 
of activities including cultivation and the personal use of cannabis is prohibited. The Supremacy 
Clause of the United States Constitution establishes that the United States Constitution and 
federal laws made pursuant to it are paramount and in case of conflict between federal and state 
law, the federal law shall apply. Despite the current state of the federal law and the CSA, the states 
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of California, Nevada, Massachusetts, Maine, Washington, Oregon, Colorado, Vermont and 
Alaska, and the District of Columbia, have legalized recreational use of cannabis. In early 2018, 
Vermont became the first state to legalize recreational cannabis by passage in a state legislature, 
but does not allow commercial sales of recreational cannabis. Although the District of Columbia 
voters passed a ballot initiative in November 2014, no commercial recreational operations exist 
because of a prohibition on using funds for regulation within a federal appropriations amendment 
to local District spending powers. 

In addition, over half of the states of the United States have enacted legislation to legalize and 
regulate the sale and use of medical cannabis, while other states have legalized and regulate the 
sale and use of medical cannabis with strict limits on the levels of THC (tetrahydrocannabinol). 

BLVD is weighing the risks of entry into this industry with the opportunities presented as a result 
of the changing regulatory environment governing the cannabis industry in the United States and 
Canada. There are a number of significant risks associated with entry into the cannabis industry. 
Unless and until the United States Congress amends the CSA with respect to medical and/or 
adult-use cannabis (and as to the timing or scope of any such potential amendments there can be 
no assurance), there is a risk that federal authorities may enforce current federal law, which would 
deem any business (including the business of BLVD, if it enters into this space) involving 
producing, cultivating, extracting or dispensing cannabis in violation of federal law in the United 
States.  

BLVD’s activities or investments in the United States cannabis market, if undertaken or pursued, 
may subject BLVD to heightened scrutiny by regulators, stock exchanges, clearing agencies and 
other Canadian authorities. There are a number of risks associated with this. See section entitled 
“Risk Factors”, including “Risks Associated with Entering the United States Cannabis Industry”. 
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INTRODUCTION 

This listing statement (“Listing Statement”) is furnished in connection with the proposed listing of 
common shares of BLVD Centers Corporation on the Canadian Securities Exchange. 

1. ABOUT THIS LISTING STATEMENT 

1.1 Glossary of Terms 

The following is a glossary of certain terms used in this Listing Statement. Words below importing the 
singular, where the context requires, include the plural and vice versa, and words importing any gender 
include all genders.  

“affiliate” has the meaning set forth in the Securities Act; 

“Amalgamation” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 2.2; 

“BCBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia), as amended, including the 
regulations promulgated thereunder;

“CSE” means the Canadian Securities Exchange; 

“BLVD Option” means an incentive stock option to purchase a BLVD Share; 

“BLVD Shares” means the common shares in the capital of BLVD; 

“BLVD Shareholders” means holders of BLVD Shares at the applicable time; 

“BLVD Option Plan” means the stock option plan of BLVD, as constituted as of the date hereof;  

“Board” means the board of directors of BLVD, as may be constituted from time to time; 

“FDA” means the United States Food and Drug Administration; 

“IOP” means intensive outpatient; 

“Issuer” or “BLVD” refers to BLVD Centers Corporation, a corporation incorporated under the BCBCA; 

“NI 51-102” means National Instrument 51-102 - Continuous Disclosure Obligations;  

“NI 58-101” means National Instrument 58-101 - Corporate Governance Practices; 

“person” includes any individual, a sole proprietorship, firm, partnership, joint venture, venture capital 
fund, limited liability company, unlimited liability company, association, trust, trustee, executor, 
administrator, legal personal representative, estate, group, body corporate, corporation, unincorporated 
association or organization, union, Governmental Authority, syndicate or other entity, whether or not 
having legal status; 

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act (British Columbia) and the rules, regulations and policies made 
thereunder, as now in effect and as they may be amended from time to time; 

“Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act (Canada), R.S.C. 1985, c.1 (5th Supp.), including the regulations 
promulgated thereunder, as amended; 
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“TSXV” means the TSX Venture Exchange; 

“United States” means the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any State of the 
United States and the District of Columbia; and 

“Valiant” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 2.2. 

1.2 Information Concerning Forward-Looking Statements 

Except for statements of historical fact contained herein, the information presented in this Listing 
Statement constitutes forward-looking statements or information (collectively “forward-looking 
statements”) within the meaning of Canadian securities legislation. 

Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements with respect to activities, events or 
developments that BLVD expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future, including management’s 
assessment of future plans and operations and statements with respect to the business plan of BLVD. In 
certain cases, forward-looking statements can be identified by terminology such as “may”, “will”, “expect”, 
“plan”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “intend”, “estimate”, “predict”, “forecast”, “outlook”, “potential”, “continue”, 
“should”, “likely”, or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. Forward-looking 
statements include, among others, statements with respect to: market competition; consumer behaviour; 
the Issuer’s expectations regarding the timing for availability of the Issuer’s products and acceptance of 
its products by the market; the Issuer’s strategy to develop new products and services, and to enhance 
the capabilities of existing products and services; the Issuer’s dependence on attracting greater share of 
the market; the Issuer’s plans to market, sell and distribute its products; and the Issuer’s plans to retain 
and recruit personnel. 

Although management believes that the anticipated future results, performance or achievements 
expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements are based upon reasonable assumptions and 
expectations, the reader should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements and information 
because they involve assumptions, known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may 
cause the actual results, performance or achievements of BLVD to differ materially from anticipated future 
results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. These 
factors include, without limitation: changes in law; the ability to implement business strategies and pursue 
business opportunities; the state of the capital markets; the availability of funds and resources to pursue 
operations; decline of reimbursement rates; dependence on few payors; possible new drug discoveries; a 
novel business model; dependence on key suppliers; granting of permits and licenses in a highly 
regulated business; competition; changes in healthcare regulations or insurance coverage, particularly 
those relating to mental health or younger citizens; difficulty integrating newly acquired businesses; the 
time, outcome and cost of any inquiries, audits or litigation with insurance providers, or federal, state or 
local regulators; low profit market segments; fluctuations in exchange rates; general economic, market 
and business conditions, other risks factors including those found in this Listing Statement under Section 
17 “Risk Factors” and in the documents incorporated by reference herein, as well as those risk factors 
discussed or referred to in the Issuer's disclosure documents filed with the securities regulatory 
authorities in certain provinces of Canada and available at www.sedar.com. Should any factor affect the 
Issuer in an unexpected manner, or should assumptions underlying the forward looking information prove 
incorrect, the actual results or events may differ materially from the results or events predicted. Any such 
forward-looking information is expressly qualified in its entirety by this cautionary statement. Moreover, 
the Issuer does not assume responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of such forward-looking 
information. 

Forward-looking statements are made based on management’s beliefs, estimates and opinions on the 
date the forward-looking statements are made and BLVD undertakes no obligation to update any forward-
looking statement if these beliefs, estimates and opinions or other circumstances should change, except 
as may be required by applicable law. 
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1.3 Market and Industry Data 

This Listing Statement includes market and industry data relevant to the Issuer’s business that has been 
obtained from third party sources, including industry publications. The Issuer believes that the industry 
data is accurate and that its estimates and assumptions are reasonable, but there is no assurance as to 
the accuracy or completeness of this data. Third party sources generally state that the information 
contained therein has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but there is no assurance as to 
the accuracy or completeness of included information. Although the data is believed to be reliable, the 
Issuer has not independently verified any of the data from third party sources referred to in this Listing 
Statement or ascertained the underlying economic assumptions relied upon by such sources. 

1.4 Currency 

In this Listing Statement, unless otherwise indicated, all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian 
dollars and references to $ are to Canadian dollars. 

2. CORPORATE STRUCTURE 

2.1 Corporate Name of the Issuer, Head and Registered Office 

The full corporate name of the Issuer is BLVD Centers Corporation.  

BLVD has its registered office at 5626 Larch Street, Suite 202, Vancouver, British Columbia V6M 4E1 
and head office located at 800 W. 6th St., Suite 1415, Los Angeles, California 90017. 

2.2 Jurisdiction of Incorporation 

BLVD was incorporated on June 7, 2013 pursuant to the BCBCA under the name “Convalo Health 
International, Corp.” Pursuant to an amalgamation (the “Amalgamation”) completed in accordance with 
an amalgamation agreement dated February 24, 2014 between Valiant Minerals Inc. (“Valiant”), 0986282 
B.C. Ltd. and the Issuer, the BLVD Shares were listed and posted for trading on the TSXV under the 
ticker symbol “CXV”. On June 9, 2017, “Convalo Health International, Corp.” changed its name to “BLVD 
Centers Corporation”. BLVD is a reporting issuer in the provinces of British Columbia and Alberta. 

2.3 Intercorporate Relationships 

The following chart illustrates BLVD’s corporate structure, including details of the jurisdiction of formation 
of each subsidiary. 
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2.4 Fundamental Change 

This section is not applicable to the Issuer. 

2.5 Non-corporate Issuers and Issuers incorporated outside of Canada  

This section is not applicable as BLVD is not a non-corporate issuer nor an issuer incorporated outside of 
Canada.  

3. GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS 

3.1 General Development of the Issuer’s Business  

BLVD operates in the United States inpatient (detox and residential) and outpatient rehabilitation market 
and serves clients with addictive and co-occurring disorders. In addition, BLVD offers a line of marijuana 
lifestyle management supplements. The following is a summary of the general development of BLVD’s 
business over its three most recently completed financial years to present.  

March 1, 2018 to Present 

While BLVD continues to focus on its traditional services it is exploring the possibility of expanding its 
addition treatment services and product offering in the marijuana space in some capacity to be 
determined. BLVD views marijuana as an alternative treatment to Opioid use. 

On April 10, 2018, BLVD announced its WeedAide™ line of marijuana lifestyle management products, a 
line of vegetable-based supplements powered by vitamins, caffeine, L-Theanine and other health-focused 
sources of resistance. The supplements are designed around helping to reduce the side effects and 
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cravings associated with recreational marijuana use. The formulas for these products do not require 
United States FDA approval and can be sold to the public upon launch. 

Year ended February 28, 2018 

On January 30, 2018, the Issuer announced its plans to target a larger treatment strategy for daily 
marijuana users that do not have addiction to other drugs. As part of this strategy, BLVD is identifying 
marijuana strains that may have reduced side effects, and plans an added revenue line to monetize these 
strains. 

On October 31, 2017, BLVD announced the launch of a new location, consisting of an executed licensing 
agreement with a partner for up to eighteen beds with discussions for an additional thirty seat outpatient 
center. BLVD also secured a partner for a potential additional location.  

On October 10, 2017, BLVD completed the expansion of its inland Los Angeles Pod, which includes a 
new IOP center with capacity for up to 35 patients for daily treatment, as well as the acquisition of real 
estate occupied by the residential centers. BLVD purchased two large homes with several acres of land 
that it was previously leasing. This residential center acquisition was timed to coincide with the completion 
of the new IOP center, which is located in close proximity to BLVD’s existing twelve bed residential 
center. Previously, residential patients were referred out to other IOP centers not owned by BLVD. With 
the completion of the IOP center, once fully ramped, all appropriate residential patients will be able to 
transition to the new IOP and the revenue can be retained by BLVD rather than lost to its competitors. 
The purchase price of the combined residential centers was approximately $3.5 million for the two large 
complexes. The Issuer leveraged approximately $2 million of the purchase price with a real estate loan 
bearing 9% interest. In addition, the Board issued an additional 2,300,000 BLVD Options to parties at 
BLVD that are key to the success of the new business model. All options have a strike price of $0.11, vest 
1/3 each in September 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively, and have a 10-year exercise provision. 

On June 9, 2017, the Issuer changed its name from “Convalo Health International, Corp.” to “BLVD 
Centers Corporation”. 

On May 23, 2017, BLVD announced that it executed a management services agreement with an 
experienced operating partner to operate the Issuer’s 18-bed detox and residential center located in 
Hollywood, California.  

In March 2017, BLVD shifted to a strategy where it decentralized major operations, including sales and 
marketing. All facility management and staffing decisions, including sales and marketing, reside with the 
local leadership at each individual center through a management services agreement. This new model 
has allowed BLVD to reduce costs while simultaneously increasing revenue.  

The Board and management has adopted this new model to take advantage of BLVD competitive 
advantages, while reducing costs and shrinking implementation periods. BLVD shifted the clinical and 
operational staff management and hiring at each individual center, as well as the majority of the sales and 
marketing responsibilities of the clinics, to the local general managers and outreach leaders through an 
MSA, enabling these leaders to make cost decisions independently. The model allows local operators to 
keep some of the annual cash flow generated from their operations and aligns incentives between 
shareholders and operators. 

These leaders have been established at the current seven sites, in some cases for as long as two years. 
Because of the previous “centralized” management model, they were restricted from hiring local staff and 
managing the center as a “stand alone” or decentralized model. Further, they did not have an incentive to 
use local marketing techniques, which are often a fraction of the cost of national advertising. The previous 
management team attempted to centralize all aspects of the centers, from staffing and back office to 



BLVD Centers Corporation  CSE Form 2A - Listing Statement 

June 20, 2018 

Page 10 

CAN: 27439776.9

sales and marketing, resulting in a tremendous amount of time, energy and money with no real revenue 
growth. 

Under the new model, BLVD will continue to own or lease the current facilities (depending on the market) 
and provide branding support, facilities (real estate, furniture, fixtures and equipment) management and 
upkeep, call center services, clinical protocols, and documentation support to all existing centers. BLVD 
will continue to maintain control of these facilities in the event a change in local management is someday 
needed. For new facilities, BLVD will have the flexibility to decide whether to own or lease, and 
management will focus upon speed to profitability and return on equity in deciding upon the proper 
structure. BLVD has shifted corporate ownership costs to the local operational and outreach leaders, 
incentivizing them like partners instead of employees. 

Year ended February 28, 2017 

On December 12, 2016, BLVD announced that its facilities were open and operating, with all facilities 
expected to be fully built-out by the end of the fourth quarter of the financial year ended February 28, 
2017, taking total capacity to above 330 beds and seats for 2017, as compared to about 150, as an 
average over the previous year.  

During the third quarter of the financial year ended February 28, 2017, BLVD finished the build-out of five 
BLVD branded facilities, with an investment in facilities and expenses of over $5 million. 

On May 26, 2016, BLVD announced it expanded its services to include mental health dual diagnosis 
treatment across its facilities, and planned to develop a series of adolescent residential treatment and 
educations centers. 

On May 2, 2016, BLVD launched a national advanced technology quantitative urine analysis laboratory 
based out of Scottsdale, Arizona. This laboratory operation provides an opportunity to capture this 
additional per patient revenue not previously available to BLVD as a regional company. Prior to this, 
BLVD utilized third party laboratories to process the quantitative analyses on urine specimens and 
therefore did not capture the revenue associated with the tests. The advanced toxicology laboratory will 
have the technical capacity to perform all drug panel screens that could be requested by the clinical team. 
The investment in this laboratory cost about $1 million both in capital expenditures and expenses. The 
laboratory has capacity for up to 20 BLVD pods or more than 6,000 tests per month. The laboratory will 
improve revenues through directly billing payors for testing and reduced costs in collecting samples 
centrally. Further, as the number of patients at BLVD grows, the revenues and cost savings is expected 
increase. 

On April 20, 2016, BLVD announced that it had secured its first IOP behavioral health and addiction 
recover center outside of California, in Portland, Oregon. The center accommodates more than 60 
patients and is BLVD’s largest IOP facility to date. 

Year ended February 29, 2016 

In April 2015, BLVD closed a $17,250,000 financing. As part of this financing, BLVD issued 43,125,000 
warrants. On September 30, 2015, BLVD announced the expiry of those warrants had been accelerated 
to November 11, 2015 pursuant to the terms of the warrant certificate. During the time between the 
announced acceleration of expiry and the date the warrants expired, the warrants remained out of the 
money. Shareholders held paper subject to a trading hold, and were not able to take advantage of the 
warrant. The Board has determined the warrant holders deserve an opportunity for an extension of these 
warrants, which will make BLVD more valuable by financing horizontal integration, such as development 
of the adolescent centers. On June 24, 2016, at a special meeting of warrant holders, warrantholders 
voted in favour of approving certain amendments to the warrants, as more particularly described in the 
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management information circular dated May 25, 2016 sent to warrantholders in connection with the 
meeting.  

During 2015, the Issuer finalized the acquisition of the company that led to the launch of the West Los 
Angeles outpatient center. Under the terms of the final agreement, the sellers agreed to forego any cash 
consideration in exchange for shares. The Issuer issued a total of 4,350,000 shares to the sellers. 

On February 11, 2015, BLVD completed the Amalgamation. The Amalgamation provided for the issuance 
of 5,900,000 BLVD Shares to the shareholders of Valiant in exchange for all of the shares of Valiant. As a 
result of the Amalgamation Valiant ceased to be a reporting issuer and BLVD became a reporting issuer. 

3.2 Acquisitions and Dispositions 

BLVD has not completed any significant acquisitions or significant dispositions and currently has no plans 
for any probable significant acquisitions or probable significant dispositions. 

3.3 Trends, Commitments, Events or Uncertainties 

As at the date hereof, there are no current trends, commitments, events or uncertainties presently known 
or reasonably expected by management of the Issuer that would be expected to have a material effect on 
BLVD’s business, financial condition or results of operations, other than as disclosed elsewhere in this 
Listing Statement. For a general discussion of potential trends, commitments, events, or uncertainties, 
please refer to the discussions set out in section 4 “Narrative Description of the Business”, section 6 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis”, and section 17 “Risk Factors”. Specifically, please refer to 
section 17.2 “Risks Associated with Entering the United States Cannabis Industry” for a discussion of the 
regulatory regime governing the cannabis industry in the United States and the uncertainties surrounding 
such regime.   

4. NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS 

4.1 General 

BLVD is in the addiction treatment business. Currently, BLVD provides the following products and/or 
services related to the addiction rehabilitation business:  

(a) detox and residential drug and alcohol treatment; 

(b) outpatient drug and alcohol treatment; and 

(c) the WeedAide product line which is designed to treat the consumption and side effects of 
marijuana drug use.  

4.2 Business Objectives 

BLVD will potentially look to expand its service offering by entering the marijuana market. Over the next 
12 months the Issuer will research, evaluate and potentially execute on initiatives that would add 
marijuana distribution, or some other aspect of the marijuana industry, to its service offering. As part of 
BLVD’s research and evaluation of such activities, it is anticipated that BLVD will obtain the necessary 
and applicable legal advice regarding compliance with applicable state regulatory frameworks in the 
United States and potential exposure and implications arising from United States federal law.  
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4.3 Significant Milestones and Events 

First, BLVD must perform its due diligence in regards to the marijuana industry. BLVD must assess the 
overall market, potential opportunities, risks, etc. before deciding whether to enter the market. If, after its 
due diligence, BLVD decides to enter the marijuana market it then will need to identify and evaluate 
opportunities.  

4.4 Total Funds Available 

The estimated consolidated working capital of the Issuer as at April 30, 2018 (unaudited) was $4,627,854. 
As at November 30, 2017, BLVD had net assets of approximately $16,501,000 and had sufficient funds to 
operate and maintain its business and achieve its business objectives and milestones.

4.5 Principal Products and Services  

Treatment Services 

BLVD provides intensive outpatient treatment services. Specifically, it is dedicated to the treatment of 
insurance-reimbursed and private pay clients in the United States, who suffer from alcohol abuse, drug 
abuse, process addiction and other addictions. BLVD works with each individual client to develop a 
schedule that promotes their recovery, which may include group therapy, case management, individual 
therapy, wellness and life skills mentoring, 12-Step integration, staff support, random drug and alcohol 
screenings and five-star amenities. 

BLVD offers programs designed as either (a) the second phase in a long-term comprehensive program; 
or (b) community fellowship and extra-support for individuals in need. The two programs are designed to 
serve individuals with drug and alcohol related problems, who are in need of a partial hospitalization 
program, an intensive outpatient program or an outpatient program in conjunction with outside recovery 
programs, such as 12-Step recovery and Self-Management and Recovery Training (“SMART”), in order to 
achieve and maintain sobriety. The SMART program emphasizes four main points for recovery: (i) 
building and maintaining motivation; (ii) coping with urges; (iii) managing thoughts, feelings and 
behaviors; and (iv) living a balanced life. The selected program is based on the social model of recovery. 
The length of the program can range from 30 days to six months or more, based on the individual client’s 
needs. Clients who participate in a program may have been previously stabilized through medical 
detoxification, or may have completed residential programs. Throughout the program, a client is given 
treatment plans involving program services, which may include: 

(a) individual counseling sessions one to two times weekly with licensed marriage and family 
therapists, California Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse counselors or registered 
addiction specialists; 

(b) follow-up with a contracted medical physician, as required; 

(c) follow-up with a contracted psychiatrist, one to two times weekly; 

(d) group therapy and counseling sessions, three to four times daily, including: relapse prevention, 
trauma therapy, anxiety/depression/mood disorders, emotional sobriety and regulation, process 
group, mindfulness/centering meditation, relationships and boundaries, art therapy/creative 
expressions, codependency, shame vs. guilt, psychoeducation in addictions, healthy sexuality, 
life skills, damage control in sobriety, family systems, morning mediation/daily reflections and 12-
Step writing group; 

(e) family therapy; 

(f) recreational activities; 

(g) spiritual exploration; 
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(h) 12-Step support and integration; and 

(i) physical exercise. 

The outpatient program consists of three group sessions and one other counseling and/or group activity 
Monday through Friday from 10:00am to 3:00pm. The outpatient program also offers an evening program 
Monday through Friday from 5:00pm to 9:00pm consisting of three group therapy sessions and one other 
counseling and/or group activity. As a supplement to the program, clients are encouraged to attend 
outside 12-Step meetings on a daily basis. 

Individual therapy sessions and one-on-one counseling is scheduled one to three times each week, as 
required. Family sessions are determined on an individual basis. 

Additional activities may be provided, as well as referrals to community agencies for help in addressing 
alcoholism and addiction and transitioning back into society. 

As part of BLVD’s overall business of treating drug and alcohol addiction, BLVD believes that the 
dispensing of marijuana may fit into BLVD’s business strategy. BLVD feels there is the potential to treat 
Opioid addiction with marijuana. 

Facility Operations

BLVD currently operates eight treatment centers in California. Six of the properties are leased and two 
are owned. 

BLVD also operates a laboratory in Phoenix, Arizona, which is located at a leased property.  

BLVD uses a third party billing company to provide billing and collection services to BLVD in addition to 
filing medical insurance claims with private commercial carriers. These services also include direct billing 
to the client, utilization review, benefit verification services and claims processing. 

On average, BVLD retains seven employees and consultants at any point in time. The employees work 
within the client and operations team and the sales and marketing team. The clinical and operations team 
includes the director of clinical operations, the director of admissions, the case manager, the lab director 
and individual therapists and group facilitators. The marketing and sales team includes a director of 
marketing and sales, a marketing assistant, a sales associate and a client relations specialist. 

Employees are trained and have certificates in the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability act of 
1996 (“HIPPA”) compliance and ethics. Many hold professional degrees in their fields of psychology, 
counseling, addiction specialization and clinical operation, as applicable. 

Pricing Policy

It is the policy of the program to determine a reasonable cost of each level of care to clients on an 
ongoing basis with input from the executive committee, the chief financial officer and the director of 
admission. BLVD’s pricing policy is consistent with the market pricing. During the course of the year, if a 
level of care is substantially changed in terms of its structure (such as lengthening the treatment 
experience or adding substantial components), a new fee may be set for that particular level of care. 
BLVD accepts all major insurances and expects to work with individuals to create options to cover costs 
that are not covered by insurance. Currently, the services are billed to insurance companies at the 
following levels: 

• US$1,000/day for outpatient program services; 

• US$1,700/day for intensive outpatient program services; 
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• US$2,550/day for partial hospitalization program services with insurance; 

• US$3,300/day for residential program services with insurance; 

• US$3,700/day for detox program services with insurance; and 

• negotiated prices for private clients. 

Market 

BLVD is located and operates in the States of California, Oregon and Arizona. 

WeedAide’s target market is marijuana users in the United States and Canada. While the product itself 
does not contain marijuana, it is designed to combat the adverse side effects of marijuana use. WeedAide 
will be sold online and potentially in marijuana dispensaries.  

Market Regulations 

The Mental Health Parity and Addiction Equity Act of 2008 (“MHPAEA”) was passed in 2008 and requires 
health insurance companies to cover payments for addiction treatment. Coverage for both mental and 
physical issues must be equal. Prior to the enactment of the MHPAEA, physical recovery was covered at 
a much higher rate than mental recovery. With the MHPAEA in force, many individuals will be able to use 
insurance coverage to help cover the costs of the services provided by BLVD. The MHPAEA has already 
brought about coverage changes for individuals, suggesting more comprehensive behavioral insurance 
coverage benefits for a significant number of individuals in the United States. 

On December 13, 2016, former President Mr. Barack Obama signed the 21st Century Cures Act. The 
21st Century Cures Act appropriated substantial resources for the treatment of behavioral health and 
substance abuse disorders and contained measures intended to strengthen the MHPAEA. 

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 
2010 (collectively, “PPACA”) dramatically altered the United States health care system. PPACA sought to 
provide coverage and access to substantially all Americans, to increase the quality of care provided, and 
to reduce the rate of growth in health care expenditures. PPACA attempted to achieve these goals by, 
among other things, requiring most Americans to obtain health insurance, expanding the Medicare 
program’s use of value-based purchasing programs, bundling payments to hospitals and other providers, 
reducing Medicare and Medicaid payments to providers, expanding Medicaid eligibility, and tying 
reimbursement to the satisfaction of certain quality criteria. 

On January 20, 2017, Mr. Donald Trump became President of the United States. During the 2016 election 
cycle, Republicans also assumed control of both the United States Senate and House of 
Representatives. Shortly after his inauguration, President Trump issued an executive order that, among 
other things, stated that it was the intent of his administration to repeal PPACA and, pending that repeal, 
instructed the executive branch of the federal government to defer or delay the implementation of any 
provision or requirement of PPACA that would impose a fiscal burden on any state or a cost, fee, tax, or 
penalty on any individual, family, health care provider, or health insurer. Several bills have been 
introduced and voted upon in the House of Representatives and United States Senate that would either 
repeal and replace or simply repeal PPACA, although none have been enacted to-date.  

On October 12, 2017, President Trump signed an executive order intending to expand the availability of 
so-called association health plans and short term plans outside PPACA’s requirements. President Trump 
also announced that the administration would cease making cost-sharing reduction payments to health 
insurance companies that help cover out-of-pocket costs for low-income individuals. Finally, the Tax Cuts 
and Jobs Act effectively eliminates PPACA’s individual health insurance mandate as of 2018 by reducing 
to zero the tax penalty associated with failure to maintain health insurance coverage. 
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It is difficult to predict whether PPACA will be repealed, replaced, or modified or the impact that the 
President’s executive actions will have on the implementation and enforcement of the provisions of 
PPACA or the regulations adopted or to be adopted to implement the law or the President’s executive 
orders. In addition, if PPACA is replaced or modified, it remains unclear what the replacement plan or 
modifications would be, when the changes would become effective, or whether any of the existing 
provisions of PPACA would remain in place. Even if the current administration is not successful in its 
efforts to repeal and replace PPACA, there have been and likely will continue to be a number of legal 
challenges to various provisions of the law and President Trump’s recent executive actions. Limitations 
on the availability of adequate insurance coverage for patients seeking services at our facilities; any 
reductions in government healthcare spending; and the possible repeal, replacement or modification of 
PPACA could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations. 

Competition 

The health industry is highly competitive and fragmented. The Issuer’s principal competitors include other 
medical treatment facilities, including American Addictions and Soba. We also compete against hospitals 
and general healthcare facilities that provide Detoxification, Residential and Outpatient treatment and 
health services.  

BLVD also competes for patients. Patients are referred to our treatment facilities through a number of 
different sources, including healthcare practitioners, public programs, other treatment facilities, managed 
care organizations, unions, emergency departments, judicial officials, social workers, police departments 
and word of mouth from previously treated patients and their families, among others. These referral 
sources may instead refer patients to hospitals that are able to provide a full suite of medical services or 
to other behavioral healthcare centers. 

WeedAide™ Lifestyle Management Products 

WeedAide™ is a line of marijuana lifestyle management products, which includes vegetable-based 
supplements powered by vitamins, caffeine, L-Theanine and other health-focused sources of resistance. 
The supplements are designed around helping to reduce the side effects and cravings associated with 
recreational marijuana use. The formulas for these products do not require United States FDA approval 
and can be sold to the public upon launch. It is expected that the launch of these products will occur on or 
before the end of May, 2018. 

The WeedAide™ product is a compliment to the Issuer’s existing business and fits perfectly into the 
Issuer’s business model and strategy. 

Operations/Products 

WeedAide is manufactured by a third party vendor and most of the sales are anticipated to be through the 
Issuer’s WeedAide website.  

WeedAide is comprised of the following products: 

Munchie Reducer – This product is designed to decrease appetite and the ingredients are 
Garcinia Cambodia and 5-HTP. 

Energy – This product is designed to increase energy and the ingredients are L-Theanine and 
caffeine. 

Control – This product is designed to decrease cravings for marijuana use and the ingredient is 
NAC.
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Market 

The market for WeedAide is any marijuana user, as WeedAide is designed to decrease the negative side 
effects of marijuana use. Currently there are 35 million marijuana users in the United States alone and 
this number continues to increase as marijuana has become legal on the state level for either medical or 
recreational use. 

Market Regulation 

WeedAide is a nutraceutical product. The US Food and Drug Administration (FDA) regulates foods, 
additives, drugs and cosmetics. Unlike pharmaceutical drugs and foods, nutraceuticals do not fall under 
the remit of FDA; they are monitored as “dietary supplements” according to the Dietary Supplement, 
Health and Education Act (DSHEA) of 1994. 

Competition 

While there are companies that sell products that contain the same ingredients, no one has yet to market 
them specifically to the marijuana user. 

Additional Addiction Treatment Products and/or Services 

As indicated in the Issuer’s January 30, 2018 news release, BLVD is researching additional addiction 
treatment products and/or services in Canada and in the United States, including plans to monetize 
certain marijuana strains in California, Colorado, Oregon and Washington, which could include activities 
related to the cultivation, distribution or possession of marijuana in the United States. 

4.6 Bankruptcy and Receivership 

There have been no bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings against BLVD, or any voluntary 
receivership, bankruptcy or similar proceedings by BLVD since its incorporation. 

4.7 Material Restructuring 

There have been no material restructuring transactions of BLVD since the Amalgamation. 

5. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

5.1 Annual Information of Issuer  

The audited financial statements of the Issuer together with the independent auditors' report thereon and 
the notes thereto as at and for the year ended February 28, 2017 and fifteen months ended February 29, 
2016 (the "Annual Financials"), as well as management's discussion and analysis of the financial 
condition and operations of the Issuer for the year ended February 28, 2017 and fifteen months ended 
February 29, 2016 (the "Annual MD&A") are attached hereto as Schedule A. 

The unaudited interim financial statements of the Issuer together with the notes thereto as at and for the 
periods ended November 30, 2017 and 2016 (the "Interim Financials"), as well as management's 
discussion and analysis of the financial condition and operations of the Issuer for the periods ended 
November 30, 2017 and 2016 (the "Interim MD&A") are attached hereto as Schedule B. 

The following table provides a brief summary of selected financial information of the Issuer as at February 
28, 2017, February 28, 2016 and November 30, 2014. This summary financial information should only be 
read in conjunction with the Issuer financial statements, including the notes thereto, included elsewhere in 
this document, including in Section 25 “Financial Statements”. 
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Operating Data 

Year ended 
February 28, 2017 

($000s)

15 months ended 
February 29, 2016 

($000s) 

Year ended 
November 30, 2014 

($000s) 
Total Revenues 29,658 23,688 781 
Net Income (Loss)  (29,524) (2,638) (1,882) 
Basic and Diluted Income (Loss) per Share (0.13) (0.01) (0.038) 
Dividends Nil Nil Nil 
Balance Sheet Data
Total Assets 25,359 45,554 3,075 
Total Current Liabilities 7,034 3,426 749 
Total Liabilities 9,219 3,637 749 



BLVD Centers Corporation  CSE Form 2A - Listing Statement 

June 20, 2018 

Page 18 

CAN: 27439776.9

5.2 Quarterly Information  

Below is a summary of the quarterly results of the Issuer, for each of the eight most recently completed 
quarters:  

Operating Data 
Three months ended ($000s)

2017 Q4 2018 Q1 2018 Q2 2018 Q3
Total Revenues 7,121 9,033 9,045 9,819 
Net Income (Loss)  (21,325) 52 (76) (598) 
Basic and Diluted Income (Loss) per Share (0.100) 0.000 (0.000) (0.003) 

Operating Data 
Three months ended ($000s)

2016 Q4 2017 Q1 2017 Q2 2017 Q3
Total Revenues 6,422 7,288 7,434 7,814 
Net Income (Loss)  (2,140) (3,968) (2,590) (960) 
Basic and Diluted Income (Loss) per Share (0.007) (0.017) (0.011) (0.007) 

5.3 Dividends  

BLVD has not declared or paid dividends on any of its shares and is unlikely to pay any dividends in the 
foreseeable future as it intends to employ available funds for operations and working capital. Any decision 
to pay dividends on its shares will be made by the BLVD Board on the basis of BLVD’s financial condition, 
earnings, results of operations, financial requirements and other conditions existing at such time. 

5.4 Foreign GAAP  

Not applicable to the Issuer. 

5.5 Balance Sheet Exposure to United States Cannabis-related Activities 

BLVD has not, and does not as of the date hereof, have any operational exposure to United States 
cannabis-related activities. As such, as of February 28, 2017, BLVD’s balance sheet did not have any 
exposure to United States cannabis-related activities.  

6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Annual MD&A is attached hereto in Schedule A, and the Interim MD&A is attached hereto in 
Schedule B. 

7. MARKET FOR SECURITIES 

The BLVD Shares are listed and posted for trading on the TSXV under the trading symbol “CXV” and are 
expected to cease to trade on the TSXV on June 25, 2018. On June 26, 2018, the BLVD Shares will 
begin trading on the CSE under the symbol “CXV”. 

8. CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION 

There have been no material changes in the share and loan capital of the Issuer, on a consolidated basis, 
since February 28, 2017. 

9. OPTIONS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES 

As of May 31, 2018, BLVD has an aggregate of 10,887,500 BLVD Shares reserved for issuance pursuant 
to BLVD Options as set forth below. 
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Optionee BLVD Shares Issuable Exercise Price Expiry Date
executive officers of the 
Issuer

3,862,500 $0.10 to $0.465 July 13, 2020 to October 9, 2027 

directors of the Issuer (other 
than executive officers) 

1,950,000 $0.11 to $0.55 May 19, 2020 to June 28, 2027 

employees of the Issuer 3,010,000 $0.10 to $0.135 April 20, 2019 to February 11, 2025 
consultants of the Issuer 2,065,000 $0.10 to $0.24 November 30, 2018 to March 1, 2019 

The Issuer’s fixed number BLVD Option Plan was adopted by the Shareholders on June 24, 2016. 
Pursuant to the BLVD Option Plan the Board may from time to time, in its discretion and in accordance 
with applicable Exchange requirements, grant to directors, officers and employees of the Issuer as well as 
Management Company Employees and Consultants (as such terms are defined in Policy 4.4 of the TSXV 
as amended from time to time), non-transferable options to purchase BLVD Shares, provided that the 
number of BLVD Shares reserved for issuance will not exceed 45,606,510 BLVD Shares (20% of the 
issued and outstanding BLVD Shares at the time the BLVD Option Plan was approved) unless 
disinterested shareholder approval is obtained, exercisable for a period of up to ten (10) years from the 
date of the grant. The number of BLVD Shares reserved for issuance to any individual director or officer 
of the Issuer will not exceed 5% of the issued and outstanding BLVD Shares (2% in the case of optionees 
providing consultancy or investor relations services to the Issuer) unless disinterested shareholder 
approval is obtained. Options granted pursuant to the BLVD Option Plan are nonassignable, except by 
means of a will or pursuant to the laws of descent and distribution. 

The BLVD Options may be exercised no later than one year following the date the optionee ceases to be 
a director, officer or consultant of the Issuer, as determined by the Board at the time of each grant. 
However, if the employment of an employee or consultant is terminated for cause or as a result of an 
order of any regulatory body, no option held by such optionee may be exercised following the date upon 
which termination occurred. 

10. DESCRIPTION OF THE SECURITIES 

10.1 General  

BLVD is authorized to issue an unlimited number of BLVD Shares. As at the date of this Listing 
Statement, there are 232,617,234 BLVD Shares issued and outstanding as fully paid and non-
assessable.  

Holders of BLVD Shares (common shares) are entitled to notice of, and to one vote per share at, all 
meeting of BLVD Shareholders, to receive dividends as and when declared by the Board and to receive a 
pro rata share of the assets of BLVD available for distribution to holders of common shares in the event of 
liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of BLVD. 

10.2 Debt securities, Other Securities, Modifications of Terms and Other Attributes  

None of the matters set out in sections 10.2 to 10.6 of CSE - Form 2A are applicable to this Issuer. 

10.7 Prior Sales 

The following table summarizes the issuances of BLVD Shares or securities convertible into BLVD 
Shares for the 12 month period prior to the Listing Statement. 

Date Issued Securities 
Number of BLVD Shares 

Issued/Issuable 
Price/Deemed Price/ Exercise 

Price of Security 
June 12, 2018 BLVD Options 11,000,000

(1)
$0.05 

May 23, 2017 BLVD Options 1,200,000 $0.165 
June 28, 2017 BLVD Options 1,950,000 $0.170 
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October 9, 2017 BLVD Options 2,300,000 $0.110 

Note: 

(1) 10,000,000 of the options only vest and become exercisable in the event BLVD merges with a specific 
Canadian listed company in the marijuana industry by December 12, 2018. 

10.8 Stock Exchange Price 

The BLVD Shares are listed and posted for trading on the TSXV under the trading symbol “CXV” and are 
expected to cease to trade on the TSXV on June 25, 2018. On June 26, 2018, the BLVD Shares will 
begin trading on the CSE under the symbol “CXV”. The following table sets forth the daily high and low 
closing trading prices and the volume of the trading of the BLVD Shares, on days which there was trading 
activity, on the TSXV for the periods indicated. 

2016 Low ($) High ($) Average Close ($) Volume
January 0.250 0.355 0.2810 23,386,900 
February 0.180 0.260 0.2325 26,729,442 

March 0.220 0.325 0.2657 25,514,038 
April 0.250 0.330 0.2917 16,943,928 
May 0.270 0.315 0.2921 9,893,477 
June 0.200 0.285 0.2347 19,300,712 
July 0.190 0.235 0.2107 14,013,946 

August 0.130 0.205 0.1557 25,419,825 
September 0.105 0.140 0.1221 19,021,562 

October 0.090 0.115 0.1011 11,598,415 
November 0.070 0.145 0.1005 46,597,946 
December 0.095 0.130 0.1103 18,780,809 

2017
January 0.090 0.125 0.1140 15,117,668 
February 0.075 0.115 0.0852 19,146,875 

March 0.080 0.160 0.1123 81,884,153 
April 0.110 0.145 0.1200 24,552,151 
May 0.115 0.190 0.1610 47,194,131 
June 0.145 0.195 0.1766 25,681,080 
July 0.115 0.150 0.1276 16,006,714 

August 0.120 0.150 0.1282 9,086,731 
September 0.095 0.125 0.1085 4,943,914 

October 0.090 0.115 0.1036 5,766,364 
November 0.075 0.095 0.0836 15,814,541 
December 0.075 0.085 0.0800 9,152,766 

2018
January 0.085 0.180 0.1231 84,016,289 
February 0.080 0.110 0.0907 14,053,712 

March 0.075 0.090 0.0825 3,472,281 
April 0.065 0.080 0.0715 4,124,093 
May 0.045 0.075 0.0575 20,553,609 

June
(1)

0.050 0.075 0.0585 8,036,490 

Note: 
(1) From June 1, 2018 to June 19, 2018.

11. ESCROWED SECURITIES 

No BLVD Shares are currently held in escrow. 
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12. PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS 

To the knowledge of the directors and executive officers of BLVD, as of the date hereof, there are no 
persons who, directly or indirectly, own or exercise control or direction over, securities carrying more than 
10% of the voting rights attached to any class of voting securities of BLVD. 

13. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

13.2 Directors and Executive Officers 

The names, municipalities of residence, positions with BLVD and the principal occupations for the five 
preceding years of the directors and executive officers of BLVD are set out below, together with their 
holdings of BLVD Shares. 

Name and 
Municipality of 
Residence 

Position and Office held 
with the Issuer 

Principal Occupation last 5 years

Christopher Heath
(1)

San Clemente, 
California

Chief Executive Officer 

Director since March 6, 
2017 

Chief Executive Officer of BLVD since March 2017. 

Executive Vice-President of Sales and Marketing of BLVD 
from December 2016 to March 2017. 

Director of Marketing of BLVD from September 2015 to 
January 2017. 

Marketing Manager of IQAir North America, Inc. from 
December 2013 to September 2015. 

Senior Online Marketing Specialist of IQAir North America, 
Inc. from April 2013 to December 2013. 

Pablo Mendez
Doral, Florida

Interim Chief Financial 
Officer 

Interim Chief Financial Officer of BLVD since January 
2018. 

Vice President of Finance for SAExplorations, Inc. from 
2008 to 2016. 

Edward John 
Allera

(1)

Gaithersburg, 
Maryland 

Director since March 1, 
2016 

Head of the Washington, D.C. office for Buchanan 
Ingersoll & Rooney PC’s Food & Drug Administration 
(FDA) Biotech practice since 2010. 

Nitin Kaushal
(1)

Richmond Hill, 
Ontario 

Director since February 11, 
2015 

Managing Director of PricewaterhouseCoopers Corporate 
Finance Inc. since 2012. 

Robbie Grossman
Toronto, Ontario

Secretary Corporate finance, M&A and securities lawyer at DLA 
Piper (Canada) LLP since March 2018, and at McMillan 
LLP from September 2013 to March 2018. 

Notes: 
(1) Member of the Audit Committee. Each director holds office until the close of the next annual general meeting 

of the Issuer, or until his or her successor is duly elected or appointed, unless his or her office is earlier 
vacated. 

13.3 Voting Securities Held by Directors and Executive Officers 

The directors and executive officers of the Issuer beneficially own, directly or indirectly, as a group, 
4,230,000 BLVD Shares representing approximately 1.8% of all outstanding voting securities of the 
Issuer. 
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13.4 Cease Trade Orders or Bankruptcies  

To the knowledge of the Issuer, other than (i) Nitin Kaushal, who was a director of Victhom Human 
Bionics Inc., when he was subject to a management cease trade order in April 2009, which was revoked 
in May 2009, for the issuer’s failure to file audited annual financial statements and management’s 
discussion and analysis for the year ended December 31, 2008, and (ii) Robbie Grossman, who was the 
Assistant Secretary until May 2015 of RedWater Energy Corp. which was subject to (a) a cease trade 
order in May 2015 for failure to file annual audited financial statements, management's discussion and 
analysis, and certifications, for the year ended December 31, 2014, (b) a court ordered receiver in May 
2015, and (c) a bankruptcy order October 28, 2015, no director nor executive officer of the Issuer, or a 
shareholder holding a sufficient number of securities of the Issuer to affect materially the control of the 
Issuer, is, or within 10 years before the date of the Listing Statement has been, a director or officer of any 
other Issuer that, while that person was acting in that capacity: 

(a) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order, or an order that denied the other Issuer access 
to any exemptions under securities law, for a period of more than 30 consecutive days; 

(b) was subject to an event that resulted, after the director or executive officer ceased to be a director 
or executive officer, in the company being the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order 
that denied the relevant company access to any exemption under securities legislation, for a 
period of more than 30 consecutive days; 

(c) became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or 
was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a 
receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets; or 

(d) within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal 
under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any 
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or 
trustee appointed to hold its assets. 

13.5 Penalties and Sanctions 

To the knowledge of the Issuer, no director nor officer of the Issuer, or a shareholder holding a sufficient 
number of securities of the Issuer to affect materially the control of the Issuer, is, or within 10 years before 
the date of this Listing Statement, has been, a director or officer of any other issuer that, while that person 
was acting in that capacity, has: 

(a) been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities 
legislation or by a Canadian securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement 
agreement with a Canadian securities regulatory authority; or 

(b) been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would 
be likely to be considered important to a reasonable investor making an investment decision. 

13.6 Personal Bankruptcies 

No director nor officer of the issuer, nor a shareholder holding sufficient securities of the Issuer to affect 
materially the control of the Issuer, or a personal holding company of any such persons, has, within the 
10 years before the date of this Listing Statement, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any 
legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or been subject to or instituted any proceedings, 
arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to 
hold the assets of the director or officer. 
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13.7 Conflicts of Interest 

There are potential conflicts of interest to which the directors and executive officers of BLVD may be 
subject in connection with the operations of BLVD. In particular, certain of the directors and executive 
officers may be involved in managerial or director positions with issuers or businesses whose operations 
may, from time to time, be in direct competition with those of BLVD or with entities which may, from time 
to time, provide financing to, or make equity investments in, competitors of BLVD. Conflicts, if any, will be 
subject to the procedures and remedies available under the BCBCA. The BCBCA provides that in the 
event that a director has an interest in a contract or proposed contract or agreement, the director shall 
disclose his interest in such contract or agreement and shall refrain from voting on any matter in respect 
of such contract or agreement unless otherwise provided by the BCBCA. 

13.8 Management  

The following are brief profiles of the management of the Issuer, including a description of each 
individual’s principal occupation within the past five years. 

Christopher Heath – Chief Executive Officer, Age 34

Mr. Heath currently serves as the Chief Executive Officer of BLVD and has been in this position since 
March 2017. Prior to this, he served as Executive Vice-President of Sales and Marketing of BLVD from 
December 2016 to March 2017. From April 2013 to June 2015, Mr. Heath managed a largescale 
marketing department at IQAir North America, Inc., which manufactures air purifiers for the medical and 
homecare industries. Prior to IQAir, Mr. Heath created business and lead generation strategies across 
multiple digital verticals. Mr. Heath attended school in Southern California where he obtained his 
Bachelor’s in Business Economics and an MBA. Mr. Heath works full time for BLVD as an employee. Mr. 
Heath has not entered into a non-competition or non-disclosure agreement with BLVD. 

Pablo Mendez – Interim Chief Financial Officer, Age 63

Mr. Mendez currently services as Interim Chief Financial Officer of BLVD and has been in this position 
since January 2018. Prior to joining BLVD, Mr. Mendez was the Vice President of Finance for 
SAExplorations, Inc., one of the world’s leading providers of integrated geophysical services to Oil & Gas 
companies. Mr. Mendez managed a large team that was responsible for all Accounting and Finance 
functions for the Latin America region. Mr. Mendez has his degree in Accounting and is a Certified Public 
Accountant. Mr. Mendez works full time for the Issuer as an employee. Mr. Mendez has not entered into a 
non-competition or non-disclosure agreement with the Issuer.

14. CAPITALIZATION 

14.1 Issued Capital  

Number of 
Securities 

(non-diluted) 

Number of 
Securities 

(fully-diluted) 

% of Issued 
(non-diluted) 

% of Issued
(fully diluted) 

Public Float

Total outstanding (A)  232,617,234 263,204,734 100.0% 100.0% 

Held by Related Persons or employees of the 
Issuer or Related Person of the Issuer, or by 
persons or companies who beneficially own 
or control, directly or indirectly, more than a 
5% voting position in the Issuer (or who 
would beneficially own or control, directly or 

4,230,000 21,042,500 1.8% 8.0% 
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indirectly, more than a 5% voting position in 
the Issuer upon exercise or conversion of 
other securities held) (B) 

Total Public Float (A-B) 228,387,234 242,162,234 98.2% 92.0% 

Freely-Tradeable Float

Number of outstanding securities subject to 
resale restrictions, including restrictions 
imposed by pooling or other arrangements or 
in a shareholder agreement and securities 
held by control block holders (C)  

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Total Tradeable Float (A-C) 232,617,234 263,204,734 100.0% 100.0% 

Securityholders (Beneficial) 

Class of Security  

Size of Holding  Number of holders
(1)

Total number of securities 
1 – 99 securities 16 522 
100 – 499 securities 131 33,873 
500 – 999 securities 172 107,923 
1,000 – 1,999 securities 453 558,061 
2,000 – 2,999 securities 424 937,251 
3,000 – 3,999 securities 308 979,612 
4,000 – 4,999 securities 208 868,951 
5,000 or more securities 3,122 140,929,142 
Total 4,834 144,415,335

Notes: 
(1) Based on holdings of non-objecting beneficial owners (NOBOs) as at June 26, 2017 and excluding holdings 

of registered holders and objecting beneficial owners (OBOs). 

14.2 Convertible or Exchangeable Securities 

Type of Security Exercise Price(s) No. of Securities 
Outstanding 

No. of BLVD Shares Issuable 
upon Exercise 

BLVD Options $0.05 to $0.55 21,887,500 21,887,500

14.3 Other Listed Securities Reserved for Issuance 

There are no other BLVD Shares reserved for issuance that are not included in section 14.2, other than 
8,700,000 BLVD Shares reserved for issuance pursuant to a master lease agreement entered into by the 
Issuer in 2016. 

15. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

The disclosure required by Form 51-102F6 - Statement of Executive Compensation under NI 51-102 is 
provided in the Issuer’s information circular dated June 28, 2017 in connection with the annual meeting of 
shareholders of the Issuer held July 28, 2017, a copy of which is available under the Issuer’s profile on 
SEDAR at www.sedar.com. The Issuer has no intention of making any material changes to the 
compensation structure described in such document. 
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16. INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

16.1 Aggregate Indebtedness 

There exists no indebtedness of the directors or executive officers of BLVD, or any of their associates, to 
BLVD, nor is any indebtedness of any of such persons to another entity the subject of a guarantee, 
support agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or understanding provided by BLVD.  

16.2 Indebtedness under Securities Purchase and Other Programs 

Not applicable.  

17. RISK FACTORS 

17.1 Risk Factors Relating to the Issuer  

An investor should carefully consider the following risk factors in addition to the other 
information contained in this Listing Statement. The risks and uncertainties below are not the only 
ones related to the Issuer. There are additional risks and uncertainties that the Issuer does not 
presently know of or that the Issuer currently considers immaterial which may also impair the 
Issuer’s business operations. If any of the following risks actually occur, the Issuer’s business 
may be harmed and its financial condition and results of operations may suffer significantly. The 
risk factors presented below related exclusively to the Issuer’s additional line of business. 

The business of BLVD is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties. In addition to considering the 
other information contained in this Listing Statement and the information disclosed in the financial 
statements, the reader should carefully consider the following information. Any of these risk factors could 
have material adverse effects on the business to be conducted by BLVD. 

Dependence upon Management 

BLVD will be substantially dependent upon the services of a few key personnel, particularly its Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, for the successful operation of its business. The loss of the 
services of any of these personnel could have a material adverse effect on the business of BLVD. BLVD 
may not be able to attract and retain personnel on acceptable terms given the intense competition for 
such personnel among competitors. If it loses any of these persons, or is unable to attract and retain 
qualified personnel, its business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially and 
adversely affected. 

Inability to Implement the Business Strategy 

The growth and expansion of BLVD’s business is heavily dependent upon the successful implementation 
of BLVD’s business strategy. There can be no assurance that BLVD will be successful in the 
implementation of its business strategy. 

Issuance of Debt 

From time to time, BLVD may enter into transactions to acquire assets or the shares of other 
corporations. These transactions may be financed partially or wholly with debt, which may increase 
BLVD’s debt levels above industry standards. The level of BLVD’s indebtedness from time to time could 
impair BLVD’s ability to obtain additional financing in the future on a timely basis to take advantage of 
business opportunities that may arise. 
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Conflicts of Interest 

Certain of the directors of BLVD are also directors and officers of other companies, some of which may be 
in the healthcare sector, and conflicts of interest may arise between their duties as directors of BLVD and 
as officers and directors of such other companies. Such conflicts must be disclosed in accordance with, 
and are subject to such other procedures and remedies as apply under the applicable corporate statute. 

Reimbursement Rates May Decline 

Reimbursement for services to be provided by BLVD will come primarily from Medicare, the Patient 
Protection and Affordable Care Act and private health insurance companies. The reimbursement rates 
offered are outside the control of BLVD. Reimbursement rates in the United States, and much of the 
United States healthcare market in general, have been subject to continual reductions as health insurers 
and governmental entities attempt to control healthcare costs. The extent and timing of any reduction in 
reimbursement rates cannot be predicted by BLVD. 

Reductions in reimbursement rates can have a material impact on the profitability of BLVD’s operations. A 
reduction in reimbursement may be unrelated to any concurrent decline in the cost of operations, thereby 
resulting in reduced profitability. BLVD’s costs of operations could increase, but the cost increases may 
not be passed on to customers because reimbursement rates are set without regard to the cost of 
service. 

Requirement for Permits and Licences in a Highly Regulated Business 

Some operations of BLVD require certain licences and permits from the authorities in the United States. 
The ability of BLVD to obtain, sustain or renew any such licences and permits on acceptable terms is 
subject to changes in regulations and policies and to the discretion of the applicable authorities or other 
governmental agencies. There is no guarantee that BLVD will be able to obtain such licences and 
permits. 

BLVD will be subject to regulation from both United States federal and state authorities. Regulatory action 
could disrupt BLVD’s ability to provide services. Such regulatory action could come in the form of actions 
based upon BLVD’s operation. Regulatory action could prevent or delay reimbursement for certain 
services. There could also be legislative action that could adversely affect BLVD’s business model, 
including a decision by the United States. government to become the exclusive provider of healthcare 
services at some time in the future. Conversely, budgetary problems in the United States could lead to 
reduced funding, substantial modification or elimination of Medicare programs, which would end 
reimbursement for many patients. There can be no assurance that new rules and regulations will not be 
enacted or that existing rules and regulations will not be applied in a manner which could limit or curtail 
the business of BLVD. Amendments to current laws and regulations could have a substantial adverse 
impact on BLVD. 

Privacy Legislation 

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) required the United States 
Department of Health and Human Services to adopt standards to protect the privacy and security of 
individually identifiable health-related information. The department released regulations containing privacy 
standards in December 2000 and published revisions to the final regulations in August 2002. The privacy 
regulations extensively regulate the use and disclosure of individually identifiable health related 
information. The regulations also provide patients with significant new rights related to the understanding 
and controlling how their health information is used or disclosed. The security regulations require 
healthcare providers to implement administrative, physical and technical practices to protect the security 
of identifiable health information that is maintained or transmitted electronically. 
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In addition to HIPAA, there are numerous federal and state laws and regulations addressing patient and 
consumer privacy concerns, including unauthorized access or theft of personal information. State statutes 
and regulations vary from state to state. Lawsuits, including class actions and action by state attorneys 
general, directed at companies that have experienced a privacy or security breach can also occur. 

BLVD believes that the cost of compliance with HIPAA and other federal and state privacy laws will not 
have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 
However, there can be no assurance that a breach of privacy or security will not occur. If there is a 
breach, BLVD may be subject to various penalties and damages and may be required to incur costs to 
mitigate the impact of the breach on affected individuals. 

ICD-10 Coding System 

Within the United States, health insurance plans and health care providers are required to transition to a 
new version of the standardized procedure coding system, ICD-10. This new version significantly 
expands the number and detail of billing codes used for third-party claims. Use of the ICD-10 system may 
be required beginning October 1, 2015. Transition to the new ICD-10 system requires significant 
investment in coding technology and software as well as the training of staff involved in the coding and 
billing process. In addition to these upfront costs of transition to ICD-10, it is possible that BLVD could 
experience disruption or delays in payment due to technical or coding errors or other implementation 
issues involving BLVD’s systems or the systems and implementation efforts of health insurance plans and 
their business partners. 

Strategic Relationships with Third Parties 

BLVD depends on their relationships with various third parties, including hospitals, long-term care 
facilities and physicians to grow its business. Identifying, negotiating and documenting relationships with 
third parties requires significant time and resources. BLVD’s competitors may be effective in providing 
incentives to their parties to favour their solutions or may prevent BLVD from developing strategic 
relationships with these parties. In addition, these third parties may not perform as expected under any 
agreement with them and BLVD may have disagreements or disputes with these parties, which could 
negatively affect BLVD’s brand and reputation. It is possible that these third parties may not be able to 
devote the resources that BLVD expects from the relationship. If BLVD is unsuccessful in establishing or 
maintaining its relationship with these third parties, BLVD’s ability to compete in the marketplace or to 
grow its revenue could be impaired, and operating results would suffer. Even if BLVD is successful, these 
relationships may not result in improved operating results. 

Referrals 

The success of BLVD is primarily dependent upon physician referrals of patients for assessment and 
rehabilitation procedures. These referrals come through preferred provider and other service agreements 
established through competitive tendering processes. If BLVD’s physician relationships were to decline in 
number, the business, financial condition and results of operations of BLVD could be adversely affected. 
Further there is a risk concerning changes in the United States Anti-Kickback Statute and Stark Law 
and/or similar state laws, rules and regulations. 

Information Technology Systems 

BLVD’s business depends, in part, on the continued and uninterrupted performance of its information 
technology systems. Sustained system failures or interruptions could disrupt BLVD’s ability to operate 
effectively, which in turn could adversely affect its business, results of operations and financial condition. 
BLVD’s computer systems may be vulnerable to damage from a variety of sources, including physical or 
electronic break-ins, computer viruses and similar disruptive problems. Despite precautions taken and the 
extensive mitigation strategies put in place by BLVD, unanticipated problems affecting the information 
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technology systems could cause interruptions for which BLVD’s insurance policies may not provide 
adequate compensation. 

Insurance and Uninsured Risks 

BLVD’s business will be subject to a number of risks and hazards generally, including general liability. 
Such occurrences could result in damage to facilities, personal injury or death, damage to the properties 
of BLVD, or the properties of others, monetary losses and possible legal liability. 

Although BLVD will maintain insurance to protect against certain risks in such amounts as it considers to 
be reasonable, its insurance will not cover all potential risks associated with its operations. BLVD may 
also be unable to maintain insurance to cover these risks at economically feasible premiums. Insurance 
coverage may not continue to be available or may not be adequate to cover any resulting liability. BLVD 
might also become subject to liability which may not be insured against or which BLVD may elect not to 
insure against because of premium costs or other reasons. Losses from these events may cause BLVD 
to incur significant costs that could have a material adverse effect upon its financial performance and 
results of operations. 

General Litigation Risk 

Disputes are common in the United States healthcare industry and as such, in the normal course of 
business, BLVD might be involved in various legal actions and proceedings which arise from time to time, 
some of which may be substantial. There is no assurance that BLVD’s insurance arrangements will be 
sufficient to cover any particular claim or claims that may arise in the future. Furthermore, BLVD is subject 
to the risk of claims and legal actions for various commercial and contractual matters in respect of which 
insurance is not available. 

Loss of Foreign Private Issuer Status 

BLVD may lose its foreign private issuer status in the future, which could result in significant additional 
costs and expenses. As a foreign private issuer, as defined in Rule 3b-4 under the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), BLVD is currently exempt from certain of the provisions 
of United States federal securities laws. For example, an issuer with total assets in excess of US$10 
million and whose outstanding equity securities are held by 2,000 or more persons, or 500 or more 
persons who are not “accredited investors”, must register such securities as a class under the Exchange 
Act. However, as a foreign private issuer subject to Canadian continuous disclosure requirements, BLVD 
may claim the exemption from registration under the Exchange Act provided by Rule 12g3-2(b) 
thereunder, even if these thresholds are exceeded. To be considered a foreign private issuer, BLVD must 
satisfy a United States shareholder test (not more than 50% of the voting securities of a company must 
be held by residents of the United States) if any of the following disqualifying conditions apply: (i) the 
majority of BLVD’s executive officers or directors are United States citizens or residents; (ii) more than 50 
percent of BLVD’s assets are located in the United States; or (iii) BLVD’s business is administered 
principally in the United States. Based on information available as at August 31, 2017 (the last day of 
BLVD’s second fiscal quarter), approximately 14.6% of BLVD’s outstanding voting securities are 
anticipated to be directly or indirectly held of record by residents of the United States. If BLVD loses its 
status as a foreign private issuer, these regulations could apply and it could also be required to 
commence reporting on forms required of United States domestic companies, such as Forms 10-K, 10-Q 
and 8-K. It could also become subject to United States proxy rules, and certain holders of its equity 
securities could become subject to the insider reporting and “short swing” profit rules under Section 16 of 
the Exchange Act. In addition, any securities issued by BLVD if it loses foreign private issuer status would 
become subject to certain rules and restrictions under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, even if 
they are issued or resold outside the United States. Compliance with the additional disclosure, 
compliance and timing requirements under these securities laws would likely result in increased expenses 
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and would require BLVD’s management to devote substantial time and resources to comply with new 
regulatory requirements. 

United States Operations and Exchange Rate Fluctuations 

All of BLVD’s revenue is generated from operations in the United States. BLVD is subject to a number of 
risks associated with its operations that may increase liability and costs and require significant 
management attention. These risks include (i) compliance with laws of the United States that apply to 
BLVD’s United States operations, including lawful access, privacy laws and anti-corruption laws; (ii) 
instability in economic or political conditions, including inflation, recession and political uncertainty; (iii) 
potential adverse tax consequences; and (iv) litigation in United States courts. 

In addition, BLVD is exposed to foreign exchange risk as a result of substantially all of its revenue 
generating operations taking place in the United States and thus, revenues and expenses being earned 
and paid in United States dollars while BLVD reports its financial statements in Canadian dollars. If the 
Canadian dollar appreciates relative to the United States dollar, BLVD’s Canadian dollar expenses and 
revenues will decrease when translated from United States dollars for financial reporting purposes. 
Conversely, if the Canadian dollar depreciates relative to the United States dollar, BLVD’s Canadian 
dollar expenses and revenues will increase when translated from United States dollars for financial 
reporting purposes. In addition, exchange rate fluctuations may affect the costs that BLVD incurs in its 
operations. The appreciation of non-United States dollar currencies against the United States dollar can 
increase the cost of operations in United States dollar terms. Foreign exchange rate fluctuations may 
materially affect BLVD’s financial condition and results of operations in future periods. 

BLVD will continue to translate the assets and liabilities of its United States dollar functional currency 
subsidiaries into Canadian dollars using exchange rates in effect at the end of each period. Revenue and 
expenses for these subsidiaries are translated using average exchange rates that approximate those in 
effect during the period. BLVD will continue to maintain cash balances in both United States and 
Canadian dollars, but management anticipates that it will not purchase any securities or financial 
instruments to speculate on or hedge against a rise or fall in the value of the United States dollar. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

BLVD may face risks if there are deficiencies in its internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure 
controls and procedures. Internal controls over financial reporting are designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the financial statements for 
external reporting purposes. Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate 
internal controls over financial reporting appropriate to the nature and size of BLVD. The board of 
directors, in conjunction with its Audit Committee, is responsible for assessing the progress and 
sufficiency of internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures and will 
make adjustments as necessary. However, these initiatives may not be effective at remedying any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures. Any 
deficiencies, if uncorrected, could result in BLVD’s financial statements being inaccurate and in future 
adjustments or restatements of its financial statements, which could adversely affect the price of BLVD 
Shares and BLVD’s business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Reliance on the Medicare Program 

BLVD will receive payments from a small number of entities, with the Medicare program of the United 
States government being the primary entity making payments. If that entity were to slow payments of 
BLVD’s receivables for any reason, BLVD would be adversely impacted. 

Key Credentialed Employees 
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BLVD will rely on a number of key employees and licensed providers with specialized training in the 
delivery of BLVD’s services. BLVD’s operations will be adversely affected if any of the key employees 
cease their employment with BLVD or if BLVD is unable to recruit and retain qualified staff. 

Uninsured and Underinsured Clients and Collection Risks 

An increase in uninsured and underinsured clients or the deterioration in the collectability of the accounts 
of such clients could have a material adverse effect on BLVD’s business, financial condition and results of 
operations. Collection of receivables from third-party payors and clients is critical to BLVD’s operating 
performance. The primary collection risks are (i) the risk of overestimating BLVD’s net revenues at the 
time of billing that may result in BLVD receiving less than the recorded receivable, (ii) the risk of non-
payment as a result of commercial insurance companies denying claims, (iii) the risk that clients will fail to 
remit insurance payments to BLVD when the commercial insurance company pays out-of-network claims 
directly to the client, (iv) resource and capacity constraints that may prevent BLVD from handling the 
volume of billing and collection issues in a timely manner, (v) the risk that clients do not pay BLVD for 
their self-pay balance (including co-pays, deductibles and any portion of the claim not covered by 
insurance, and (vi) the risk of non-payment from uninsured clients. Significant changes in business office 
operations, payor mix or economic conditions, including changes resulting from implementation of the 
Affordable Care Act, could affect BLVD’s collection of accounts receivable, cash flows and results of 
operations. 

Increased State and Federal Investigation of Healthcare Providers 

Both federal and state government agencies have heightened and coordinated their civil and criminal 
enforcement efforts as part of numerous ongoing investigations of healthcare companies and various 
segments of the healthcare industry. These investigations relate to a wide variety of topics, including 
relationships with physicians, billing practices and use of controlled substances. The PPACA included an 
additional $350 million of federal funding over 10 years to fight healthcare fraud, waste and abuse, 
including $40 million for federal fiscal year 2014. From time to time, the Office of Inspector General and 
the Department of Justice have established national enforcement initiatives that focus on specific billing 
practices or other suspected areas of abuse. In addition, increased government enforcement activities, 
even if not directed towards our treatment facilities, also increase the risk that BLVD’s facilities, 
physicians and other clinicians furnishing services in BLVD’s facilities, or BLVD’s executives and 
directors, could become named as defendants in private litigation such as state or federal false claims act 
cases or consumer protection cases, or could become the subject of complaints at the various state and 
federal agencies that have jurisdiction over BLVD’s operations. Any governmental investigations involving 
any of BLVD’s facilities, executives or directors, even if BLVD ultimately prevails, could result in significant 
expense and could adversely affect BLVD’s reputation. 

17.2 Risks Associated with Entering the United States Cannabis Industry 

Reliance on Securing Agreements with Royalty Producers 

BLVD does not have a license to grow, store or sell marijuana products (a “License”) in any jurisdiction 
within or outside of the United States at this time. In order for BLVD to enter the marijuana market, it is 
likely that BLVD will need to secure agreements with royalty producers in targeted jurisdictions that have 
been able to obtain a License with the appropriate regulatory authorities. BLVD may not be able to secure 
agreements with royalty producers in order to enter the marijuana market, which could materially 
adversely affect BLVD’s proposed future operations. In addition, if BLVD secures agreements with royalty 
producers, failure of a royalty producer to comply with the requirements of their License or a change in 
the United States federal government’s approach to the enforcement of laws relating to marijuana, could 
have a material adverse impact on the business, financial condition and operating results of the Issuer 
once BLVD is operating in the marijuana market.  
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Non-compliance with federal, provincial or state laws and regulations, or the expansion of current, or the 
enactment of new laws or regulations, could adversely affect BLVD’s proposed business 

In the event that BLVD enters the marijuana market in any capacity, the activities of BLVD will be subject 
to additional regulation by governmental authorities. In that event, achievement of BLVD’s business 
objectives will be contingent, in part, upon compliance with regulatory requirements enacted by 
governmental authorities and obtaining regulatory approvals, where necessary, for the potential 
distribution and sale of marijuana products. BLVD cannot predict the time required to secure all 
appropriate regulatory approvals, or the extent of testing and documentation that may be required by 
governmental authorities. Any delays in obtaining, or failure to obtain, regulatory approvals would 
significantly delay the development of markets and products and could have a material adverse effect on 
the business, results of operations and financial condition of BLVD. 

Under the United States Controlled Substances Act of 1970 (the “CSA”), the policies and regulations of 
the United States federal government and its agencies are that cannabis has no medical benefit and a 
range of activities including cultivation and the personal use of cannabis is prohibited. Unless and until the 
United States Congress amends the CSA with respect to medical marijuana, as to the timing or scope of 
any such potential amendments, there is a risk that federal authorities may enforce current federal law, 
and the business of BLVD, in the event BLVD enters the marijuana market in any capacity, may be 
deemed to be producing, cultivating or dispensing marijuana in violation of federal law in the United 
States. In addition, BLVD may become subject to additional governmental regulation and legal 
uncertainties that could restrict the demand for its services or potential products, or increase its cost of 
doing business, thereby adversely affecting its financial results.  

Operations involving marijuana, including those contemplated by BLVD, are subject to a variety of laws, 
regulations and guidelines relating to the manufacture, management, transportation, storage and disposal 
of marijuana as well as laws and regulations relating to health and safety, the conduct of operations and 
the protection of the environment. Local, state and federal laws and regulations governing marijuana for 
medicinal and recreational purposes are broad in scope and are subject to evolving interpretations. 
Compliance with such laws, regulations and guidelines may be difficult, costly or cause adverse effects to 
BLVD’s operations. It is beyond BLVD’s scope to predict the nature of any future change to the existing 
laws, regulations, policies, interpretations or applications, nor can BLVD definitively determine what effect 
the applicable laws could have on BLVD’s business at this point. 

Marijuana cultivation remains illegal under federal law in the United States. In the event that BLVD 
partners or is involved with royalty producers or other persons involved in the cultivation of marijuana, 
BLVD may be exposed to potential criminal liability which exposes BLVD to the potential risk that its 
assets and properties could be subject to civil forfeiture proceedings. 

Regulatory Approvals and Permits 

BLVD may be required to obtain and maintain certain permits, licenses and approvals in the jurisdictions 
where it decides to sell or license products. In the event that, or to the extent that BLVD loans funds to 
licensed operators or royalty producers that engage in activities relating to marijuana, such loans must be 
disclosed to regulatory authorities. There can be no assurance that BLVD will be able to receive and/or 
maintain the necessary permits, licenses and approvals. Any material delay or failure to receive these 
items would delay and/or inhibit BLVD's ability to conduct its business and would adversely affect its 
business, financial condition and results of operations. 

In addition, the cannabis industry is highly regulated, highly competitive, evolving rapidly and very 
uncertain. New risks are emerging that BLVD may not know about at this time, and BLVD may not be 
able to predict all such risks or be able to predict how such risks may result in actual results differing from 
the results contained in any forward looking statements. 
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If BLVD decides to enter the cannabis market, a portion of its revenues will be derived from the 
cannabis industry in certain states of the United States, which industry is illegal under United 
States federal law. While BLVD will endeavor to ensure that its business activities are compliant with 
applicable state and local law in the United States, activities relating to cannabis use, possession, sale, 
cultivation and transportation remain illegal under United States federal law. Compliance with local and 
state laws provides limited defense to criminal prosecution. BLVD is exploring and considering 
operations, either indirectly or directly, relating to the manufacture, possession, or cultivation, of cannabis 
in the medical and recreational cannabis marketplace in the United States. The enforcement of relevant 
laws is a significant risk if BLVD operates in the cannabis industry.  

United States Federal Laws 

Under federal law in the United States, the use, possession, sale, cultivation and transportation of 
cannabis is illegal (with the exception of certain government-approved research programs), and cannabis 
is listed as a Schedule I substance under the CSA. At the state level, however, a number of states have 
fully legalized the use of cannabis for both medical and recreational purposes while others have partially 
legalized the use of cannabis for medical purposes. Under United States federal law, a Schedule I drug or 
substance has a high potential for abuse, no accepted medical use in United States, and a lack of safety 
for the use of the drug under medical supervision. As such, marijuana-related practices or activities, 
including without limitation, the manufacture, importation, possession, use or distribution of marijuana are 
illegal under United States federal law. Strict compliance with state laws with respect to marijuana will 
neither absolve BLVD of liability under United States federal law, nor will it provide a defense to any 
federal proceeding which may be brought against BLVD. 

On January 4, 2018, United States Attorney General Jeff Sessions issued a memorandum to United 
States district attorneys which rescinded previous guidance from the United States Department of Justice 
specific to cannabis enforcement in the United States, including the Cole Memorandum. With the Cole 
Memorandum rescinded, United States federal prosecutors no longer have guidance relating to the 
exercise of their discretion in determining whether to prosecute cannabis related violations of United 
States federal law.  

A change in the position of the Attorney General, as well as changes to applicable regulation, may impact 
BLVD’s potential products and operations, which may have a negative financial impact on the Issuer and 
its continued operations.  

See also, “Enforcement Risks”, below.  

Guidance from the Canadian Securities Administrators and Position of Canadian Authorities 

On February 8, 2018, the Canadian Securities Administrators issued a revised statement on the 
Canadian disclosure expectations for issuers with United States marijuana-related activities, which 
specifies the disclosure that will be required by BLVD in the event that its operations involve marijuana. 
The disclosure stipulated by the Canadian Securities Administrators is premised on the assumption that 
marijuana-related activities are conducted in compliance with the current laws and regulations of a United 
States state where such activities are legal. Compliance with the Canadian Securities Administrators’ 
disclosure obligations may be costly and time intensive.   

Should BLVD enter the cannabis industry in the United States, BLVD may become the subject of 
heightened scrutiny by regulators, stock exchanges and other authorities in Canada. As a result, BLVD 
may be subject to significant direct and indirect interaction with public officials. There can be no 
assurance that this heightened scrutiny will not in turn lead to the imposition of certain restrictions on 
BLVD’s ability to invest in the United States or any other jurisdiction, in addition to those described herein. 
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Government policy changes or public opinion may also result in a significant influence over the regulation 
of the cannabis industry in Canada, the United States or elsewhere. A negative shift in the public’s 
perception of medical cannabis in the United States or any other applicable jurisdiction could affect future 
legislation or regulation. Among other things, such a shift could cause state jurisdictions to abandon 
initiatives or proposals to legalize medical cannabis, thereby limiting the number of new state jurisdictions 
into which BLVD could expand, which could have a material adverse effect on BLVD’s business, financial 
condition and results of operations. 

Enforcement Risk 

The sale and distribution of marijuana in certain United States is legal subject to compliance with 
applicable state regulatory regimes. United States federal law currently classifies marijuana as a 
controlled substance and its manufacture, sale, distribution, and use is illegal under United States federal 
law. The United States Department of Justice may interfere with the sale or distribution of marijuana in 
United States where such sale and distribution is legal provided the regulations are complied with. The 
enforcement of relevant laws is a significant risk if BLVD operates in the cannabis industry.  

BLVD is exploring opportunities in the medical and recreational marijuana industries in the United States 
and Canada. Certain United States have recently legalized medical marijuana, and certain United States 
have further legalized the recreational use of marijuana. BLVD’s objective is to capitalize on the 
opportunities presented as a result of the changing regulatory environment governing the marijuana 
industry. In the past, Canadian courts and regulatory authorities have taken the view that it is not contrary 
to Canadian or provincial law for an entity to hold interests in affiliates that are engaged in regulated 
activities where such activities may be regulated differently than in the home jurisdictions and have 
enforced extra-territorial laws even where such laws (or regulatory regimes applicable to certain activities 
or industries) differs from those in the Canadian jurisdiction. There is a risk; however, that the courts may 
take contrary view in the future. 

Additionally, because marijuana is illegal under United States federal law, the courts in the United States 
may take the position that parties to contracts involving marijuana, whether directly or indirectly, may not 
enforce such contracts because they concern an illegal product or activity. 

Notwithstanding the permissive regulatory environment of cannabis at the state level in certain states, 
cannabis continues to be categorized as a Schedule 1 controlled substance under the CSA. As such, 
cannabis-related practices or activities, including without limitation, the cultivation, manufacture, 
importation, possession, use or distribution of cannabis, are illegal under United States federal law. Strict 
compliance with state laws with respect to cannabis will neither absolve BLVD of liability under United 
States federal law, nor will it provide a defense to any federal proceeding which may be brought against 
BLVD. Any such proceedings brought against BLVD may adversely affect its operations and financial 
performance. 

Because of the conflicting views between state legislatures and the federal government of the United 
States regarding cannabis, investments in cannabis businesses in the United States are subject to 
inconsistent legislation, regulation, and enforcement. Unless and until the United States Congress 
amends the CSA with respect to cannabis or the Drug Enforcement Agency reschedules or de-schedules 
cannabis (and as to the timing or scope of any such potential amendments there can be no assurance), 
there is a risk that federal authorities may enforce current federal law, which would adversely affect the 
current and future investments of BLVD in the United States. As a result of the tension between state and 
federal law, there are a number of risks associated with BLVD’s future investments in the United States. 

For the reasons set forth above, should BLVD enter the cannabis space, it will be subject to heightened 
scrutiny by regulators, stock exchanges, clearing agencies and other authorities in Canada. It has been 
reported by certain publications in Canada that the Canadian Depository for Securities Limited may 
implement policies that would see its subsidiary, CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc. (“CDS”), 
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refuse to settle trades for cannabis issuers that have investments in the United States. CDS is Canada’s 
central securities depository, clearing and settlement hub settling trades in the Canadian equity, fixed 
income and money markets. The TMX Group, the owner and operator of CDS, subsequently issued a 
statement on August 17, 2017 reaffirming that there is no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of issuers 
with cannabis-related activities in the United States, despite media reports to the contrary and that the 
TMX Group was working with regulators to arrive at a solution that will clarify this matter, which would be 
communicated at a later time. 

On February 8, 2018, following discussions with the Canadian Securities Administrators (“CSA”) and 
recognized Canadian securities exchanges, the TMX Group announced the signing of a Memorandum of 
Understanding (“TMX MOU”) with Aequitas NEO Exchange Inc., the CSE, the Toronto Stock Exchange, 
and the TSX Venture Exchange. The TMX MOU outlines the parties’ understanding of Canada’s 
regulatory framework applicable to the rules, procedures, and regulatory oversight of the exchanges and 
CDS as it relates to issuers with cannabis-related activities in the United States. The TMX MOU confirms, 
with respect to the clearing of listed securities, that CDS relies on the exchanges to review the conduct of 
listed issuers. As a result, there is no CDS ban on the clearing of securities of issuers with cannabis-
related activities in the United States. However, there can be no guarantee that this approach to 
regulation will continue in the future. If such a ban was to be implemented while BLVD operates in the 
cannabis industry, it would have a material adverse effect on the ability of holders of BLVD Shares to 
make and settle trades. In particular, the BLVD Shares would become highly illiquid as until an alternative 
was implemented, investors would have no ability to effect a trade of the BLVD Shares through the 
facilities of a stock exchange.  

Regulation that may Hinder BLVD’s Ability to Establish and Maintain Bank Accounts 

The United States federal prohibitions on the sale of marijuana may result in BLVD, or royalty producers 
or other persons with whom BLVD contracts, from accessing the United States banking system and they 
may be unable to deposit funds in federally insured and licensed banking institutions. While BLVD does 
not anticipate dealing with banking restrictions directly relating to its business at this time, banking 
restrictions could nevertheless be imposed in the event that BLVD’s banking institutions do not accept 
payments from certain parties whose operations involve marijuana. Businesses operating in the 
marijuana space require heavy security with respect to holding and transport of cash, whether or not they 
have bank accounts. 

In the event financial service providers do not accept accounts or transactions related to the marijuana 
industry, it is possible that royalty producers or other entities with whom BLVD may contract may seek 
alternative payment solutions, including but not limited to crypto currencies. There are risks inherent in 
crypto currencies, most notably volatility and security issues. If the industry was to move towards 
alternative payment solutions and accept payments in crypto currency, BLVD would have to adopt 
policies and protocols to manage its volatility and exchange rate risk exposures. BLVD’s inability to 
manage such risks may adversely affect BLVD’s operations and financial performance. 

Ability to Access Public and Private Capital 

In the event that BLVD operates in the cannabis industry in the United, States, BLVD may not be able to 
obtain bank financing in the United States or financing from other United States federally regulated 
entities. BLVD currently has access to equity financing through the public markets in Canada. If such 
equity financing was no longer available in the public markets in Canada due to changes in applicable 
law, then BLVD expects that it would have access to raise equity and/or debt financing privately.  

Commercial banks, private equity firms and venture capital firms have approached the cannabis industry 
cautiously to date. However there are increasing numbers of high net worth individuals and family offices 
that have made meaningful investments in companies operating in the cannabis space. Although there 
has been an increase in the amount of private financing available over the last several years, there is 
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neither a broad nor deep pool of institutional capital that is available to cannabis license holders and 
license applicants. There can be no assurance that additional financing, if raised privately, will be 
available to BLVD when needed or on terms which are acceptable. BLVD’s inability to raise financing to 
fund capital expenditures or acquisitions could limit its growth and may have a material adverse effect 
upon future profitability.  

BLVD may require equity and/or debt financing to undertake capital expenditures or to undertake 
acquisitions or other business combination transactions. There can be no assurance that additional 
financing will be available to BLVD when needed or on terms that are commercially viable. BLVD’s 
inability to raise financing to fund capital expenditures or acquisitions could limit its growth and may have 
a material adverse effect upon future profitability. 

If additional funds are raised through further issuances of equity or convertible debt securities, existing 
shareholders could suffer significant dilution. Any debt financing secured in the future could involve 
restrictive covenants relating to capital raising activities and other financial and operational matters, which 
may make it more difficult for BLVD to obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities, 
including potential acquisitions. 

Product Liability, Operational Risk 

As a manufacturer and distributor of products designed to be ingested by humans, BLVD faces an 
inherent risk of exposure to product liability claims, regulatory action and litigation if its products are 
alleged to have caused significant loss or injury. In addition, previously unknown adverse reactions 
resulting from human consumption of products sold or marketed by BLVD alone or in combination with 
other medications or substances could occur. BLVD may be subject to various product liability claims, 
including, among others, that BLVD’s products caused injury or illness, include inadequate instructions for 
use or include inadequate warnings concerning possible side effects or interactions with other 
substances. A product liability claim or regulatory action against BLVD could result in increased costs, 
could adversely affect BLVD’s reputation with its clients and consumers generally, and could have a 
material adverse effect on its results of operations and financial condition. There can be no assurances 
that BLVD will be able to obtain or maintain product liability insurance on acceptable terms or with 
adequate coverage against potential liabilities. Such insurance is expensive and may not be available in 
the future on acceptable terms, or at all, in respect to some or all of BLVD’s products or potential 
products. The inability to obtain sufficient insurance coverage on reasonable terms or to otherwise protect 
against potential product liability claims could prevent or inhibit the commercialization of BLVD’s potential 
products. 

Product Recalls 

Manufacturers and distributors of products are sometimes subject to the recall or return of their products 
for a variety of reasons, including product defects, such as contamination, unintended harmful side effects 
or interactions with other substances, packaging safety and inadequate or inaccurate labeling disclosure. 
If any of the products developed or sold by BLVD are recalled due to an alleged product defect or for any 
other reason, BLVD could be required to incur the unexpected expense relating to the recall and any legal 
proceedings that might arise in connection with the recall. In addition, a product recall may require 
significant management attention. Although BLVD intends to establish procedures to test finished 
products, there can be no assurance that any quality, potency or contamination problems will be detected 
in time to avoid unforeseen product recalls, regulatory action or lawsuits. A recall could lead to decreased 
demand for BLVD’s products and could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations and 
financial condition of BLVD. Additionally, product recalls may lead to increased scrutiny of BLVD’s 
operations by the regulatory agencies, requiring further management attention and potential legal fees 
and other expenses. 
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BLVD’s operations can also be substantially affected by adverse publicity resulting from quality, illness, 
injury, health concerns, public opinion, or operating issues. BLVD will attempt to manage these factors, 
but the occurrence of any one or more of these factors could materially and adversely affect the BLVD’s 
business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Risks Inherent in an Agricultural Business 

BLVD’s business may involve the growing of, or reliance on the growing of, marijuana, an agricultural 
product. As such, the business is subject to the risks inherent in the agricultural business, such as 
insects, plant diseases and similar agricultural risks. Although BLVD expects that its products will be 
grown or sourced from growers who grow indoors under climate controlled conditions, carefully monitored 
by trained personnel, there can be no assurance that natural elements will not have a material adverse 
effect on production. 

Transportation Disruptions 

Due to the perishable and premium nature of agricultural products, BLVD will most likely depend on fast 
and efficient courier services to distribute its products. Any prolonged disruption of courier services could 
have an adverse effect on the financial condition and results of operations of BLVD. Rising costs 
associated with the courier services used by BLVD to ship products may also adversely impact the 
business of BLVD and its ability to profitably sell its products and potential products. 

Uninsurable Risks 

The medical and retail marijuana business is subject to several risks that could result in damage to or 
destruction of properties or facilities or cause personal injury or death, environmental damage, delays in 
production and monetary losses and possible legal liability. It is not always possible to fully insure against 
such risks, and BLVD may decide not to take out insurance against such risks as a result of high 
premiums or other reasons. Should such liabilities arise, they could reduce or eliminate any future 
profitability and result in Increasing costs and a decline in the value of the securities of BLVD.  

17.3 Risk of Liability for Additional Contribution  

There is no risk that securityholders of the Issuer may become liable to make an additional contribution 
beyond the price of the security. 

18. PROMOTERS  

18.1 Promotors 

There are currently no promotors of the Issuer. 

18.2 Orders, Bankruptcies and Sanctions 

Not applicable.  

19. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

19.1 Legal Proceedings 

There are no material legal proceedings to which BLVD is a party or in respect of which any of the assets 
of BLVD are subject, which is or will be material to BLVD, and BLVD is not aware of any such 
proceedings that are contemplated. 
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19.2 Regulatory Actions  

There have been: (i) no penalties or sanctions imposed against BLVD by a court relating to securities 
legislation or by a securities regulatory authority; (ii) no other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or 
regulatory body against BLVD; and (iii) no settlement agreements BLVD entered into with a court relating 
to securities legislation or with a securities regulatory authority. 

20. INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS 

Other than as disclosed elsewhere herein, management of BLVD is not aware of any material interest, 
direct or indirect, by way of beneficial ownership of securities or otherwise, of any director or executive 
officer of BLVD, any person or company who owns of record, or is known by BLVD to own beneficially, 
directly or indirectly, more than 10% of the BLVD Shares or any associate or affiliate of the foregoing 
persons or companies, in any transaction within the three years before the date of this Appendix (other 
than through their interests as securityholders of Iberian) that has materially affected or is reasonably 
expected to materially affect BLVD since incorporation. 

21. AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRARS 

Auditors 

The auditor of the Issuer is MNP LLP, 300 - 111 Richmond Street West, Toronto, Ontario M5H 2G4.

Transfer Agent and Registrar 

The transfer agent and registrar of the BLVD Shares is Computershare Investor Services Inc., 3rd Floor, 
510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 3B9. 

22. MATERIAL CONTRACTS 

Other than as set forth elsewhere in this Listing Statement, the Issuer has not entered into any contracts 
material to investors in the BLVD Shares. 

Copies of these agreements will be available for inspection during normal business hours at the principal 
offices of BLVD.  

23. INTEREST OF EXPERTS 

The auditor of BLVD, MNP LLP, has confirmed that it is independent to BLVD in accordance with the 
Code of Professional Conduct of the Chartered Professional Accountants of British Columbia. 

In addition, none of the aforementioned persons or companies, nor any director, officer, employee or 
partner, as applicable, of any of the aforementioned persons or companies, is or is expected to be 
elected, appointed or employed as a director, officer or employee of BLVD or of any associate or affiliate 
of BLVD. 

24. OTHER MATERIAL FACTS 

There are no other material facts that are not elsewhere disclosed herein and which are necessary in 
order for this document to contain full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the Issuer. 
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25. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

25.1 Financial Statements of Issuer 

The Annual Financials and Annual MD&A are attached hereto as Schedule A, and the Interim Financials 
and Interim MD&A are attached hereto as Schedule B. 
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CERTIFICATE OF THE ISSUER 

Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, BLVD CENTERS CORPORATION, 
hereby applies for the listing of the above mentioned securities on the Exchange. The foregoing contains 
full, true and plain disclosure of all material information relating to BLVD CENTERS CORPORATION. It 
contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is required 
to be stated or that is necessary to prevent a statement that is made from being false or misleading in 
light of the circumstances in which it was made. 

Dated this 20
th
 day of June, 2018. 

signed “Christopher Heath” signed “Pablo Mendez” 
Christopher Heath
Chief Executive Officer, Director  

Pablo Mendez
Interim Chief Financial Officer 

signed “Edward John Allera” signed “Nitin Kaushal” 
Edward John Allera
Director 

Nitin Kaushal
Director 
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Schedule A 

Annual Financial Statements and Managements’ Discussion and Analysis 

See attached. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
To the Shareholders of BLVD Centers Corporation (formerly, Convalo Health International, Corp.): 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of BLVD Centers Corporation (formerly, Convalo 
Health International, Corp.) and its subsidiaries (the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of 
financial position as at February 28, 2017 and February 29, 2016, and the consolidated statements of loss and 
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended February 28, 2017, and for the period from 
December 1, 2014 to February 29, 2016, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors' Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Company as at February 28, 2017 and February 29, 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flow for the year 
ended February 28, 2017 and for the period from December 1, 2014 to February 29, 2016, in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 

Emphasis of Matter 
 
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 in the consolidated financial statements which indicates that 
the Company incurred a net loss of approximately CDN$29,524,000 during the year ended February 28, 2017 and as 
of that date, the Company had an accumulated deficit of approximately CDN$34,105,000. These conditions, along with 
other matters as set forth in Note 2, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt 
about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
 
  
 
 
June 28, 2017 Chartered Professional Accountants 
Toronto, Ontario Licensed Public Accountants 
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BLVD Centers Corporation (formerly, Convalo Health International, Corp.) 
Consolidated statements of financial position 
As of February 28, 2017, and February 29, 2016 
(CAD $000s) 
 

  February 28, 2017 February 29, 2016 

ASSETS    

Current    

Cash and restricted cash (note 4)  $8,982  $19,788  

Accounts receivable, net (note 4 and 5)   8,373   6,439  

Prepaid expenses   1,416   710  

Other current assets   8   25  

Total current assets  $18,779  $26,962  

Long-term    
Property, plant and equipment (note 4 and 6) $4,775  $4,172  

Prepaid finance fee 1,396 - 

Deposits and other assets   368   323  

Goodwill (note 4 and 8)   -     10,265  

Intangible assets, net (note 4 and 8)   41   3,288  

Deferred tax assets (note 12)   -   544  

Total long-term assets  $6,580  $18,592  

TOTAL ASSETS  $25,359  $45,554  

LIABILITIES    

Current liabilities    

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $4,274  $3,380  

Current portion of finance leases (note 9)   2,760   46  

Total current liabilities  $7,034  $3,426  

Long-term liabilities    

Long-term portion of finance leases (note 9) $2,185  $73  

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 12)   -  138  

Total long-term liabilities  $2,185  $211  

TOTAL LIABILITIES  $9,219  $3,637  

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY    

Share capital (note 10)  $40,718  $40,235  

Shares to be issued  $2,340  -  

Contributed surplus   4,471   2,330  

Accumulated other comprehensive gain   2,716   3,933  

Accumulated deficit   (34,105)  (4,581) 

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY  $16,140  $41,917  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY $25,359  $45,554  

  Going concern (note 2) 
  Commitments (note 16) 
  Contingencies (note 18) 
  Subsequent events (note 20)   Approved on behalf of the Board 

Chris Heath  Nitin Kaushal 
Director [signed]  Director [signed] 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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BLVD Centers Corporation (formerly, Convalo Health International, Corp.) 
Consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss 
For the year ended February 28, 2017 and fifteen months ended February 29, 2016 
(CAD $000s) 
 

  

Year ended  
February 28, 2017 

Fifteen months ended  
February 29, 2016 

Revenues  $29,658  $23,688  

Cost of services (note 11)   12,059   10,558  

Gross Profit   17,599   13,130  

    

Expenses    

Facilities (Note 11)  $3,172  $2,128  

Sales and marketing (Note 11)   4,953   4,464  

Bad debt expense   8,313   959  

New facility start-up costs and nonrecurring cost  1,158   315  

General and administrative (Note 11)   6,498   3,229  

Billing and other outside services (Note 11)   6,177   2,383  

Depreciation and amortization   1,363   639  

Stock based compensation (note 4)   2,141   2,353  

Realized foreign exchange   7   (317) 

Interest expense/(income)   500   21  

Goodwill and intangible assets impairment   12,435   -    

Net loss before income taxes   (29,118)  (3,044) 

Deferred tax (expense) recovery (note 12)  (406)  406 

Net loss   (29,524)  (2,638) 

    

Other comprehensive (loss) Income    

Amounts that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: 

Cumulative translation adjustment   (1,217)  3,822  

Comprehensive (loss) income   (30,741)  1,184  

    

Basic and diluted loss per share (note 17)  (0.13) (0.01) 

    

    

    

Weighted average number of common shares    

Basic and diluted   229,596,267   171,721,187  

     

  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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BLVD Centers Corporation (formerly, Convalo Health International, Corp.) 
Consolidated statements of changes in equity 
For the year ended February 28, 2017 and fifteen months ended February 29, 2016 
(CAD $000s) 
 
    

  Shares 
Share  

Capital 
Shares to 
be issued 

Contributed  
Surplus Deficit 

Accumulated 
other  

comprehensive  
gain (loss) 

Total  
equity 

Balance November 30, 2014   71,089,550  $4,114  $0  $44  ($1,943) $111  $2,326  

Net loss   -     -     -     -     (2,638)  -     (2,638) 

Other Comprehensive gain   -     -     -     -     -     3,822   3,822  

Private placement - (net of costs) (note 10 (v))   29,070,000   2,648   -     60   -     -     2,708  

Shares issued to Valiant shareholders (note 2)   5,900,000   590   -     -     -     -     590  

Private placement - bought deal (net of costs) (note 
10 (vi)) 

 43,125,000   10,547   -     5,236   -     -     15,783  

Warrants exercised/expired (net of costs)   64,781,500   17,488   -     (5,164)  -     -     12,324  

Options exercised (note 10)   2,000,000   348   -     (143)  -     -     205  

Shares issued for purchase of Harmony Hollywood, 
LLC and Reflections Recovery (note 7)  

 12,000,000   4,500   -     -     -     -     4,500  

Option related compensation (note 10)  -  -     -     2,297   -     -     2,297  

Balance February 29, 2016   227,966,050  $40,235  $0  $2,330  ($4,581) $3,933  $41,917  

Net loss   -     -     -     -     (29,524)  -     (29,524) 

Other Comprehensive loss   -     -     -     -     -     (1,217)  (1,217) 

Shares issued for services (note 9)   4,350,000   457   -     -     -     -     457  

Shares issued for compensation   234,684   19   -    - - -  19  

Warrants exercised   66,500   7   -     -     -     -     7  

Shares to be issued   -     -     2,340   -     -     -     2,340  

Stock based compensation (note 10)   -     -      2,141   -     -     2,141  

Balance February 28, 2017   232,617,234  $40,718  $2,340  $4,471  ($34,105) $2,716  $16,140  

 

 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 



BLVD Centers Corporation (formerly, Convalo Health International, Corp.) 
Consolidated statements of cash flow 
For the year ended February 28, 2017 and fifteen months ended February 29, 2016 
(CAD $000s) 
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   Twelve months ended Fifteen months ended  

   February 28, 2017 February 29, 2016 

     

Cash flow from operating activities     

Net loss    $(29,524) $ (2,638) 

Items not affecting cash:     

Goodwill and intangible assets impairment    12,435   -    

Stock based compensation    2,141   2,353  

Share based payment    476   -    

Bad Debt Expense    8,313   947  

Listing Expense    -     318  

Loss on disposal    -     23  

Amortization of prepaid finance fee   452 - 

Deferred Tax Expense (Recovery)    395     (406) 

Depreciation and amortization    1,363   639  

    (3,949)  1,236  

Changes in working capital:     

Accounts receivable    (10,694)  (4,553) 

Prepaid expenses, deposits and other assets    (392)  (167) 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    3,910   (1,328) 

Net cash used in operating activities    (11,125)  (4,812) 

     

Investing activities     

Cash paid for acquisition, net of cash acquired   -     (7,006) 

Repayments/(advances) of loan receivable, net   -     16  

Purchase of property, plant and equipment    (1,394)  (3,940) 

Net cash from investing activities    (1,394)  (10,930) 

     

Financing activities     

Cash acquired in amalgamation    -     304  

Proceeds from private placement    -     18,491  

Proceeds from warrants and options exercised, net of issue costs  7   12,529  

Proceeds from borrowings    2,185   -    

Net cash from financing activities    2,192   31,324  

     

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash    (479)  2,088  

     

Net (decrease) increase in cash    (10,806)  17,670  

Cash and restricted cash balance, beginning of year    19,788   2,118  

Cash and restricted cash balance, end of period   $8,982  $19,788  

 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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1. Incorporation and operations 

BLVD Centers Corporation (formerly, Convalo Health International, Corp.) (the “Company” or “Convalo”) was incorporated under the 
Business Corporations Act (British Colombia) (“BCBCA”) on June 7, 2013. On February 11, 2015 as a result of the Amalgamation 
transaction described in Note 2, Convalo obtained the listing status of Valiant Minerals Ltd. (“Valiant”), on the NEX trading board of the 
TSX Venture Exchange (the “Exchange”). Convalo trades under the trading symbol “CXV.” 

Convalo is focused on the United States detoxification and outpatient rehabilitation market. The Company operates high-end treatment 
centers in California and Oregon. In the state of California, treatment centers are located in Los Angeles, Orange County, Corona and 
San Diego. In the state of Oregon, the centers are located in Portland. The Company also operates an internal laboratory in Tempe, 
Arizona and the Company’s headquarters and registered address is 448 South Hill Street Los Angeles, CA.   

2. Basis of presentation 

Statement of compliance 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Accounting Standards 
(“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). These consolidated financial statements were approved 
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on June 28, 2017.  

Basis of presentation and measurement 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and have been presented in Canadian dollars (or “CAD” in 
thousands), except for share and per share information. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical 
cost convention, except for the measurement of certain financial instruments at fair value as required by IFRS. The Board of Directors of 
the Company has approved a change in the Company's fiscal year end from November 30 to end of February of each year and accordingly 
the consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated statement of changes 
in equity and all footnote continuity schedules for the period ended February 29, 2016 are for the fifteen months ended February 29, 2016, 
whereas the comparatives for the current year ended February 28, 2017 represent a twelve month period. 

Going concern 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The application of the going concern basis of 
presentation assumes that the Company will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and can realize its assets and discharge its 
liabilities and commitments in the normal course of operation. In the current year, the company incurred a loss of $29,524 (2016 - $2,638), 
including goodwill and intangible assets impairment of $12,435 (2016 - $Nil), and has an accumulated deficit of $34,105 (2016 - $4,581) as 
at February 28, 2017. These conditions represent material uncertainty that raise significant doubt, caused primarily due to a write-down of 
goodwill and intangible assets, as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. In assessing whether the going concern 
assumption is appropriate, Management takes into account all available information about the future, which is at least, but not limited to, 
twelve months from the end of the reporting period. This assessment is based upon planned actions that may or may not occur for a number 
of reasons including the Company’s own resources and external market conditions. These consolidated financial statements do not include 
any adjustments to the amounts and classifications of assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to 
continue as a going concern.  Management of the Company plans to fund its future operations and settle its debt by obtaining additional 
financing through loans and share issue.  

Basis of consolidation 

The Company consolidates all subsidiaries. As such, assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of all subsidiaries have been consolidated. 
All inter-company transactions and balances with subsidiaries have been eliminated. The functional currency for BLVD Centers 
Corporation (formerly, Convalo Health International, Corp.) is Canadian dollars.  

The consolidated entities include the following wholly-owned subsidiaries: 

 

Entity Country of domicile % Ownership Functional Currency 

Accredited Rehab and Treatment Services, LLC United States 100% United States dollars 
BLVD Centers Inc.   United States 100% United States dollars 
CBD Laboratories, Inc. United States 100% United States dollars 
Convalo Health, Inc. United States 100% United States dollars 
Harmony Hollywood, LLC United States 100% United States dollars 
Reflections Recovery, LLC United States 100% United States dollars 
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San Diego Detox, Inc. United States 100% United States dollars 
Portland Detox & Residential, Inc. United States 100% United States dollars 
    

As of February 28, 2017 and February 29, 2016, and for all the periods then ended, all of the Company’s revenues were earned and all 
of the Company’s non-current assets were located in the United States. 

2.    Basis of Consolidation (cont’d) 

 

Reporting Currency 

All values are in Canadian dollars ($) in thousands, unless specifically indicated otherwise. United States dollars are indicated as US$. 

3. Accounting standards issued but not yet effective 

The IASB has issued several new standards and amendments that will be effective on various dates. The listing below is of standards, 
interpretation and amendments issued which the Company reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date. The Company intended 
to adopt those standards when they become effective. The impact on the Company is currently being assessed. 
 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments  
 
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 (2014) as a complete standard including the requirements previously issued and 
the additional amendments to introduce a new expected loss impairment model and limited changes to the classification and 
measurement requirements for financial assets. This Standard will replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. 
IFRS 9 (2014) is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. The Company has yet 
to fully assess the impact of the new standard on its results of operations, financial position and disclosures. 
 
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers  
 
In May 2014, the IASB issued a new standard, (“IFRS”,) on the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers. IFRS 15(revenue 
from contracts with customer) specifies how and when entities recognize revenue, as well as requires more detailed and relevant 
disclosures. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Earlier application is permitted. The 
Company has yet to fully assess the impact of the new standard on its results of operations, financial position and disclosures. 
 
IFRS 16, Leases (“IFRS 16”) was issued by the IASB on January 13, 2016. The Company will be required to adopt IFRS 16 in its consolidated 
financial statements for the annual period beginning on January 1, 2019. The new standard introduces a single lessee accounting model 
and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of 
low value. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability 
representing its obligation to make lease payments. This standard substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements of IAS 
17, while requiring enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessors. Management is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, that 
the adoption of IFRS 16 will have on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.  

4. Summary of significant accounting policies 

The consolidated financial statements include the following significant accounting policies: 

Revenue recognition 

The Company’s revenues primarily consist of service charges related to providing addiction treatment and related services to clients in 
both inpatient and outpatient settings. The majority of the Company’s revenues are reimbursable by commercial payors, at out-of-
network rates, with the remaining revenues payable directly by the Company’s clients. The Company bills commercial payors, once 
insurance has been verified and services have been performed, based on usual and customary rates for each service. These billed rates 
are discounted to expected reimbursement rates (or net realizable value) as determined by management after taking into account the 
type of services provided and the historical collections received from the commercial payors for each service, on a per facility basis. 
Revenue from commercial payors is recognized based on these expected reimbursement rates at the time services are provided. 
Revenue from clients is recognized based on collections, once services have been completed. Collections occur upon admission and/or 
are billed and collected once a client discharges from treatment.  From time to time, the Company provides free care to a limited 
number of clients, which are referred to as scholarships. The Company does not recognize revenues for scholarships provided. 
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4.    Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d) 

Cash and Restricted Cash 

Cash comprises cash on-hand and demand deposits that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash also includes cash held in trust or escrow as security of credit card authorization limit. In 
the consolidated statements of financial position, the company included $603 of cash held in a trust account.  

Accounts receivable 
 
Accounts receivable are recorded at the time revenue is recognized and are presented on the statements of consolidated financial 
position net of allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company performs regular analysis to evaluate the net realizable value of accounts 
receivable as of the statement of financial position date. Specifically, the Company considers historical realization data, accounts 
receivable aging trends, other operating trends and relevant business conditions.  

 
Income taxes 
 
The Company and its subsidiaries are generally taxable under the statutes of their country of incorporation. Current income tax assets 
and liabilities for the current and prior period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized 
directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of loss and comprehensive income. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
establishes provisions where appropriate. The Company follows the liability method of accounting for deferred taxes. Under this method, 
income tax liabilities and assets are recognized for the estimated tax consequences attributable to the temporary differences between 
the carrying value of the assets and liabilities on the consolidated financial statements and their respective tax bases. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss or in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments 
in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets 
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow 
the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current income tax assets against 
current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, would be 
recognized subsequently if information about facts and circumstances changed. The adjustment would either be treated as a reduction 
to goodwill if it occurred during the measurement period or in the statement of loss and comprehensive income, when it occurs 
subsequent to the measurement period. 
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4.    Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d) 

Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Major renewals and improvements are charged to the 
property accounts, while maintenance and repairs, which do not extend the useful life of the respective assets, are expensed as incurred. 
All assets having limited useful lives are depreciated from the date of acquisition using the straight-line method over their estimated 
useful lives.  
 

The methods of depreciation and useful life applicable for each class of asset are as follows: 

Category Method Useful Life 

Furniture and fixtures Straight-line 3-7 years 
Computer hardware Straight-line 3 years 
Vehicles Straight-line 5 years 
Leasehold improvements Straight-line Term of lease 
Buildings Straight-line 27-28 years 

 
Land owned by the Company is not depreciated.  

Useful lives, components, the depreciation method and residual amounts are reviewed annually. Such a review takes into consideration 
the nature of the assets and the intended evolution of the technology. Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the 
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in net income (loss). 
 
Intangible assets  
 
The Company has recorded various intangible assets consisting primarily of non-compete agreements, customer relationships and 
software.  Non-compete agreements are the value associated with the non-compete agreements entered into by the sellers of acquired 
companies.  Customer relationships are the value given in the purchase price allocation to the long-term associations with referral sources 
such as doctors, medical centers, etc.  Finite life intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of the related assets as follows: 
 
 

Category Useful Life 

Customer relationships 5 years 

Non-compete agreements 5 years 
Software 3 years 

  
At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses whether there has been any indication that an asset may be impaired. If an 
impairment indicator exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is determined and compared to the carrying amount of the asset. If the 
recoverable amount is lower, any difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount is written off to the consolidated 
statements of loss and comprehensive income as an impairment charge. As a result of performance and sales target being missed, the 
Company impaired the value of its intangible customer relationships and non-compete agreements and recognized an impairment loss of 
$2,487 during the year ended February 28, 2017 (Note 8). 
 
Goodwill 
 
Goodwill represents the difference between the purchase price for acquisitions and the fair value of identifiable tangible and intangible 
assets acquired. All of the Company’s goodwill arose as a result of the acquisitions of Harmony Hollywood, LLC and Accredited Rehab and 
Treatment Services, LLC on June 29, 2015 (note 7).  The goodwill arose as a result of synergies expected to benefit all of Convalo, including 
the addition of key management personnel and merging of all operations. As a result, the lowest level cash generating unit or the (“CGU”) 
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes is at the total Company level. 
  
Goodwill for the CGU is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is an indication that the goodwill may be impaired. 
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of  
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4.    Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d) 

Goodwill (cont’d) 
 
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount 
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other 
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized directly in profit or 
loss (Note 7). An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.  

 
Acquisition accounting 

The Company accounts for business acquisitions where control is acquired as business combinations under IFRS 3, Business 
Combinations, which requires the allocation of the purchase price to the various tangible and intangible assets and liabilities of the 
acquired business at their respective fair values with excess recorded as goodwill. The Company uses all available information to 
determine the fair values of the various tangible and intangible assets and liabilities acquired. 
 
Stock based compensation and warrants 

The Company measures share based payments to employees and contractors by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at 
the date on which they are granted or committed. The fair value of shares is based on recent transactions with arm’s length parties. The 
Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of options and warrants. The inputs into the Black-
Scholes model, including the expected life of the instrument, expected volatility, risk-free interest rate, dividend yield and expected 
forfeiture rate are determined by reference to the underlying terms of the instrument, the Company’s experience with similar 
instruments and observable market data. The assumptions used for estimating fair value of share based payments, options and warrants 
are disclosed in Note 10. The value of options is expensed on a graded basis over the vesting or service period for each tranche. Warrants 
are issued in connection with common stock issuances and accordingly the fair value of warrants is netted off against the proceeds from 
the issuance and recorded as contributed surplus. Stock based compensation for the twelve months ended February 28, 2017 was $2,141 
and $2,353 or the fifteen months ended February 29, 2016.   
 
Basic and diluted loss per share 

 
The Company presents basic and diluted loss per share data for its common shares, calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable 
to common shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
loss per share is determined by adjusting the loss attributable to common shareholders and the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential securities, which are comprised of stock options and warrants. Diluted loss per 
share is not shown where the effects of the above adjustments are anti-dilutive. 
 
Foreign currency translation 

 
Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency and items included in the consolidated financial statements of each 
entity are measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities in 
their respective functional currency at rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. 

 
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting 
date and their statements of loss are translated at the average rate of exchange for the period being reported. The exchange differences 
arising on the translation are recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of 
other comprehensive income (loss) relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in profit or loss.  

Functional Currency  

The Company determines the functional currency for each entity by performing an assessment of the primary economic environment in 
which each entity operates. The determination of functional currency affects how the Company translates foreign currency balances 
and transactions. As a holding company, management of BLVD Centers Corporation (formerly knowns as Convalo Health International 
Corp.) considered the currency that primarily influences the issuance of shares, outstanding options, incurring of costs and inter-
company receivables, all of which are in Canadian dollars. Management thus concluded that the functional currency of BLVD Centers 
Corporation (formerly, Convalo Health International, Corp.) is Canadian dollars. For Convalo Health, Inc. and its U.S. subsidiaries the 
Company reviewed the indicators that primarily influence or determine the selling price of its services and the cost of providing (note 3) 
services to be United States dollars.  
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4.    Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d) 

Leases 

The economic ownership of a leased asset is transferred to the lessee if the lessee bears substantially all the risks and rewards related 
to the ownership of the leased asset. The related asset is then recognized at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased 
asset or, if lower, the present value of the lease payments plus incidental payments, if any. A corresponding amount is recognized as a 
finance leasing liability, irrespective of whether some of these lease payments are payable up-front at the date of inception of the lease. 
Leases of land and building are classified separately and the minimum lease payments are allocated between the land and building 
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests at the inception of the lease. 
 
Assets under finance lease are amortized on a straight-line basis, over the shorter of the useful life and the lease term. The depreciation 
policy for depreciable leased assets is consistent with that for depreciable assets that are owned by the Company. The corresponding 
finance leasing liability is reduced by lease payments less finance charges, which are expensed as part of finance costs. 
 
All other leases are accounted for as operating leases, and payments are expensed on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred. 
              

        Financial instruments 
 

Financial assets and liabilities 
 

The Company classifies its financial assets as [i] financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, [ii] loans and receivables or [iii] 
available-for-sale, and its financial liabilities as either [i] financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or [ii] other financial 
liabilities. Appropriate classification of financial assets and liabilities is determined at the time of initial recognition or when reclassified 
in the statement of financial position.  
 
Financial instruments are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") 
 
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held-for-trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. 
Financial assets are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. This 
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as 
defined by IAS 39. 
 
Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in the fair value recognized in the 
statement of loss and comprehensive loss. Transaction costs on FVTPL are expensed as incurred. 
 

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic 
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held-for-trading. These 
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the statement of loss and comprehensive 
income. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would 
otherwise be required. 
 
Loans and receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 
Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest method less any impairment. The effective interest amortization is included in finance costs in the statement 
of loss and comprehensive loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized as finance costs in the statement of loss and 
comprehensive loss. 
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4.    Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d) 

Derecognition 
 

A financial asset is derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or when the Company has transferred 
its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets 
is impaired. A financial asset is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or 
more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, an incurred 'loss event', and that loss event has an impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. 
 
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial 
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines 
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a group of financial 
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for 
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of 
impairment. 

 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the 
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The present value of the estimated future cash flows is 
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. 
 
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit 
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to 
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance 
costs. 
 
Loans and receivables together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery. If, 
in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a 
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs. 
 

Other financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. All financial liabilities are initially measured at 
fair value. Transaction costs related other financial liabilities are included in the value of the instruments and amortized using the 
effective interest method. The effective interest expense is included in finance costs.  

 
Financial instrument classification 
 
The Company has designated its cash and restricted cash, accounts receivable, and loans receivable as loans and receivables and 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities as other financial liabilities. The Company has designated its finance leases as other financed 
liabilities.   
 

Derecognition 
 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. 
 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income. 
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4.    Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d) 

Interest income and expense 
 

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income or expense is recorded using the effective interest method, 
which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or 
a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income and expense is included 
in finance cost. 
 

Fair value of financial instruments 
 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is 
determined by reference to quoted market prices, without any deduction for transaction costs. 
 
For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques that are 
recognized by market participants. Such techniques may include using recent arm's length market transactions, reference to the current 
fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models. 
 
For those financial instruments where fair value is recognized in the statement of financial position the methods and assumptions used 
to develop fair value measurements have been classified into one of the three levels of the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments: 

 
Level 1 includes quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 includes inputs that are observable other than quoted prices included in Level 1. 
Level 3 includes inputs that are not based on observable market data. 
 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:  
 
Cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term 
maturities of these instruments.   

Impairment of non-financial assets 
 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If such an indication exists, 
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the the “CGU” to which the 
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual 
CGU’s, or they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU’s for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. 
 
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount 
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.  
 
Value in use is determined by discounting estimated future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market 
assessment of the time value of money and the specific risks of the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market 
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. The 
recoverable amount of assets that do not generate independent cash flows is determined based on the CGU to which the asset belongs. 
 
The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of 
the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.  
 
An impairment loss is recognized in the statements of loss and comprehensive income if an asset's carrying amount or that of the CGU 
to which it is allocated is higher than its recoverable amount. Impairment losses of CGUs are first charged against the carrying value of 
the goodwill balance included in the CGU and then against the value of the other assets, in proportion to their carrying amount. In the 
statements of loss and comprehensive income, the impairment losses are recognized in those expense categories consistent with the 
function of the impaired asset. 
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4.   Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d) 

Impairment of non-financial assets (cont’d) 
 

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's 
or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions 
used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the 
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such a reversal is recognized in 
the statements of loss and comprehensive income. 

Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amount 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.  

The following are the significant estimates that the Company has made in preparing the consolidated financial statements: 

Recognition of revenues 

Revenues from commercial payors are recognized based on expected realizable rates using historical collections rates by payor for each 
service provided. If no collections data is available for a payor (for example where the payor is new to the Company), the Company uses 
the Company-wide average reimbursement rate for that particular service. If commercial payors change their reimbursement rates for 
services already provided but not yet reimbursed, or a new payor rate is different from the estimated rate used, revenue is adjusted to 
account for the new rates. Because of continuing changes in the health care industry and third party reimbursement, it is possible the 
Company’s estimates could change, which could have a material impact on the Company’s recorded revenues and earnings. 

Valuation of accounts receivable 

The Company records bad debt expense based on the Company’s historical experience of denials from commercial insurers. Denials can 
be as a result of termed policies, client deductibles not met, client maximum benefits limit met, etc. In addition, management reviews 
accounts receivable in detail at each reporting period and provides for specific accounts that are deemed to not be collectible. Because 
of continuing changes in the health care industry and third party reimbursement, it is possible that the Company’s estimates could change, 
which could have a material impact on our operations and cash flows. If circumstances related to certain customers change or actual results 
differ from expectations, the Company’s estimate of the recoverability of receivables could fluctuate from that provided for in the consolidated 
financial statements. A change in estimate could impact expenses and accounts receivable. 

Valuation of deferred income tax assets 

The Company assesses the probability of taxable profits being available in the future based on its budget forecasts. These forecasts are 
adjusted to take account of certain non-taxable income and expenses and specific rules on the use of unused credits and tax losses. 
When a forecast shows a net profit, the Company considers that the use of deferred income taxes is probable and recognizes the benefit. 
When management believes that the benefits will not be realized, the deferred income tax asset is not recognized.  

Identification of cash-generating units 

The Company has allocated its tangible and intangible assets to the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows and 
that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets. The Company applied judgment to determine its cash-generating 
units. 

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 

The Company tests whether goodwill or intangible assets are impaired in accordance with International Accounting Standard (“IAS”) 36, 
Impairment of Assets. The recoverable amount of cash-generating units is determined based on a value in use calculation. The method 
requires an estimate of future cash flows and the selection of a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the net present value of the 
cash flows.
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4 .   Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d) 

Stock based compensation 

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of the Company’s issued stock options and warrants 
as prescribed by IFRS 2. The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires management to make various estimates about certain inputs 
into the model, including the expected option life, expected volatility, risk-free interest rate and expected dividend yield. A change in any 
of these estimates at the time the underlying options or warrants were issued would have impacted the Company’s equity and ongoing 
stock-based compensation expense. 

Segment reporting 

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be determined based on the Company’s internal reporting to the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
(‘CODM’). The CODM has been determined to be the CEO as he is primarily responsible for the allocation of resources and the assessment of 
performance.  
 
The CODM uses operating profit, as reviewed at monthly business review meetings, as the key measure of the Company’s results as it reflects 
the Company’s underlying performance for the period under evaluation. Operating profit is defined as profit on operations before interest, 
taxes, stock-based compensation, amortization of intangibles and impairment expenses.  
 
The CODM’s primary focus for review and resource allocation is the Company as a whole and not any component part of the business. All 
revenue streams for the business are managed centrally by functional teams (Sales and marketing, Billing and Collections and Finance) that 
have responsibility for the whole of the Company’s location portfolio. Although some discrete financial information is available to provide 
insight to the management team of the key performance drivers, location profit is not part of the CODM’s review. Having considered these 
factors, management has determined that the Company comprises one operating segment under IFRS 8. As such, the disclosures required 
under IFRS 8 for the consolidated financial statements are shown on the face of the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive income 
and consolidated statements of financial position.  

5. Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable   February 28, 2017  February 29, 2016 

Gross receivables  $17,714  $7,386  

Allowance for doubtful accounts   (9,341)  (947)  

Balance, ending  $8,373  $6,439  

Allowance for doubtful accounts  

For the year ended  
February 28, 2017 

Year ended  
February 29, 2016 

Balance, beginning  $947  $0  

Increase in provision   8,394   947  

Balance, ending  $9,341  $947  

 
The allowance for doubtful accounts ($9,341) includes a provision for an allowance of ($8,336) for a portion of the accounts receivables 
generated from services performed between March 1, 2016 and August 31, 2016 that became doubtful upon departure of the previous 
management and change to the billing vendor.  
 

6. Plant, Property and Equipment 

Net property, plant and equipment as of February 28, 
2017 Cost 

Accumulated 
depreciation Net 

Vehicles $265  ($85) $180  

Furniture and fixtures  716   (157)  559  

Computer hardware  473   (95)  378  

Leasehold improvement  1,251   (386)  865  

Buildings  2,343   (92)  2,251  

Land  542   -     542  

Net carrying amount $5,590  ($815) $4,775  
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6.  Plant, Property and Equipment (cont’d) 

 
Net property, plant and equipment as of February 29,2016 Cost 

Accumulated 
depreciation Net   

Vehicles $231  ($23) $208    

Furniture and fixtures  468   (25)  443    

Computer hardware  143   (25)  118    

Leasehold improvement  681   (49)  632    

Buildings 
 

2,223   (7)  2,216    

Land  555   -     555    

Net carrying amount $4,301  ($129) $4,172     

      

      

Cost: As of February 28,2017 

 At 
February  
29, 2016 Additions Disposals 

Foreign  
exchange  

impact 

At 
February 
28,2017 

Vehicles $231  $40  -  ($6) $265  

Furniture and fixtures  468   260   -     (12)  716  

Computer hardware  143   333   -     (3)  473  

Leasehold improvement  681   586   -     (16)  1,251  

Buildings  2,223   175   -     (55)  2,343  

Land  555   -     -     (13)  542  

Total cost $4,301  $1,394  -  ($105) $5,590  

      

      

Accumulated depreciation: 
As of February 28,2017 

At 
February  
29, 2016 Depreciation Disposals 

Foreign  
exchange  

impact 

At 
February 
28,2017 

Vehicles ($23) ($62) -  -  ($85) 

Furniture and fixtures  (25)  (131)  -     -     (156) 

Computer hardware  (25)  (71)  -     -     (96) 

Leasehold improvement  (49)  (336)  -     -     (385) 

Buildings  (7)  (86)  -     -     (93) 

Land  -     -     -     -     -    

Total cost ($129) ($686) -  -  ($815) 
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Cost: As of February 
29,2016  

At 
November 

30, 2014 Additions Disposals 

Additions 
through 
business 

combinations 

Foreign  
exchange  

impact 

At 
February 
29,2016 

Vehicles  $0  $163  $0  $35  $33  $231  

Furniture and fixtures   52   385   -     -    $31  $468  

Computer hardware   6   130   -     -    $7  $143  

Leasehold improvement   -     695   (48)  -    $34  $681  

Buildings   -     2,112   -     -    $111  $2,223  

Land   -     528   -     -    $27  $555  

Total cost  $58  $4,013  ($48) $35  $243  $4,301  

7. Acquisition of businesses 

The Company has determined that the below acquisitions were business combinations under IFRS 3 and are accounted for by applying the acquisition 
method. The Company makes purchase price allocations for each of the acquired businesses between tangible and intangible assets and liabilities, 
including goodwill and deferred taxes (if applicable). 

a) Harmony Hollywood, LLC 

On June 29, 2015, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of Harmony Hollywood, LLC ("HDC"), a behavioral health facility 
offering detox and residential treatment services for both men and women in and around the Hollywood and central Los Angeles area. The aggregate 
purchase price was $6,863, after taking into consideration the discount for shares issued and the contingent consideration, of which $3,999 was paid 
in cash. The consideration paid included issuance of 6,840,000 common shares of the Company subject to a hold period (of which, 2,280,000 shares 
will be held for 12 months, 2,280,000 shares will be held for 24 months, and 2,280,000 shares will be held for 36 months). The 25% discount was 
based on discounts for securities with similar hold periods based on published restricted stock studies. All transaction related costs have been 
expensed during the year. Included in the purchase is contingent consideration of $299 payable upon satisfaction of revenue and seller 
indemnification requirements. 

All of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. The following table summarizes the consideration paid for HDC 
and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognized at the acquisition date: 

 

 

 

 

 

Accumulated depreciation: 
As of February 29,2016  

At 
November 

30, 2014 Depreciation Disposals 

Foreign  
exchange  

impact 

At 
February 
28,2017 

Vehicles  $0  ($19) $0  ($4) ($23) 

Furniture and fixtures   (5)  (18)  -     (2)  (25) 

Computer hardware   -     (24)  -     (1)  (25) 

Leasehold improvement   -     (72)  25   (2)  (49) 

Buildings   -     (7)  -     -     (7) 

Land   -     -     -     -     -    

Total cost  ($5) ($140) $25  ($9) ($129) 
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Consideration: 
Cash $3,999 
Common shares issued (discounted) 2,565 
Contingent consideration 299 
Total $6,863 
Allocated as follows: 
Accounts receivable $1,031 
Prepaid expenses 16 
Deposits 131 

Other assets 68 
Accounts payable and liabilities (2,524) 
Customer relationships  1,425 
Non-compete agreements 138 
Goodwill 6,578 
Total $6,863 

The carrying value of the accounts receivable acquired approximated fair value. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts at the acquisition 
date. Revenue and net loss of $2,213 and $1,730, respectively, are included in the Company's consolidated financial statements for the fifteen 
months ended February 29, 2016. Had the acquisition been effected at December 1, 2014, revenue and net loss would have been approximately 
$4,149 and $3,244, respectively. 

b) Accredited Rehab and Treatment Services, LLC 

On June 29, 2015, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of Accredited Rehab and Treatment Services, LLC ("ARTS"), a 
behavioral health facility offering detox and residential treatment services for both men and woman in and around the Orange County, California 
area. The aggregate purchase price was $5,187 after taking into consideration the discount for shares and contingent consideration, of which 
$3,029 was paid in cash. The consideration paid included issuance of 5,160,000 common shares of the Company, subject to a hold 
period,1,720,000 shares will be held for 12 months, 1,720,000 shares will be held for 24 months, and 1,720,000 shares will be held for 36 months). 
The 25% discount was based on discounts for securities with similar hold periods based on published restricted stock studies. Included in the 
purchase is a contingent consideration of $223 payable upon satisfaction of revenue and other seller requirements. All transaction related costs 
have been expensed during the year. 

All of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. The following table summarizes the consideration paid for 
HDC and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognized at the acquisition date: 

c) Accredited Rehab and Treatment Services, LLC 

Consideration: 
Cash 
Common shares issued 
Contingent consideration 

$3,029 
1,935 

223 
Total $5,187 
Allocated as follows:   
Accounts receivable $815 
Prepaid expenses 36 
Cash equivalents 22 
Deposits 39 
Property and equipment 36 
Accounts payable and liabilities (568) 
Customer relationships 1,775 
Non-compete agreements 131 
Goodwill 2,901 
Total $5,187  
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The carrying value of the accounts receivable acquired approximated fair value. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts at the 
acquisition date. Revenue and net income of $6,261 and $689, respectively are included in the Company's consolidated financial 
statements for the fifteen months ended February 29, 2016. Had the acquisition been effected at December 1, 2014, revenue and net 
income would have been approximately $11,739 and $1,292, respectively. 

Transaction costs related to both the HDC and ARTS acquisitions amounted to $33 and were expensed as general and administrative 
costs during the period. 

8.  Goodwill and Intangible assets 

   Cost Goodwill 

Non-compete  

agreements Software 

Customer  

relationships 

Sub-total  
Intangibles with  

finite lives Total 

Balance November 30, 
2014 

$ -  $ - $ - $ - $ -  $ -  
Acquired through business 
combinations (Note 7) 9,479 269 

  
3,200 3,469 12,948 

Additions     35   35 35 

Effect of changes in 
exchange rates 786 22 2 265 289 1,075 

Balance February 29,2016 $10,265 $291 $37 $3,465 $3,793 $14,058 

          

 

  

Cost  Goodwill 

Non-
complete 

agreements Software 
Customer 

relationships 
Business 

Development 

Sub-total 
Intangibles 
with finite 

lives Total 

Balance February 29, 2016  $10,265  $291  $37  $3,465  -  $3,793  $14,058  

Additions   -     -     15   -     -     15   15  

Effect of changes in 
exchange rates   -     (6)  (1)  (79)  -     (86)  (86) 

Balance February 28,2017  $10,265  $285  $51  $3,386  -  $3,722  $13,987  

         

         

Accumulation 
Amortization  Goodwill 

Non-
complete 

agreements Software 
Customer 

relationships 
Business 

Development 

Sub-total 
Intangibles 
with finite 

lives Total 

Balance February 29, 2016  $0  ($39) ($5)        ($461) -  ($505) ($505) 

Amortization expense   -     (52)  (5)       (620)  -     (677)  (677) 

Impairment   (9,948)  (193)  -         (2,294)  -     (2,487)  (12,435) 

Effect of changes in 
exchange rates   (317)  (1)  -            (11)  -     (12)  (329) 

Balance February 28, 2017  ($10,265) ($285) ($10)     ($3,386) -  ($3,681) ($13,946) 

         

Net Carrying Amount 
Balance February 28, 2017  -  -  $41  -  -  $41  $41  
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  Non-compete   Customer Intangibles 
with   

Accumulation 
Amortization 

Goodwill agreements Software relationships finite lives Total 

Balance November 30, 
2014 

$ - $ -  $ -  $ - $ - $ -  

Amortization expense   (38) (5) (456) (499) (499) 
Effect of changes in 
exchange rates 

  
(1) 

  
(5) (6) (6) 

Balance February 29,2016 - ($39) ($5) ($461) ($505) ($505) 

Net Carrying Amount 

            

Balance February 29,2016 $10,265 $252 $32 $3,004 $3,288 $13,553 

 

In February 2017, the Company performed its annual impairment testing based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections 
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 20% (2016 – 20%) per annum. The estimated cumulative average growth rate for the first five 
years was determined to be 5%. The cash flows beyond the five-year period have been extrapolated using a terminal growth rate of 3%. As a 
result of its annual goodwill impairment testing, the company determined that the carrying value of the Convalo Health International CGU 
exceeded its recoverable amount and recorded a full impairment on the goodwill of $9,948 and intangible assets of $2,487. The impairment 
resulted from a decline in the expected performance of the business relative to expectations at the time the acquisitions were consummated. The 
cash flow projections used in estimating the recoverable amounts are generally consistent with results achieved historically adjusted for 
anticipated growth. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts were based 
would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.  

9.  Finance and Capital leases and loans 

  February 28, 2017 February 29, 2016 

Finance lease and other borrowings (a)  $4,945  $119  

Less:     

Current portion of finance lease and other borrowings   (2,760)  (46) 

Long-term portion of finance lease and other borrowings $2,185  $73  

 
On August 31, 2016, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Civic Financial Services LLC in the amount of $2,185. Borrowings are secured 
by land and building owned by the Company (see Note 6). Current interest rates are fixed and average 8.990%. The loan term is for 4 years and 
matures on September 1, 2020. An addendum to the loan agreement requires interest payment for 47 months with a balloon payment of the 
loan proceeds in month 48. The carrying amount of the borrowings are considered to be a reasonable approximation of the fair value. 
The company also has finance leases for vehicles which mature between May 2017 and April 2021. Interest on these leases approximate 2.9% - 
7.0%. The carrying amount of these leases was $119 as at February 28, 2017. 

 
On February 28, 2017, the Company received a deposit in the amount of USD $2,001(CDN $2,651) as part of the Letter of Intent to sell its’ accounts 
receivable. The intended deal was not closed and the amount was returned by the Company in May 2017. 
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10.  Share capital 

  February 28, 2017 February 29, 2016 

Authorized    

Unlimited voting common shares without par value        

Issued    

232,617,234 voting common shares (2016 - 227,966,050)  $40,718  $40,235  

10.  Share Capital (cont’d) 
   

Changes to share capital:    

  Number of Shares Amount 

Balance at November 30, 2014   71,089,550  $4,114  

Shares issued to Valiant shareholders (Amalgamation) (i)   5,900,000   590  

Shares issued through Valiant private placement, net of costs (ii)   29,070,000   2,648  

Shares issued through bought deal private placement (iii)   43,125,000   10,547  

Exercise of options (v)   2,000,000   348  

Exercise of warrants (v)   64,781,500   17,488  

Shares issued for purchase of Harmony Hollywood and ARTS (vi)   12,000,000   4,500  

As of February 29, 2016   227,966,050  $40,235  

Exercise of warrants (vii)   66,500   7  

Shares issued for services (viii)   4,350,000   457  

Shares issued for compensation (ix)   234,684   19  

As of February 28, 2017   232,617,234  $40,718  

(i) On February 11, 2015, the Company issued 5,900,000 shares value at $0.10 per share to Valiant shareholders in 
 connection with the Amalgamation transaction described in Note 2.  

(ii) In conjunction with the Amalgamation, Valiant completed a non-brokered private placement of 58,140,000 subscription receipts 
at a price of $0.05 per subscription receipt for aggregate gross proceeds of $2,907. Each subscription receipt issued in connection 
with the private placement entitled the holder, just prior to the Amalgamation, to acquire one common share in the capital of 
Valiant and (i) one-half of one transferable share purchase warrant (a "Valiant A Warrant"), with each whole Valiant A Warrant 
entitling the holder to acquire one Valiant Share at a price of $0.10 per share until the date that is the earlier of (a) thirty (30) 
months from the date of issuance, and (b) ninety (90) days following the Amalgamation, and (ii) one-half of one transferable share 
purchase warrant (a "Valiant B Warrant"), with each whole Valiant B Warrant entitling the holder thereof to acquire one Valiant 
Share at a price of $0.10 per share until the date that is the earlier of (a) thirty (30) months from the date of issuance, and (b) 
twelve (12) months following the Amalgamation. In connection with the private placement 3,978,800 broker warrants were issued 
at an exercise price of $0.05 per Valiant share exercisable for a period of 24 months. Pursuant to the Amalgamation each Valiant 
share, A Warrant and B Warrant issued pursuant to a subscription receipt, and each broker warrant issued pursuant to the private 
placement was exchanged for similar securities of Convalo on a one for two bases, and with the exercise price of the warrants 
increased by 100%. As a result, immediately following the Amalgamation, Convalo issued 29,070,000 shares at $0.10 per share, 
29,070,000 warrants exercisable at $0.10 per share and 1,989,400 broker warrants exercisable at $0.10 per share. The warrants 



BLVD Centers Corporation (formerly, Convalo Health International, Corp.) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended February 28, 2017 and fifteen months ended February 29, 2016 
(CAD $000s) 
  

23 
 

issued were valued at $17 and the broker warrants were valued at $43. Costs directly attributable to the private placement 
amounted to $199. 

(iii) On April 22, 2015 (the “Closing), the Company closed on a bought deal private placement of 43,125,000 units. Each Unit consists 
of one common share in the capital of Convalo issued at $0.40 per common share, and one warrant of Convalo. Each Warrant 
entitles the holder thereof to acquire one common share for an exercise price of $0.50 per common share for a period of 36 months 
following the closing of the offering. The expiry date of the Warrants may be accelerated by Convalo at any time following the six-
month anniversary of the Closing and prior to the expiry date of the Warrants if the volume-weighted average trading price of the 
Company’s common shares is greater than $0.60 for any 20 consecutive trading days. In addition, in connection with the bought 
deal, the Company issued 3,018,750 compensation options to the underwriters. Each compensation option entitles the holder to 
purchase one unit (a “Unit”) consisting of a) one common share in the capital of Convalo and b) one common share purchase 
warrant at an exercise price of $0.50 per common share on or before April 22, 2018. The compensation options are exercisable at 
a price per Unit of $0.40 and expire on April 22, 2018. The Company received gross proceeds of $17,250 in connection with the 
bought deal private placement and incurred cash share issuance costs of $1,467. The warrants issued were valued at $5,103 and 
the broker warrants were valued at $133. 

(iv) During the fifteen months ended February 29, 2016, a total of 60,944,550 warrants and 3,836,950 broker warrants were 
exercised at a weighted average exercise price of $0.19 per share for total net proceeds of $12,324. Costs directly attributable 
to the conversion into common stock amounted to $242. During the fifteen months ended February 29, 2016 the vesting of 
6,000,000 options was accelerated, of these options 2,000,000 options were exercised at a weighted average exercise price of 
$0.10 per share for total proceeds of $205, resulting in additional option expense of $143 which is included on the consolidated 
financial statements.   

(v) On June 30, 2015, the Company completed the acquisition of Hollywood Detox Center and Accredited Rehab and Treatment 
Services (ARTS). As part of the purchase the Company issued 12,000,000 common shares to Hollywood Detox and ARTS 
shareholders at a fair value of $0.375 per share. 
 

(vi) During the year ended February 28, 2017 66,500 warrants were exercised at a weighted average exercise price of $0.10 per  
share for total net proceeds of $7 transferred from contributed surplus. Cost directly attributed to the conversion into common 
stock amounted to $nil.  

 
(vii) In October 2016, as part of the agreement with Kings Cross Advisors Inc. (“KCA”), the Company issued 4,350,000 common shares 

to KCA shareholders at a fair value of $0.105 per share, for services provided. 
 
(viii) In January 2017, the Company issued 234,684 shares at a price of $0.075 per share, pursuant to an employment agreement 

between the Company and Todd Reber. 

11. Options and warrants 

Options 
 
Subsequent to the Amalgamation transaction, the Company implemented an incentive stock option plan that provides that the Board of 
Directors of Convalo may from time to time, in its discretion and in accordance with Exchange requirements, grant to directors, officers and 
employees and consultants of Convalo, non-transferable options to purchase Convalo shares, provided that the number of Convalo shares 
reserved for issuance will not exceed 10% of the total issued and outstanding Convalo shares, exercisable for a period of up to ten (10) years 
from the date of the grant. The number of Convalo shares reserved for issuance to any individual director or officer of Convalo will not 
exceed 5% of the issued and outstanding Convalo shares and the total number of options awarded to any one consultant in any twelve-
month period shall not exceed 2% of the issued and outstanding shares of Convalo at the date that the particular option was granted without 
consent being obtained from the Exchange. The exercise price of any options granted under the Convalo option plan shall not be less than 
the closing price of Convalo shares on the day preceding the day on which the directors grant such options, less any discount permitted by 
the Exchange. Options held by a director or employee who ceases to be employed by Convalo expire one year from the date the director or 
ceases to be a director of Convalo or the employee ceases to be employed by Convalo. 
 
On June 24, 2016, the shareholders approved a new 20% fixed number stock option plan (the "2016 Option Plan") at Convalo's Annual & 
Special Meeting of Shareholders. The 2016 Option Plan reserves 45,606,510 common shares and replaces Convalo's 10% rolling stock option 
plan.  
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   Number of options 

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price 

Weighted 
average 

remaining life 

 

Outstanding at November 30, 2014   -    $0.00    

Options granted    21,560,000   0.33  5.8  

Options cancelled    (1,865,000)  (0.23) n/a  

Options exercised    (2,000,000)  (0.10) n/a  

Outstanding at February 29, 2016   17,695,000  $0.36  7.5  

Options granted    11,995,000   0.22  6.7  

Options cancelled / 
forfeited    (4,775,834)  0.29  

n/a  

Outstanding at February 28,2017   24,914,166  $0.31  5.69  
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11.  Options and warrants (cont’d) 

     Options 

Details of stock options outstanding at February 28, 2017     

  

Exercise Price 

Number of  
options 

outstanding 

Number of  
options 

exercisable Expiry Date  

  

$0.10   5,050,000   4,816,666  February 11, 2025    

$0.55   7,350,000   2,450,000  May 19, 2020    

$0.47   1,200,000   733,334  July 13, 2020    

$0.25   300,000   300,000  August 25, 2020    

$0.27   405,000   135,000  October 21, 2020    

$0.29   100,000   33,333  January 14, 2021    

$0.24   5,000,000   -    March 1, 2026    

$0.24   3,350,000   2,100,000  March 1, 2021    

$0.24   166,666   55,555  May 31, 2017    

$0.14   1,032,500   500,000  June 9, 2026    

$0.14   695,000   325,000  June 9, 2026    

$0.11   265,000   -    December 1, 2021    

$0.31   24,914,166   11,448,888      

 
For options cancelled during the year ended February 28, 2017, stock based compensation was adjusted for any unvested options. 
The estimated fair value of options is expensed on a graded basis over the vesting or service period for each tranche. The vesting period 
approximates three years for all issued and outstanding option compensation. Stock based compensation for the year ended February 28, 
2017 was $2,141. For the fifteen months ended February 29, 2016, stock based compensation totaled $2,353.  
 
The fair value of the Company’s stock options was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following assumptions: 
    

 

 

 

 

Expected volatility was estimated by reference to comparable listed entities since the Company’s own shares have limited trading 
history. 

Category February28, 2017 

Expected option life 5-10 years 
Expected volatility 96.4% 
Risk-free interest rate 0.58% - 0.98% 
Dividend yield Nil 
Weighted average share price at grant date $0.22 
Weighted average exercise price $0.22 
Estimated forfeiture rate 9% 
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10. Options and warrants (cont’d) 

Warrants 
 

 Number of warrants 
Weighted average 

exercise price 

Outstanding at November 30, 2014  34,854,000  $0.19  

Warrants issued (ii)(iii)  76,340,650   0.38  

Warrants exercised  (64,781,500)  0.19  

Outstanding and exercisable at February 29, 2016  46,413,150  $0.39  

Warrants exercised (v)  (66,500)  0.10  

Warrants cancelled (vi)  (297,400)  0.10  

Warrants expired (iv)  (21,562,500)   0.38  

Outstanding and exercisable at February 28, 2017  24,486,750  $0.39  

 
            
 

Warrants to acquire voting common shares outstanding and exercisable at November 30, 2017 and February 29, 2016 were as follows:
  
(i) Included in warrants outstanding at November 30, 2014 are warrants to acquire 17,855,000 common shares pursuant to an 

issue of subscription receipts. These subscription receipts and warrants were held in escrow and were released in February 
2015 upon the conversion of the subscription receipts to common shares following the Amalgamation.  

(ii) In connection with the February 2015 private placement completed as part of the Amalgamation, the Company issued warrants 
to purchase 29,070,000 common shares at an exercise price of $0.20 per share and broker warrants purchasing 1,989,400 
common shares at a price of $0.10 per common share. 

(iii) In connection with the bought deal private placement in April, 2015, the Company issued warrants to purchase 43,125,000 
common shares at $0.50 and 3,018,750 compensation options to the underwriters. Each compensation option entitles the 
holder to purchase one unit (a “Unit”) consisting of a) one common share in the capital of Convalo and b) one common share 
purchase warrant at an exercise price of $0.50 per common share on or before April 22, 2018. The compensation options are 
exercisable at a price per Unit of $0.40 for a period of 36 months following the closing of the offering. These warrants are 
subject to acceleration at the Company’s option after six months if Convalo's share price achieves a volume-weighted average 
trading price greater than $0.60 for 20 consecutive trading days since closing. 

(iv) In October 2015, the Company confirmed that the expiry date of certain outstanding warrants, exercisable for 43,125,000 
common shares of the Company at $0.50 per share, were accelerated to November 17, 2015, pursuant to the terms of the 
warrant certificates. The acceleration is a result of the Company’s share price achieving a volume-weighted average trading 
price greater than $0.60 for 20 consecutive trading days around the time of closing of the Harmony Hollywood, LLC and 
Accredited Rehab and Treatment Services, LLC acquisition, which was announced on May 20, 2015. The warrants were 
originally issued pursuant to the Company’s bought-deal private placement. Warrants cancelled in connection with this 
transaction resulted in the reversal of $5,164 placed back into share capital with the offsetting entry being made to contribute 
surplus. 

(v) During the year ended February 28, 2017, 66,500 warrants were exercised at a weighted average exercise price of $0.10 per 
share for total net proceeds of $7. 

(vi) On June 28th, 2016, the Company amended the original warrant terms, including price and expiry date, (part of the $17,250,000 
financing closed in April 2015 in which issued 43,125,000 warrants) resulting in the warrants being exercisable for 21,562,500 
common shares, half at $0.30 with a six month term and half at $0.38 with a nine month term. As at February 28, 2017, 
21,562,500 of the modified warrants, expired in December 2016. 
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As at February 28, 2017, the following warrants were outstanding 
 

Expiry date 
Number of Warrants 
Outstanding 

Weighted Average 
Remaining Life 

April 2018  2,924,250   0.14  

March 2017  21,562,500   0.06  

  24,486,750   0.19  

 
The fair value of the warrants issued in connection with the private placement was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing 
model with the following assumptions: 

10. Options and warrants (cont’d) 

Warrants (cont’d) 
 

Expected warrant life 1.75 years 

Expected volatility 41% 

Risk-free interest rate 0.43% 

Dividend yield Nil 

Share price at grant date $0.10 

Exercise price $0.10 

The fair value of the broker warrants issued in connection with the above offering was estimated using the Black Scholes model with the 
following significant assumptions: 

Expected warrant life 0.25 - 1 years 

Expected volatility  41% 

Risk-free interest rate 0.43% 

Dividend yield Nil 

Share price at grant date $0.10 

Exercise price $0.20 

 
The fair value of the warrants issued in connection with the bought deal private placement was calculated using the Black-Scholes option 
pricing model with the following assumptions: 
 

 

 

The fair value of the compensation options issued to underwriters in connection with the bought deal private placement was calculated 
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: 
 

Expected warrant life 3 years 

Expected volatility  50% 

Risk-free interest rate 0.66% 

Dividend yield Nil 

Share price at grant date $0.40 

Exercise price $0.50 

Expected warrant life 3 years 

Expected volatility  50% 

Risk-free interest rate 66% 
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Dividend yield Nil 

Share price at grant date $0.40 

Exercise price $0.50 
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11. Expenses by nature 

Category  

Twelve Months ended 
February 28, 2017 

    Fifteen Months ended 
February 29, 2016 

Included in cost of services:   

Employee salary and benefits $5,164  $5,287  

Direct client service cost  4,126   4,196  

Outside services-clinical  1,585   485  

All other   1,184   590  

  $12,059  $10,558  

Included in general and administrative:  
Employee salary and benefits $4,882  $2,219  

Transaction listing fees  -     351  

Insurance   760  -      

All other   856   659  

  $6,498  $3,229  

Included in facilities:   

Rent  $2,105  $1,227  

Supplies and services  801   626  

All other   266   275  

  $3,172  $2,128  

Included in sales & marketing:   

Employee salary and benefits $1,962  $2,506  

Advertising   2,309   1,685  

All other   682   273  

  $4,953  $4,464  

Included in billing and other outside services:  
Outside Billing expense $2,248  $1,483  

Other outside services  3,929   900  

  $6,177  $2,383  

12. Income taxes 

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, current income taxes are 
recognized for the estimated income taxes payable for the current year. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for 
temporary differences between the tax and accounting basis of assets and liabilities as well as for the benefit of losses available to 
be carried forward to future years for tax purposes are measured using the current or substantively enacted tax rates expected to 
apply when the differences reverse.  A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that the recoverability of deferred income 
tax assets is considered probable. 

 

The Company's provision for (recovery of) income taxes differs from the amount that is computed by applying the combined federal 

and state statutory income tax rate of 40% in the United States to the Company's net income (loss) before income taxes as 

follows: 

 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset where they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the 
Company has the legal right and intent to offset. It is more probable than not that the Company will utilize available non-capital loss 
carry-
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12. Income taxes (cont’d) 

forwards and deferred tax assets to offset the anticipated future taxable profits. Therefore, a net deferred income tax asset is being 
recognized for US non-capital tax loss carry-forwards and other available tax assets.  

  
Unrecognized deferred tax assets 
 
Deferred taxes are provided as a result of temporary differences that arise due to the differences between the income tax values and the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities.  
 

The Canadian non-capital loss carry forwards expire noted in the table below.  The US loss carry-forwards expire as noted in 2035.  
Share issuance and financing costs will be fully amortized in 2019.  The remaining deductible temporary differences may be carried 
forward indefinitely.  Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it is not probable that future profit 
will be available against which the Company can utilize the benefits therefrom. 
 
The Company’s Canadian non-capital income tax losses expire as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Income Taxes 
Year ended February 28, 

2017 
Fifteen months ended  

February 29, 2016 

Net loss before recovery of income taxes (29,129) ($3,044) 

Expected income tax recovery (11,651) (1,217) 

Difference in foreign tax rates 522 309 

Tax rate changes and other adjustments (501) (166) 

Permanent differences 71 582 

Stock based compensation 557 597 

Goodwill  16 

Deferred tax assets not recognized in the year 11,408 (527) 

Income tax (recovery) expense $406 ($406) 

The Company's income tax (recovery) is allocated as follows:    

Deferred tax expense (recovery) $406 ($406) 
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12. Income taxes (cont’d) 

   Unrecognized deferred tax assets (cont’d) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Unrecognized deferred tax assets 

 

Deferred taxes are  provided  as  a  result  of  temporary  differences  that  arise  due  to  the  
differences between  the  income  tax  values  and  the  carrying  amount  of  assets  and  liabilities.  
Deferred tax  assets have not been recognized in respect of the following deductible temporary differences: 

    

  
Year ended February 

28, 2017  
Fifteen month ended 

February 29, 2016 

Non-capital losses carried forward   $2,623    $765  

Non-capital losses carried forward US  6735  - 

Share issuance costs  185  252 

 
 
The Canadian non-capital loss carry forwards expire as noted in the table below. The US loss carry forwards  expire in 2036. Share issue and 
financing costs will be fully amortized in 2019. The remaining deductible temporary differences may be carried forward indefinitely. Deferred tax 
assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
Company can utilize the benefits therefrom.

 For the year ended February 
28, 2017 

Fifteen months ended 
February 29, 2016 

Deferred Tax Assets     
Non-Capital losses carried forward - US $689 $521 

Non-Capital losses carried forward - Canada   - 

Allowance for bad debts - 228 

Accrued compensation - 183 

Accrued balances - 
133 

    Less: assets applied against liabilities 

 

 

(689) (521) 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 
  

 

Property, plant, and equipment (519) 
(373) 

Pre-paid expense (160) 
- 

State Tax (10) 
- 

Intangible Asset - (10) 

Add: assets applied against liabilities 689 521 

Net deferred tax liabilities - $138 
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12. Income taxes (cont’d) 

 
The Company's Canadian non-capital income tax losses expire as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

13.  Financial instruments and financial risk management 

Foreign currency risk 
 

A significant portion of the Company's revenues are transacted in U.S. dollars and as a result, fluctuations in the rate of exchange between 
the U.S. dollar and Canadian dollar can have a significant impact on the Company's cash flows and reported results. As a majority of the 
Company’s operating expenses are also in United States dollars, operational foreign currency risk is limited. 

 
Included in the consolidated statement of financial position at February 28, 2017, are the following assets and liabilities denominated in 
U.S. dollars: cash of USD $6,802 (2016 -$14,429) accounts receivable of USD $6,341 (2016 - $4,757) and accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities of USD $3,237 (2016- $2,373).  

 
The Company’s revenues and expenses denominated in U.S. dollars for the year ended February 28, 2017 and February 29, 2016, were 
USD $22,611 and USD $35,625, and USD $18,147 and USD $18,310 respectively. Accordingly, a 10 percent increase or decrease in the 
value of the U.S. dollar relative to its Canadian counterpart would result in an $1,301 increase or decrease in net income. 

 
Fair value  

 

The fair values of cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying values 
given their short-term maturities.  

 
Credit risk 

 

Credit risk is the potential that customers or a counterparty to a financial instrument fail to meet their obligation to the Company.  
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of trade accounts receivable 
as the Company's revenues are concentrated to California. The Company had many customers during the course of the year and believes 
that there is minimal risk associated with collection of these amounts. The Company manages its credit risk by ensuring the eligibility of  
its patients for insurance or other coverage prior to admittance.  

 
As explained in Note 4, revenue is estimated to be the amount collectible from the insurer.  Given the counterparties in these 
transactions, which are generally large, financially stable commercial insurers, the Company considers the credit quality of these 
receivables to be high. Credit risk is generally limited to the risk that the estimated amount of revenue that can be collected is not 
accurate. 

As explained in Note 4, revenue is estimated to be the amount collectible from the insurer. As of February 28, 2017 two commercial 
payors individually represented 13 % and 8 %, respectively of outstanding accounts receivable. Given the counterparties in these 
transactions, which are generally large, financially stable commercial insurers, the Company considers the credit quality of these 
receivables to be high. Credit risk is generally limited to the risk that the estimated amount of revenue that can be collected is not 
accurate. 
 

Year  

Non-capital Income tax 
loss 

2034   $911  

2036  56 

2037  1656 

   

Total   $2,623  
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Bad debt expense recorded during the fiscal year ended February 28, 2017 was $9,341, for the fifteen months ended February 29, 2016 
the bad debt expense was $947. 
 
Consolidated Accounts Receivable Aging 
 
As at February 28, 2017 
 
Amounts over 30 days are considered past due 
 

Current 30-60 Days 60-90 Days 

Over 90  
Days 

Total Accounts  

Receivable 

Allowance for  
Doubtful Accounts 

3,372 1,472 929 11,941 17,714 (9,341) 

19% 8% 5% 29% 100%   
 

 As at February 29, 2016 
 

Current 30-60 Days 60-90 Days 

Over 90  
Days 

Total Accounts  

Receivable 

Allowance for  
Doubtful Accounts 

1,997 1,413 1,345 2,631 7,386 (947) 

31% 19% 21% 29% 100%   
 
 

 Liquidity risk 
 

Liquidity risk is the risk the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial liability obligations as they become due. The 
Company manages its liquidity risk through cash management. In managing liquidity risk, the Company maintains access to equity 
markets, the availability of which is dependent on market conditions. The Company monitors its requirements through the use of rolling 
future net cash flow projections and budgets and believes it has sufficient funding through its current cash position to continue operating 
for the foreseeable future. . 
 
Other risk 

The Company is not exposed to any significant interest rate risk as it does not have any borrowings and loans receivable that carry variable 
rates of interest. The Company is not exposed to any significant price risk or other financial risks due to the nature of its business 

14. Capital management 

The Company’s objectives in managing capital are to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor and creditor confidence; 
to ensure sufficient liquidity to service its debts, support capital projects and growth-oriented acquisitions; and to provide a return to 
shareholders. 
 
Capital is used by the Company to finance capital expenditures and fund acquisitions that add to its ability to generate returns and 
meet long-term strategic growth objectives. 
 
The Company sets the amount and type of capital required relative to its assessment of risk and manages the capital structure and makes 
adjustments to it in light of changes to economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or 
modify its capital structure, the Company may adjust or defer the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, seek 
other forms of financing, or sell assets to reduce debt.  
 
The Company manages its share capital, contributed surplus, deficit and long-term debt as capital.  The Company is not subject to any 
external covenants. There has been no change to the capital management policies for the year ending February 28, 2017.
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15. Related party transactions 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of 
Company, directly or indirectly, including executive directors. The total compensation of key management personnel are as follows: 

Category 
For the year ended 
February 28, 2017 

Fifteen Months ended 
February 29, 2016 

Salaries and short term benefits $875  $537  

Stock based compensation  67   1,533  

Total $942 $2,070  

 16. Commitments 

Leases 

The Company has property under operating leases. For the twelve months ended February 28, 2017 and the fifteen months ended 
February 29, 2016, the Company incurred rent expense of $2,071 and $2,006 respectively, included in Facilities expense. 

Minimum aggregate payments on all operating leases in the future as of February 28, 2017 are as follows: 

Category  
Within 12 months $2,208  

1-2 years  2,070  

2-3 years  1,812  

3-4 years  1,313  

5 years  754  

Total $8,157  

 
In March 2016, the Company entered into a five-year master lease agreement with a Real Estate Investment Fund (the “RE Fund” or 
“Lessor”). The agreement covers the next eight inpatient pods, potentially including up to 16 properties, that the Company desires to utilize 
for inpatient services as part of its expansion plans. Subject to certain limitations, the agreement requires the RE Fund, as lessor, to purchase 
properties identified by the Company and to lease those properties to the Company for a period of five years, after which, the Company has 
the option to extend each lease for an additional five years, acquire all the properties at a guaranteed return to the RE Fund or let the leases 
lapse. The leases also contain an early termination right for the Company, which the Company may exercise after one year, provided the 
Company acquires the leased property from the RE Fund. As part of securing this agreement, the Company will issue 8,700,000 shares to 
the RE Fund. The agreement allows the Company to support its expansion plans without having to utilize its own cash or access outside 
financing.  
 
The shares to be issued have been accounted for as a prepaid finance fee to be amortized over 57 months. The prepaid finance fee amounted 
to $2,340 of which $452 has been expensed during the year ended February 28, 2017. 

17. Loss per share 

Income/Loss per share is based on the consolidated net loss for the year divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period. Diluted loss per share is computed in accordance with the treasury stock method and based on the weighted average 
number of shares and dilutive share equivalents. 

 
For the year February 28, 2017 and February 29, 2016, respectively, the outstanding warrants and options were excluded from the 
calculation of diluted loss per share because their effect is anti-dilutive.
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17. Loss per share (cont’d) 

The following reflects the earnings and share data used in the basic and diluted loss per share computations: 
   

Category 
Twelve Months ended 

February 28, 2017 
Fifteen Months ended 

February 29, 2016 

Net Loss ($29,524) ($2,638) 

Basic and diluted weighted average number of 
shares  229,596,267   171,721,187  

Total LPS- basic and diluted ($0.13) ($0.01) 

18. Contingencies 

From time to time the Company is subject to audits by commercial insurers. These audits typically cover claims upon which payment has 
already been made to the Company. As of February 28, 2017, there were no outstanding claims. 

19. Comparative Figures 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the consolidated financial statement presentation adopted for the 
current year. 

20. Subsequent Events  

On March 6, 2017 the Company issued 700,000 options to various members of management and employees with an exercise price of 
$.085. The options granted vest equally over a period of three years and expire 10 years from the date of grant. 
 
On April 13, 2017 the Company issued 1,750,000 options to various members of management, board of directors, consultants and 
employees with an exercise price of $.115. The options granted vest equally over a period of three years and expire 10 years from the date 
of grant. 
 
The Company signed management services agreements (“MSA”) with the effective date of March 1, 2017 resulting in decentralizing 
treatment operations, including sales and marketing functions, management and staffing decisions now reside with a local the leadership 
team (“Manager”) at each individual center. As a result, the Manager will be entitled to receive and the Company assigns to the Manager a 
revenue percentage to enable the Manager to handle all expenses for the facility. The revenue percentage is based on collections and is 
equal to 81% for the first 12 months following the effective date of the agreement, 83% for the 13th through 24th months, 85% for 25th 
through 36th months, 87% for 37th through 48th month and 90% after 48th month. The term of the initial agreement is for 5 years and 
maybe renewed for successive 5-year term upon mutual agreement. 
 
On May 23, 2017 the Company issued 1,400,000 options to various members of management, board of directors, consultants and 
employees with an exercise price of $.165. The options granted vest equally over a period of three years and expire 10 years from the date 
of grant. 
 
On June 14, 2017 the Company changed its name from Convalo Health International, Corp., to BLVD Centers Corporation. 
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The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) of the financial condition and results of operations of BLVD 
Centers, Corporation (“BLVD Centers” or the “Company”), prepared as of June 28, 2017, should be read in conjunction with the 
consolidated financial statements for February 28, 2017 and February 29, 2016, including the notes therein. The consolidated 
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Unless 
otherwise specified, all financial data is presented in Canadian dollars. The words “we”, “our”, “us”, “Company”, and “BLVD 
Centers” refer to BLVD Centers, Corp and/or the management and employees of the Company. 
 
Additional information relevant to the Company is available for review on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. 
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CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

 
Information included or incorporated by reference in this report may contain forward-looking statements. This information 
may involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors which may cause our actual results, performance, or 
achievements to be materially different from the future results, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by any 
forward-looking statements.  Forward-looking statements, which involve assumptions and describe our future plans, 
strategies, and expectations, are generally identifiable by use of the words “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “anticipate,”  
“estimate,” “believe,” “plan,” “intend” or “project” or the negative of these words or other variations on these words or 
comparable terminology. Readers are cautioned regarding statements discussing profitability; growth strategies; anticipated 
trends in our industry; our future financing plans; and our anticipated needs for working capital. Actual events or results may 
differ materially from those discussed in forward-looking statements. There can be no assurance that the forward-looking 
statements contained in this report will in fact occur. The Company bases its forward-looking statements on information 
currently available to it, and assumes no obligation to update them. 
 
THE FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS MD&A PRESENTS THE EXPECTATIONS OF THE COMPANY AS OF 
THE DATE OF THIS MD&A AND, ACCORDINGLY, IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AFTER SUCH DATE. READERS SHOULD NOT PLACE 
UNDUE IMPORTANCE ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND SHOULD NOT RELY UPON THIS INFORMATION AS OF ANY 
OTHER DATE. WHILE THE COMPANY MAY ELECT TO, THE COMPANY DOES NOT UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE THIS INFORMATION 
AT ANY PARTICULAR TIME EXCEPT AS REQUIRED BY APPLICABLE SECURITIES LEGISLATION.  
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ABOUT OUR BUSINESS 
 
BLVD Centers business summary 
 
BLVD Centers is a public Canadian company focused on the United States inpatient (detox and residential) and outpatient rehabilitation 
market and serves clients with addictive and co-occurring disorders. The Company’s goal is to provide quality service nationwide at a low 
cost with high margins. 
 
Key performance drivers 
 
Our inpatient and outpatient service revenues are based on the enrollment of clients that suffer from addiction requiring them to get 
inpatient and outpatient care for recovery. Overall capacity and occupancy rates are, therefore, key drivers of profitability. The growing 
demand for inpatient and outpatient services nationally provides significant opportunity to garner market share.  
 
Future outlook 
  
In Q1 FY2018, BLVD Centers changed its highly centralized business model, that required large corporate overhead and expensive sales and 
marketing costs, to a model that shifted all operational and sales and marketing responsibilities to managing partners through the execution 
of MSA’s. This new model is designed to be less costly. 

 
 
 

OPERATING RESULTS 
 
Accounting policies and estimates 
 
The consolidated financial statements for the period ended February 28, 2017 are prepared under International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the governing body of the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB’). The preparation of financial 
statements, in conformity with IFRS, requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect; 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosers of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses for the period of consolidated financial statements. The Company’s critical accounting estimates are described under Accounting 
and Disclosure Matters below. 
 
Non-IFRS measures 
 
Throughout this MD&A, references are made to a number of measures which are believed to be meaningful in the assessment of the 
Company’s performance. All of these metrics are non-standard measures under IFRS, and may not be identical to similarly titled measures 
reported by other companies. Also, in the future, we may disclose different non-IFRS financial measures in order to help our investors more 
meaningfully evaluate and compare our future results of operations to our previously reported results of operations. Readers are cautioned 
that the disclosure of these items is meant to add to, and not replace, the discussion of financial results as determined in accordance with 
IFRS. The primary purpose of these non-IFRS measures is to provide supplemental information that may prove useful to investors who wish 

('000 CAD) 

Category Twelve Months Ended Feb 28, 2017 Fifteen Months Ended Feb 29, 2016

Revenue $29,658.00 $23,688.00

Gross Profit $17,599.00 $13,130.00

Gross Margin 59.3% 55.4%
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to consider the impact of certain non-cash or uncontrollable items on the Company’s operating performance and who wish to separate 
revenues and related costs associated with start-up activities that may not be ongoing. 
 
Consolidated operating results 
 

  

Twelve months ended  
February 28, 2017 

Fifteen months ended  
February 29, 2016 

Revenues  $29,658  $23,688  

Cost of services (note 11)   12,059   10,558  

Gross Profit   17,599   13,130  

    

Expenses    

Facilities (note 11)  $3,172  $2,128  

Sales and marketing (note 11)   4,953   4,464  

Bad debt expense   8,313   959  

New facility start-up costs and nonrecurring cost  1,158   315  

General and administrative (note 11)   6,498   3,229  

Billing and other outside services (note 11)   6,177   2,383  

Depreciation and amortization   1,363   639  

Stock based compensation (note 4)   2,141   2,353  

Realized foreign exchange   7   (317) 

Interest expense/(income)   500   21  

Goodwill impairment   12,435   -    

Net loss before income taxes   (29,118)  (3,044) 

Deferred tax recovery (note 12)   (406)  406  

Net loss   (29,524)  (2,638) 

    

Other comprehensive (loss) income    

Amounts that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: 

Cumulative translation adjustment   (1,217)  3,822  

Comprehensive (loss) income   (30,741)  1,184  

    

Basic and diluted loss per share (note 17)  (0.13) (0.01) 

 
 
Revenue 
 
For the years ended February 28, 2017 and February 29, 2016, revenue totaled $29,658 and $23,688, respectively.  
 
Cost of revenue and gross margin 
 
Cost of revenue was comprised primarily of wages paid to clinical directors, clinicians, and group facilitators; along with program supplies, 
testing supplies and other expenses directly related to treating clients.  
 
For the years ended February 28, 2017 and February 29, 2016, cost of revenue was $12,059 and $10,558, respectively, and gross margin was 
59% and 55%, respectively.  
  
Facilities 
 
Facilities expense includes all expenses related to renting and maintaining our physical corporate and operating locations, but excludes 
facility costs related to new operating facilities which have yet to be opened. 
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For the years ended February 28, 2017 and February 29, 2016, facilities expense totaled $3172 and $2128, respectively. The increase in 
facilities expense was due primarily to having more facilities from acquisitions and openings.  
 
Sales and marketing 
 
Sales and marketing costs are comprised primarily of salaries, commissions and related expenses for sales personal and other expenses 
incurred to acquire new clients and get them enrolled in our service, salaries and related expenses for marketing personal, and costs related 
to advertising. 
 
For the years ended February 28, 2017 and February 29, 2016, sales and marketing expenses totaled $4,953 and $4,464, respectively.  
 
General and Administrative 
 
General and administrative expenses are comprised primarily of salaries and related expenses for finance, IT, accounting, management, and 
human resource personnel.  In addition, there are new facility start-up costs, professional and legal services and other general overhead. 
 
For the years ended February 28, 2017 and February 29, 2016, general and administrative expenses were $6,498 and $3,299 respectively.  
 
Stock based compensation 
 
Stock based compensation represents the amortization of the fair value of options and warrants issued to the Company’s directors, officers, 
employees, vendors and consultants for services rendered. For the years ended February 28, 2017 and February 29, 2016, stock based 
compensation costs were $2,141 and $2,353, respectively.  
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
 

 
 
 
Accounts Receivables 
 
The allowance for doubtful accounts ($9,341) includes a provision for an allowance of ($8,336) for a portion of the accounts receivables 
generated from services performed and billed by a prior billing vendor between March 1, 2016 and August 31, 2016 that became doubtful 
upon departure of the previous management, though current management continues to work to collect the charged-amount. 
 
 
 

February 28, 2017 February 29, 2016

ASSETS

Current

Cash and restricted cash (note 4) $8,982 $19,788

Accounts receivable, net (note 4 and 5) 8,373                              6,439                              

Prepaid expenses 1,416                              710                                 

Other current assets 8                                      25                                    

Total current assets $18,779 $26,962

Long-term

Property, plant and equipment (note 4 and 6) $4,775 $4,172

Prepaid Finance Fee 1,396                              

Deposits and other assets 368                                 323                                 

Goodwill  (note 4 and 8) -                                  10,265                            

Intangible assets, net (note 4 and 8) 41                                    3,288                              

Deferred tax assets (note 12) -                                  544                                 

Total long-term assets $6,580 $18,592

TOTAL ASSETS $25,359 $45,554

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $4,274 $3,380

Current portion of finance leases (note 9) 2,760                              46                                    

Total current liabilities $7,034 $3,426

Long-term liabilities

Long-term portion of finance leases (note 9) $2,185 $73

Deferred tax liabilities -                                  138                                 

Total long-term liabilities $2,185 $211

TOTAL LIABILITIES $9,219 $3,637

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital (note 10) $40,718 $40,235

Shares to be issued $2,340 $0

Contributed surplus 4,471                              2,330                              

Accumulated other comprehensive gain 2,716                              3,933                              

Accumulated deficit (34,105)                          (4,581)                             

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY $16,140 $41,917

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY $25,359 $45,554
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Liquidity 
  
As of February 28, 2017, the Company had cash and restricted cash on hand of $8,982. Management considers liquid assets to consist of 
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets. According to this 
definition, the company's liquid assets equal the current assets totaling $18,799. While working capital is traditionally used as a measure of 
a company's liquidity, management believes that a more accurate view of the Company's liquidity is liquid assets less current liabilities. The 
Company's liquid assets less current liabilities equal $11,745. The Company has sufficient cash on hand to continue to support its expansion 
plans and meet its contractual obligations.  In addition, the Company has access to public markets and can access debt facilities to 
supplement its cash needs. 
 
Contractual obligations 
 

 
 
As of February 28, 2017 the Company had $2,185 in total finance and capital leases. The Company has sufficient liquid assets to fund its 
finance and capital lease obligations.  
 
Operating Leases 
 
The Company leases certain facilities under the terms of non-cancelable operating leases. For the years ended February 28, 2017 and 

February 29, 2016 the amounts included in facilities expense totaled $3,172 and $2,128, respectively.  
 
Capital leases 
 
The Company has capital lease obligations related to vehicles and laboratory equipment with terms of two to three years and fixed interest 
rates between 2.9% and 7.0%. 
 
Capital Management 
 
The Company considers its capital to be shareholders’ equity, which is comprised of share capital, contributed surplus, deficit and 
accumulated other comprehensive income and deficit, which totaled $16,140 at February 28, 2017, as well as long-term debt, which totaled 
$2,185 at February 28, 2017. 
 
The Company plans to raise capital and/or debt, as necessary, to meet its needs and take advantage of perceived opportunities and, 
therefore, does not have a numeric target for its capital structure. Funds are primarily secured through equity capital raised by way of private 
placements and convertible notes. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to continue raising capital in this manner. 
 
Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this approach, given the relative size of the 
Company, is reasonable. 
 
Financing 
 
On June 24, 2016 BLVD Centers held a meeting of warrant holders who approved amended warrant terms for the 43,125,000 warrants 
issued as part of the $17,250,000 financing closed in April of 2015. Under the amended terms, the 43,125,000 warrants were replaced with 
21,562,500 warrants, half at a $0.30 exercise price and a six month term and half at a $0.38 exercise price with a nine month term.  
  
 
 
 
 

February 28, 2017 February 29, 2016

Finance lease and other borrowings (a) $4,945 $119

Less: 

Current portion of finance lease and other borrowings (2,760)                                (46)                                      

Long-term portion of finance lease and other borrowings $2,185 $73
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Share Capital 
 

 
 
As of the date of this report 234,684,000 shares are outstanding.  
 
Summary of Financial Results 
 
The Company’s revenues, net income/loss and net income/loss per share for each of the nine most recently completed quarters is as 
follows: 

 

 
 
* $17,046 of the $20,376 loss in three months ended February 28, 2017 was related to our Goodwill Impairment and Accounts Receivable 
write down, due to the exiting of previous Management. Without this impairment and write down the Net Loss was $3,330. 

February 28, 2017 February 29, 2016

Authorized

Unlimited voting common shares without par value

Issued

232,282,550 voting common shares (2016 - 227,966,050) 40,718 40,235

Changes to share capital:

Shares

Share 

Capital

Balance November 30, 2014 71,089,550                 $4,114

Net loss -                                -                                

Other Comprehensive gain -                                -                                

Private placement - (net of costs) (note 10 (v)) 29,070,000                 2,648                           

Shares issued to Valiant shareholders (Note 2) 5,900,000                   590                               

Private placement - bought deal (net of costs) (Note 10 (vi)) 43,125,000                 10,547                         

Warrants exercised/expired (net of costs) 64,781,500                 17,488                         

Options exercised (Note 11) 2,000,000                   348                               

Shares issued for purchase of Harmony Hollywood, LLC and 

Reflections Recovery (Note 7)
12,000,000                 4,500                           

Option related compensation (note 11) -                                

Balance February 29, 2016 227,966,050              $40,235

Net loss -                                -                                

Other Comprehensive gain -                                -                                

Shares issued for Sawtelle Recovery, Inc 4,350,000                   457                               

Shares issued for compensation 234,684                      19                                 

Warrants exercised 66,500                         7                                   

Shares to be issued for Ruslip -                                -                                

Option related compensation (note 11) -                                -                                

Balance February 28, 2017 232,617,234              $40,718

('000 CAD)    Category

Three Months Ended

May 31, 2015

Three Months Ended

August 31, 2015

Three Months Ended

November 30, 2015

Three Months Ended

February 29, 2016

Three Months Ended

May 31, 2016

Three Months Ended

August 31, 2016

Three Months Ended

November 30, 2016

Three Months Ended

February 28, 2017

Revenue $2,318 $5,674 $8,072 $7,624 $7,288 $7,434 $7,814 $7,122

Expenses $2,316 $6,145 $7,941 $9,924 $11,256 $10,024 $9,452 $27,498

Net income (loss) $2 ($471) $131 ($2,300) ($3,968) ($2,590) ($1,638) (20,376)*

Net income (loss) per share $0.00 ($0.00) $0.00 ($0.00) ($0.02) ($0.01) ($0.01) ($0.01)
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements 
 
The Company has no material undisclosed off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future 
effect on its results of operations or financial condition. 
 
 

ACCOUNTING AND DISCLOSURE MATTERS 
 
Financial Reporting Controls 
 
The Company is not required to certify the design and evaluation of its disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over 
financial reporting and has not completed such an evaluation.  
 
There were no substantive changes in the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting during 
the period ended February 28, 2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s disclosure 
controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting. 
 
Critical Accounting Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities in the consolidated 
financial statements. We constantly evaluate these estimates and assumptions. 
 
We base our estimates and assumptions on past experience and other factors that are deemed reasonable under the circumstances. This 
involves varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty, thus the amounts currently reported in the consolidated financial statements could 
prove to be inaccurate in the future. 
 
We consider the estimates and assumptions described in this section to be an important part in understanding the consolidated financial 
statements. These estimates and assumptions are subject to change, as they rely heavily on management’s judgment and are based on 
factors that are inherently uncertain. 

Recognition of revenues 

The majority of the Company’s revenues are reimbursable by commercial payors, at out-of-network rates, with the remaining revenues 
payable directly by our clients. The Company bills commercial payors, once insurance has been verified and services have been performed, 
based on usual and customary rates for each service. Revenues from commercial payors are recognized based on expected realizable rates 
using historical collections rates by payor for each service provided. If no collections data is available for a payor (for example where the 
payor is new to the Company), the Company uses the Company-wide average reimbursement rate for that particular service. If commercial 
payors change their reimbursement rates for services already provided but not yet reimbursed, or a new payor rate is different from the 
estimated rate used, revenue is adjusted to account for the new rates. Because of continuing changes in the health care industry and third 
party reimbursement, it is possible that our estimates could change, which could have a material impact on the Company’s recorded revenues 
and consequently, reported earnings. 

Valuation of accounts receivable 

The Company records bad debt expense based on the Company’s historical experience of denials from commercial insurers. While the 
Company has controls in place to minimize the occurrence of denials, the underlying client insurance policy and deductible status is not 
always available at the time services are provided. Denials can be as a result of termed policies, client deductibles not met, client max 
benefits met, medical necessity not met, etc. In addition, management reviews accounts receivable in detail at each reporting period and 
provides for specific accounts that are deemed to not be collectible. Because of continuing changes in the health care industry and third party 
reimbursement, it is possible that our estimates could change, which could have a material impact on our operations and cash flows. If 
circumstances related to certain customers change or actual results differ from expectations, the Company’s estimate of the recoverability of 
receivables could fluctuate from that provided for in the consolidated financial statements. A change in estimate could impact bad debt expense 
and accounts receivable. 
 
Stock based Compensation 
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The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of the Company’s issued stock options and warrants 
as prescribed by IFRS 2. The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires management to make various estimates about certain inputs into 
the model, including the expected option life, expected volatility, risk-free interest rate and expected dividend yield. The company uses the 
following methodologies to estimate each of these inputs: 
 

Black-Scholes Input Assumption Methodology 

Expected option/warrant life 5 years/10 years The life of the option or warrant is used 

Expected volatility 96.4% 
The trading volatility of similar companies as well as its own 
trading volatility for the previous 52 week period 

Risk-free interest rate 0.58%-0.98% 
The Canadian Treasury rate on government bonds with 
similar duration 

Dividend yield Nil 
The Company’s expected dividend yield over the life of the 
underlying instrument 

 
A change in any of these estimates at the time the underlying options or warrants were issued would have impacted the Company’s equity 
and ongoing stock-based compensation expense. 
 
Changes in accounting policies including initial adoption 
 
There were no accounting policy changes or adoption of new accounting policies in the twelve months ended February 28, 2017. 
 

 
 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Financial instrument risk exposure  
 
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk. These risks arise from the normal course of operations and all transactions are undertaken to support the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. The Company’s financial risk management goals are to ensure that the outcome of activities involving 
elements of risk are consistent with the Company’s objectives and risk tolerance, while maintaining an appropriate risk/reward balance and 
protecting the Company’s consolidated balance sheet from events that have the potential to materially impair its financial strength. 
Balancing risk and reward is achieved through identifying risk appropriately, aligning risk with overall business strategy, diversifying risk, 
pricing appropriately for risk, mitigation through preventative controls, and transferring risk to third parties. 
 
Market risk 
 
Foreign Currency Risk 
 

A significant portion of the Company’s revenues are transacted in U.S. dollars and as a result, fluctuations in the rate of exchange between 
the U.S. dollar and Canadian dollar can have a significant impact on the Company’s cash flows and reported results. As a majority of the 
Company’s operating expenses are also in United States dollars, operational foreign currency risk is limited. 
 
The functional currency for all of the Company’s foreign operations is the US dollar which is the local currency.  The Company translates the 
assets and liabilities of its US dollar functional currency subsidiaries into Canadian dollars using exchange rates in effect at the end of each 
period. Revenue and expenses for these subsidiaries are translated using average exchange rates that approximate those in effect during 
the period. The Company is affected by the fluctuations in the value of the US dollar. Significant fluctuations of exchange rates could 
adversely affect the Company’s financial condition and results of operations. At the present, the Company maintains cash balances in both 
US and Canadian dollars, but does not purchase any securities or financial instruments to speculate on or hedge against a rise or fall in the 
value of the US Dollar. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the potential that clients or a counterparty to a financial instrument fail to meet their obligation to the Company. Financial 
instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of trade accounts receivable as the 
Company’s revenues are concentrated in California. The Company had many customers during the period and believes that there is minimal 
risk associated with collection of these amounts. The Company manages its credit risk by evaluating the eligibility of its clients for insurance 
or other coverage prior to admittance. 
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The Company’s customers are generally large, financially stable, commercial insurers and accordingly credit risk associated with each 
of them is considered low. Credit risk is generally limited to the risk that the estimated amount of revenue that can be collected is not 
accurate. 
 
 
 
Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial liability obligations as they become due. The Company 
manages its liquidity risk through cash management.  In managing liquidity risk, the Company maintains access to equity markets, the 
availability of which is dependent on market conditions. The Company monitors its requirements through the use of rolling future net cash 
flow projections and budgets and believes it has sufficient funding through its current cash position to continue operating for the foreseeable 
future.  

 
RISK FACTORS 

 
Due to the nature of BLVD Centers’ business, the legal and economic climate in which BLVD Centers operates and the present stage of 
development of its business, BLVD Centers may be subject to risks. BLVD Centers’ future development and actual operating results may 
be very different from those expected as at the date of this MD&A. There can be no certainty that BLVD Centers will be able to implement 
successfully the strategy set out herein. No representation is or can be made as to the future performance of BLVD Centers and there can 
be no assurance that BLVD Centers will achieve its objectives. In addition to the other information in this MD&A, an investor should 
carefully consider each of, and the cumulative effect of, the following factors. 
 
 
An investment in BLVD Centers’ shares should be considered speculative due to the nature of BLVD Centers’ business. In evaluating BLVD 
Centers and its business, shareholders should carefully consider the following risk factors. These risk factors are not a definitive list of all risk 
factors associated with BLVD Centers or in connection with their operations. It is believed that these are the factors that could cause actual 
results to be different from expected and historical results. You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as a prediction of future 
results. Additional risks and uncertainties that BLVD Centers is unaware of, or that BLVD Centers currently deems to be immaterial, may also 
become important factors that affect BLVD Centers. If any of the risks actually occur, the business, financial condition or results of operations 
could be materially adversely affected, with the result that the trading price of BLVD Centers or BLVD Centers’ shares, as applicable, could 
decline and the shareholder could lose all or part of his or her investment. 
 
Ability to Manage Growth 
 
Recent rapid growth in all areas of BLVD Centers’ business has placed, and is expected to continue to place, a significant strain on its 
managerial, operational and technical resources. BLVD Centers expects operating expenses and staffing levels to increase in the future. To 
manage such growth, BLVD Centers must expand its operational and technical capabilities and manage its employee base while effectively 
administering multiple relationships with various third parties. There can be no assurance that BLVD Centers will be able to manage its 
expanding operations effectively. Any failure to implement cohesive management and operating systems, to add resources on a cost-
effective basis or to properly manage BLVD Centers’ expansion could have a material adverse effect on its business and results of operations. 

 
Capital Investment 
 
The timing and amount of capital expenditures by BLVD Centers will be dependent upon BLVD Centers’ ability to utilize credit facilities, raise 
new debt, generate cash from operations, meet working capital requirements and sell additional shares in order to accommodate these 
items. There can be no assurance that sufficient capital will be available on acceptable terms to BLVD Centers for necessary or desirable 
capital expenditures or that the amount required will be the same as currently estimated. Lack of these funds could limit the future growth 
of BLVD Centers and its subsidiaries and their respective cash flows. 
 
Competition 
 
BLVD Centers will participate in a highly competitive market, which may become more competitive as new players enter. Certain competitors 
will be subsidiaries or divisions of larger, much better capitalized companies. Certain competitors will have vertically integrated services 
sectors of the market. BLVD Centers will have less capital and may encounter greater operational challenges in serving the market. 
 
 
Dependence upon Management 
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Although BLVD Centers is expected to have experienced senior management and personnel, BLVD Centers will be substantially dependent 
upon the services of a few key personnel for the successful operation of its business. The loss of the services of any of these personnel could 
have a material adverse effect on the business of BLVD Centers may not be able to attract and retain personnel on acceptable terms given 
the intense competition for such personnel among competitors. If it loses any of these persons, or is unable to attract and retain qualified 
personnel, its business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected. 
 
Inability to Implement the Business Strategy 
 
The growth and expansion of BLVD Centers’ business is heavily dependent upon the successful implementation of BLVD Centers’ business 
strategy. There can be no assurance that BLVD Centers will be successful in the implementation of its business strategy. 
 
Issuance of Debt 
 
From time to time, BLVD Centers may enter into transactions to acquire assets or the shares of other corporations. These transactions may 
be financed partially or wholly with debt, which may increase BLVD Centers’ debt levels above industry standards. The level of BLVD Centers’ 
indebtedness from time to time could impair BLVD Centers’ ability to obtain additional financing in the future on a timely basis to take 
advantage of business opportunities that may arise. 
 
Conflicts of Interest 
 
Certain of the directors of BLVD Centers are also directors and officers of other companies, some of which may be in the healthcare sector, 
and conflicts of interest may arise between their duties as directors of BLVD Centers and as officers and directors of such other companies. 
Such conflicts must be disclosed in accordance with, and are subject to such other procedures and remedies as apply under the applicable 
corporate statute. 
 
Dilution and Future Issuances of BLVD Centers Shares 
 
BLVD Centers may issue additional shares in the future, which may dilute a shareholder’s holdings in BLVD Centers.  
 
Future Sales of BLVD Centers Shares by Directors and Officers 
 
Subject to compliance with applicable securities laws, directors and officers and their affiliates may sell some or all of their securities in BLVD 
Centers in the future. No prediction can be made as to the effect, if any, such future sales will have on the market price of BLVD Centers’ 
securities prevailing from time to time. However, the future sale of a substantial number of securities by BLVD Centers’ directors and officers 
and their controlled entities, or the perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect prevailing market prices for BLVD Centers’ 
securities. 
 
Reimbursement Rates May Decline 
 
Reimbursement for services to be provided by BLVD Centers come primarily from private health insurance companies. The reimbursement 
rates offered are out-of-network and therefore outside the control of BLVD Centers. Reimbursement rates in the United States, and much 
of the United States healthcare market in general, have been subject to continual reductions as health insurers and governmental entities 
attempt to control healthcare costs. The extent and timing of any reduction in reimbursement rates cannot be predicted by BLVD Centers. 
 
Reductions in reimbursement rates can have a material impact on the profitability of BLVD Centers’ operations. A reduction in 
reimbursement may be unrelated to any concurrent decline in the cost of operations, thereby resulting in reduced profitability. BLVD 
Centers’ costs of operations could increase, but the cost increases may not be passed on to customers because reimbursement rates are set 
without regard to the cost of service. 
 
Requirement for Permits and Licenses in a Highly Regulated Business 
 
Some operations of BLVD Centers require certain licenses and permits from the authorities in the United States. Licenses and permits may 
include those issued by both governmental and non-governmental entities.  Private insurance companies may require that providers obtain 
accreditation from non-governmental entities in order to provide service to their patients, or may require providers to agree to sign up for 
in-network agreements, which may have the impact of lowering reimbursement rates.  Private insurers may change their practices with 
limited or no notice to BLVD Centers.  The ability of BLVD Centers to obtain, sustain or renew any such licenses and permits on acceptable 
terms is subject to changes in regulations and policies and to the discretion of the applicable authorities or other governmental agencies. 
There is no guarantee that BLVD Centers will be able to obtain or maintain such licenses and permits. 
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BLVD Centers will be subject to regulation from both United States federal and state authorities. Regulatory action could disrupt BLVD 
Centers’ ability to provide services. Such regulatory action could come in the form of actions based upon BLVD Centers’ operation. Regulatory 
action could prevent or delay reimbursement for certain services. There could also be legislative action that could adversely affect BLVD 
Centers’ business model, including a decision by the United States government, to become the exclusive provider of healthcare services at 
some time in the future Amendments to current laws and regulations could have a substantial adverse impact on BLVD Centers.  Private 
insurers also have complex rules relating to reimbursement, and the failure of BLVD Centers to follow those rules may impact the ability to 
collect on amounts billed, and may expose BLVD Centers to the risk of audits on amounts that have already been collected. 
 
Privacy Legislation 
 
The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) required the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services to adopt standards to protect the privacy and security of individually identifiable health-related information. The department 
released regulations containing privacy standards in December 2000 and published revisions to the final regulations in August 2002. The 
privacy regulations extensively regulate the use and disclosure of individually identifiable health related information. The regulations also 
provide patients with significant new rights related to the understanding and controlling how their health information is used or disclosed. 
The security regulations require healthcare providers to implement administrative, physical and technical practices to protect the security 
of identifiable health information that is maintained or transmitted electronically. 
 
In addition to HIPAA, there are numerous federal and state laws and regulations addressing patient and consumer privacy concerns, including 
unauthorized access or theft of personal information. State statutes and regulations vary from state to state. Lawsuits, including class actions 
and action by state attorneys general, directed at companies that have experienced a privacy or security breach can also occur. 
 
BLVD Centers believes that the cost of compliance with HIPAA and other federal and state privacy laws will not have a material adverse 
effect on its business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. However, there can be no assurance that a breach of privacy 
or security will not occur. If there is a breach, BLVD Centers may be subject to various penalties and damages and may be required to incur 
costs to mitigate the impact of the breach on affected individuals. 
 
Strategic Relationships with Third Parties 
 
BLVD Centers anticipates that it will continue to depend on the relationships with various third parties, including hospitals, long-term care 
facilities and physicians to grow its business. Identifying, negotiating and documenting relationships with third parties requires significant 
time and resources. BLVD Centers’ competitors may be effective in providing incentives to their parties to favor their solutions or may 
prevent BLVD Centers from developing strategic relationships with these parties. In addition, these third parties may not perform as expected 
under any agreement with them and BLVD Centers may have disagreements or disputes with these parties, which could negatively affect 
BLVD Centers’ brand and reputation. It is possible that these third parties may not be able to devote the resources that BLVD Centers expects 
from the relationship. If BLVD Centers is unsuccessful in establishing or maintaining its relationship with these third parties, BLVD Centers’ 
ability to compete in the marketplace or to grow its revenue could be impaired, and operating results would suffer. Even if BLVD Centers is 
successful, these relationships may not result in improved operating results. 
 
Referrals 
 
The success of BLVD Centers is primarily dependent upon physician referrals of patients for assessment and rehabilitation procedures. These 
referrals come through preferred provider and other service agreements established through competitive tendering processes. If BLVD 
Centers’ physician relationships were to decline in number, the business, financial condition and results of operations of BLVD Centers could 
be adversely affected. Further there is a risk concerning changes in the United States Anti-Kickback Statute and Stark Law and/or similar 
state laws, rules and regulations. 
 
Information Technology Systems 
 
BLVD Centers’ business depends, in part, on the continued and uninterrupted performance of its information technology systems. Sustained 
system failures or interruptions could disrupt BLVD Centers’ ability to operate effectively, which in turn could adversely affect its business, 
results of operations and financial condition. BLVD Centers’ computer systems may be vulnerable to damage from a variety of sources, 
including physical or electronic break-ins, computer viruses and similar disruptive problems. Despite precautions taken and the extensive 
mitigation strategies put in place by BLVD Centers, unanticipated problems affecting the information technology systems could cause 
interruptions for which BLVD Centers’ insurance policies may not provide adequate compensation. 
 
Insurance and Uninsured Risks 
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BLVD Centers’ business will be subject to a number of risks and hazards generally, including general liability. Such occurrences could result 
in damage to facilities, personal injury or death, damage to the properties of BLVD Centers, or the properties of others, monetary losses and 
possible legal liability. 
 
Although BLVD Centers will maintain insurance to protect against certain risks in such amounts as it considers to be reasonable, its insurance 
will not cover all potential risks associated with its operations. BLVD Centers may also be unable to maintain insurance to cover these risks 
at economically feasible premiums. Insurance coverage may not continue to be available or may not be adequate to cover any resulting 
liability. BLVD Centers might also become subject to liability which may not be insured against or which BLVD Centers may elect not to insure 
against because of premium costs or other reasons. Losses from these events may cause BLVD Centers to incur significant costs that could 
have a material adverse effect upon its financial performance and results of operations. 
 
General Litigation Risk 
 
Disputes are common in the United States healthcare industry and as such, in the normal course of business, BLVD Centers might be involved 
in various legal actions and proceedings which arise from time to time, some of which may be substantial. There is no assurance that BLVD 
Centers’ insurance arrangements will be sufficient to cover any particular claim or claims that may arise in the future. Furthermore, BLVD 
Centers is subject to the risk of claims and legal actions for various commercial and contractual matters in respect of which insurance is not 
available. 
 
Exchange Rate Fluctuations 
 
Exchange rate fluctuations may affect the costs that BLVD Centers incurs in its operations. The appreciation of non-United States dollar 
currencies against the United States dollar can increase the cost of operations in United States dollar terms. 
 
Holding Corporation 
 
BLVD Centers is considered a holding corporation and a substantial portion of its assets is the capital stock of its subsidiaries. As a result, the 
holders of BLVD Centers shares are subject to risks attributable to its subsidiaries. As a holding corporation, BLVD Centers conducts 
substantially all of its business through its subsidiaries, which generate substantially all of its revenue. Consequently, BLVD Centers’ cash 
flows and ability to complete current or desirable future enhancement opportunities are dependent on the earnings of its subsidiaries and 
the distribution of those earnings to BLVD Centers. The ability of the subsidiaries of BLVD Centers to pay dividends and other distributions 
depend on their operating results and is subject to applicable laws and regulations which require that solvency and capital standards be 
maintained by such companies and contractual restrictions contained in ten instruments governing their debt. In the event of bankruptcy, 
liquidation or reorganization of any of BLVD Centers’ subsidiaries, holders of indebtedness and trade creditors will generally be entitled to 
payment of their claims from the assets of those subsidiaries before any assets are made available for distribution to BLVD Centers. 

 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
 
BLVD Centers may face risks if there are deficiencies in its internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures. 
Internal controls over financial reporting are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of the financial statements for external reporting purposes. Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
adequate internal controls over financial reporting appropriate to the nature and size of BLVD Centers. The board of directors, in conjunction 
with its Audit Committee, is responsible for assessing the progress and sufficiency of internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure 
controls and procedures and will make adjustments as necessary. However, these initiatives may not be effective at remedying any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures. Any deficiencies, if uncorrected, could result 
in BLVD Centers’ financial statements being inaccurate and in future adjustments or restatements of its financial statements, which could 
adversely affect the price of BLVD Centers shares and BLVD Centers’ business, financial condition and results of operations. 
 
Ability to Implement Acquisition Strategy 
 
BLVD Centers may not be able to effectively implement its acquisition strategy. There is the possibility that BLVD Centers will not be able to 
reduce costs, improve profits or roll out additional rehabilitation facilities fast enough to meet its objectives. 
 
Key Credentialed Employees 
BLVD Centers will rely on a number of key employees and licensed providers with specialized training in the delivery of BLVD Centers’ 
services. BLVD Centers’ operations will be adversely affected if any of the key employees cease their employment with BLVD Centers or if 
BLVD Centers is unable to recruit and retain qualified staff. 
 
Uninsured and Underinsured Clients and Collection Risks 
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An increase in uninsured and underinsured clients or the deterioration in the collectability of the accounts of such clients could have a 
material adverse effect on BLVD Centers’ business, financial condition and results of operations. Collection of receivables from third-party 
payors and clients is critical to BLVD Centers’ operating performance. The primary collection risks are (i) the risk of overestimating BLVD 
Centers’ net revenues at the time of billing that may result in BLVD Centers receiving less than the recorded receivable, (ii) the risk of non-
payment as a result of commercial insurance companies denying claims, (iii) the risk that clients will fail to remit insurance payments to BLVD 
Centers when the commercial insurance company pays out-of-network claims directly to the client, (iv) resource and capacity constraints 
that may prevent BLVD Centers from handling the volume of billing and collection issues in a timely manner, (v) the risk that clients do not 
pay BLVD Centers for their self-pay balance (including co-pays, deductibles and any portion of the claim not covered by insurance, and (vi) 
the risk of non-payment from uninsured clients. Significant changes in business office operations, payor mix or economic conditions, 
including changes resulting from implementation of the Affordable Care Act, could affect BLVD Centers’ collection of accounts receivable, 
cash flows and results of operations.  Changes to the Affordable Care Act or other changes in law or regulation, including provisions requiring 
health insurers to allow parents to insure dependent children up to 26 years of age, could also increase the number of individuals who have 
private health insurance.   
 
Increased State and Federal Investigation of Healthcare Providers 
 
Both federal and state government agencies have heightened and coordinated their civil and criminal enforcement efforts as part of 
numerous ongoing investigations of healthcare companies and various segments of the healthcare industry. These investigations relate to a 
wide variety of topics, including relationships with physicians, billing practices and use of controlled substances. The PPACA included an 
additional $350 million of federal funding over 10 years to fight healthcare fraud, waste and abuse, including $40 million for federal fiscal 
year 2014. From time to time, the Office of Inspector General and the Department of Justice have established national enforcement 
initiatives that focus on specific billing practices or other suspected areas of abuse. In addition, increased government enforcement activities, 
even if not directed towards our treatment facilities, also increase the risk that BLVD Centers’ facilities, physicians and other clinicians 
furnishing services in BLVD Centers’ facilities, or BLVD Centers’ executives and directors, could become named as defendants in private 
litigation such as state or federal false claims act cases or consumer protection cases, or could become the subject of complaints at the 
various state and federal agencies that have jurisdiction over BLVD Centers’ operations. Any governmental investigations involving any of 
BLVD Centers’ facilities, executives or directors, even if BLVD Centers ultimately prevails, could result in significant expense and could 
adversely affect BLVD Centers’ reputation. 
 

Uncertainties Regarding the PPACA 
 

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, PPACA, provides for increased access to coverage for healthcare and seeks to reduce 
healthcare-related expenses. Overall, the expansion of health insurance coverage under the PPACA, most of which went into effect on 
January 1, 2014, is expected to be beneficial to the substance abuse treatment industry. Beginning January 1, 2014, health insurers are 
prohibited from denying coverage to individuals because of preexisting conditions. Further, all new small group and individual market health 
plans are required to cover ten essential health benefit categories, which include substance abuse addiction and mental health disorder 
services. Likewise, as of January 1, 2014, small group and individual market plans are required to comply with the requirements of the Mental 
Health Parity and Addiction Equity Act, MHPAEA, of 2008. According to the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services estimates 
published in February 2013, these changes are expected to expand coverage for substance abuse addiction treatment and mental health 
disorders treatment for another 62.5 million Americans. The expansion of commercial insurance for substance abuse treatment services 
under the PPACA may result in a higher demand for services from all providers. This may bring new competitors to the market, some of 
which may be better capitalized and have greater market penetration than BLVD Centers. Further, BLVD Centers expects increased demand 
for substance abuse treatment services to also increase the demand for case managers, therapists, medical technicians and others with 
clinical expertise in substance abuse treatment, which may make it both more difficult to adequately staff BLVD Centers’ substance abuse 
treatment facilities and could significantly increase its costs in delivering treatment, which may adversely affect both its operations and 
profitability. One of the many impacts of the PPACA has been a dramatic increase in payment reform efforts by federal and state government 
payors as well as commercial payors. These efforts take many forms including the growth of accountable care organizations, pay-for-
performance bonus arrangements, partial capitation arrangements and the bundling of services into a single payment. The end result of 
these efforts is that more risk of the overall cost of care is being transferred to providers. As institutional providers and their affiliated 
physicians assume more risk for the cost of care, BLVD Centers expects more services to be furnished within provider networks formed to 
accept these types of payment reform.  
 
BLVD Centers’ ability to compete and retain traditional sources of clients may be adversely affected by BLVD Centers’ exclusion from such 
networks or its inability to be included in such networks. BLVD Centers cannot predict the impact the implementation of the PPACA and 
related rulemaking and regulations may have on BLVD Centers’ business, results of operations, cash flow, capital resources and liquidity or 
whether BLVD Centers will be able to adapt successfully to the changes required by the PPACA. 
 
Changes to Federal, State and Local Regulations 
 
Because BLVD Centers’ treatment programs and operations are regulated at federal, state and local levels, BLVD Centers could be affected 
by different regulatory changes in different regional markets. Increases in the costs of regulatory compliance and the risks of noncompliance 
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may increase BLVD Centers’ operating costs, and BLVD Centers may not be able to recover these increased costs, which may adversely affect 
BLVD Centers’ results of operations and profitability. Also, because many of the current laws and regulations are relatively new, BLVD Centers 
does not always have the benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation of these laws and regulations. In the future, different 
interpretations or enforcement of these laws and regulations could subject BLVD Centers’ current or past practices to allegations of 
impropriety or illegality or could require BLVD Centers to make changes to its treatment facilities, equipment, personnel, services or capital 
expenditure programs. A determination that BLVD Centers has violated these laws, or the public announcement that BLVD Centers is being 
investigated for possible violations of these laws, could adversely affect BLVD Centers’ business, operating results and overall reputation in 
the marketplace. In addition, federal, state and local regulations may be enacted that impose additional requirements on BLVD Centers’ 
facilities, such as the 2013 changes to the HIPAA privacy and security regulations. Adoption of legislation or the creation of new regulations 
affecting BLVD Centers’ facilities could increase its operating costs, restrain its growth, limit it from taking advantage of opportunities 
presented and could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations. Adverse changes in existing 
comprehensive zoning plans or zoning regulations that impose additional restrictions on the use or requirements with respect to its facilities 
may affect BLVD Centers’ ability to operate its existing facilities or acquire new facilities, which may adversely affect its results of operations 
and profitability. 

 
Estimates of reimbursement amounts for services performed 
 
BLVD Centers recognizes revenues from commercial payers at the time services are provided based on estimates of the amount that payors 
will pay the Company for the services performed. Management estimates the net realizable value of revenues by adjusting gross client 
charges using expected realization rates and applying this discount to gross client charges. Expected realization is determined by 
management after taking into account historical collections received from commercial payors in the prior nine-month period by facility, by 
type of service and by payer.  Estimates of net realizable value are subject to significant judgment and approximation by management. It is 
possible that actual results could differ from the historical estimates management has used to help determine the net realizable value of 
revenues. If actual collections either exceed or are less than the net realizable value estimates, the Company will record a revenue 
adjustment, either positive or negative, for the difference between our estimate of the receivable and the amount actually collected in the 
reporting period in which the collection occurred. A significant negative revenue adjustment could have a material adverse effect on our 
revenues, profitability and cash flows in the reporting period in which such adjustment is recorded. In addition, if we record a significant 
revenue adjustment, either positive or negative, in any given reporting period, it may lead to significant shifts in our results from operations 
from quarter to quarter, which may limit our ability to make accurate long-term predictions about our future performance.  
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1. Incorporation and operations 

BLVD Centers Corporation. (the “Company” or “BLVD”) was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (British Colombia) 
(“BCBCA”) on June 7, 2013. On February 11, 2015 as a result of the Amalgamation transaction described in Note 2, The Company 
obtained the listing status of Valiant Minerals Ltd. (“Valiant”), on the NEX trading board of the TSX Venture Exchange (the “Exchange”). 
The Company trades under the trading symbol “CXV.” 

BLVD is focused on the United States detoxification and outpatient rehabilitation market. The Company owns or partners with highend 
treatment centers in California and Oregon. In the state of California, treatment centers are located in Los Angeles, Orange County, 
Corona and San Diego. In the state of Oregon, the centers are located in Portland and the Company’s headquarters and registered 
address is 800 W. 6th St. Suite 1415, Los Angeles, CA 90017.   

2. Amalgamation and private placement 

On February 11, 2015, the Company and Valiant Minerals Ltd. (“Valiant”), a corporation incorporated under the BCBCA and listed on 
the Exchange, completed a triangular amalgamation (the “Amalgamation”), whereby Valiant amalgamated as a wholly owned 
subsidiary of BLVD, 0986282 B.C. Ltd. (the “Amalgamation Entity”), to form an amalgamated corporation (named BLVD Health 
International Corp. at the time). As a result of the Amalgamation, all of the property and assets of Valiant and the Amalgamation Entity 
became the property and assets of the Company, and all of the liabilities and obligations of Valiant and the Amalgamation Entity 
became liabilities of the Company. Following the Amalgamation, The Company obtained the listing status on the Exchange and Valiant 
ceased to be a reporting issuer. 

3. Basis of presentation 

Statement of compliance 

These condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard 
34, Interim Financial Reporting. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information required for full annual financial statements 
required by International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and 
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”). These unaudited condensed 
interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements 
for the twelve months ended February 28, 2017. 

The condensed consolidated interim financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on January 
29th, 2018. 

Basis of presentation and measurement 

The condensed consolidated interim financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and have been presented in Canadian 
dollars (in thousands), except for share and per share information. These condensed consolidated interim financial statements have 
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the measurement of certain financial instruments at fair value as 
required by IFRS.  

Going concern 

These condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The application of the going 
concern basis of presentation assumes that the Company will continue its operations for the foreseeable future and be able to realize its 
assets and discharge its liabilities and commitments in the normal course of operation. If this assumption was not appropriate, adjustments 
to these condensed consolidated interim financial statements may be necessary. 

During the quarter ended November 30, 2017, the Company generated a net loss before stock based compensation of ($393) (the quarter 
ending November 30, 2016 had a net loss before stock based compensation of ($960)). The Company had $2,493 in cash used in operations 
during the quarter ended November 30, 2017 (the quarter ending November 30, 2016 had $3,967 in cash used in operations). 

 

Basis of consolidation 

The Company consolidates all subsidiaries. As such, assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of all subsidiaries have been consolidated. 
All intercompany transactions and balances with subsidiaries have been eliminated. The functional currency for BLVD Health 
International, Corp. is Canadian dollars.  

The consolidated entities include the following wholly owned subsidiaries: 
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Entity Country of 
domicile 

% Ownership Functional 
Currency 

Accredited Rehab and Treatment 
Services, LLC 

United States 100% United States 
dollars 

BLVD Centers Inc.   United States 100% United States 
dollars 

CBD Laboratories, Inc. United States 100% United States 
dollars 

Convalo Health, Inc. United States 100% United States 
dollars 

Harmony Hollywood, LLC United States 100% United States 
dollars 

Reflections Recovery, LLC United States 100% United States 
dollars 

San Diego Detox, Inc. United States 100% United States 
dollars 

Portland Detox & Residential, Inc. United States 100% United States 
dollars 

    

 

As of November 30, 2017 and 2016, and for all the periods then ended, all of the Company’s revenues were earned and all of the 
Company’s non-current assets were located in the United States. 

Reporting Currency 

All values are in Canadian dollars ($) in thousands, unless specifically indicated otherwise. United States dollars are indicated as US$. 

4. Summary of significant accounting policies 

The condensed consolidated interim financial statements include the following significant accounting policies: 

Revenue recognition 

The Company’s revenues primarily consist of service charges related to providing addiction treatment and related services to clients in 
both inpatient and outpatient settings. The majority of the Company’s revenues are reimbursable by commercial payors, at out-of-
network rates, with the remaining revenues payable directly by the Company’s clients. The Company bills commercial payors, once 
insurance has been verified and services have been performed, based on usual and customary rates for each service. These billed rates 
are discounted to expected reimbursement rates (or net realizable value) as determined by management after taking into account the 
type of services provided and the historical collections received from the commercial payors for each service, on a per facility basis. 
Revenue from commercial payors is recognized based on these expected reimbursement rates at the time services are provided. 
Revenue from clients is recognized based on collections, once services have been completed. Collections occur upon admission and/or 
are billed and collected once a client discharges from treatment. From time to time, the Company provides free care to a limited 
number of clients, which are referred to as scholarships. The Company does not recognize revenues for scholarships provided. 

Cash and restricted cash 

Cash comprises cash on-hand and demand deposits that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash held in trust or escrow, or that the Company is otherwise restricted from using, is 
classified as restricted cash and shown separately on the consolidated statements of financial position.  



 
BLVD Centers Corporation 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the three and six months ended November 30, 2017 and November 30, 2016 
Unaudited  
(CAD $000s) 

  

Page | 8  

Accounts receivable 

Accounts receivable are recorded at the time revenue is recognized and are presented on the statements of financial position net of 
allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company performs regular analyses to evaluate the net realizable value of accounts receivable as 
of the statement of financial position date. Specifically, the Company considers historical realization data, accounts receivable aging 
trends, other operating trends and relevant business conditions.  

 

 
Income taxes 
 
The Company and its subsidiaries are generally taxable under the statutes of their country of incorporation. Current income tax assets 
and liabilities for the current and prior period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to items 
recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of loss and comprehensive income. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to 
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. The Company follows the liability method of accounting for deferred 
taxes. Under this method, income tax liabilities and assets are recognized for the estimated tax consequences attributable to the 
temporary differences between the carrying value of the assets and liabilities on the financial statements and their respective tax 
bases. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss or in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with 
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the 
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax 
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits 
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current income tax assets against 
current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, would be 
recognized subsequently if information about facts and circumstances changed. The adjustment would either be treated as a reduction 
to goodwill if it occurred during the measurement period or in the statement of loss and comprehensive income, when it occurs 
subsequent to the measurement period. 

 
 
Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Major renewals and improvements are charged to the 
property accounts, while maintenance and repairs, which do not extend the useful life of the respective assets, are expensed as 
incurred. All assets having limited useful lives are depreciated from the date of acquisition using the straightline method over their 
estimated useful lives.  
 

The methods of depreciation and useful life applicable for each class of asset are as follows: 

 

Category Method Useful Life 
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Furniture and fixtures Straight-line 3-7 years 

Computer hardware Straight-line 3 years 

Vehicles Straight-line 5 years 

Leasehold improvements Straight-line Term of lease 

Buildings Straight-line 27-28 years 

 

 

Land owned by the Company is not depreciated.  

Useful lives, components, the depreciation method and residual amounts are reviewed annually. Such a review takes into consideration 
the nature of the assets and the intended evolution of the technology. Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the 
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in net income (loss). 
 
Intangible assets  
 
The Company has recorded various intangible assets consisting primarily of non-compete agreements, customer relationships and 
software.  Non-compete agreements are the value associated with the non-compete agreements entered into by the sellers of acquired 
companies.  Customer relationships are the value given in the purchase price allocation to the long-term associations with referral sources 
such as doctors, medical centers, etc.  Finite life intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 
the related assets as follows: 
 
 

Category Useful Life 

Customer relationships 5 years 

Non-compete agreements 5 years 

Software 3 years 
 
  

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses whether there has been any indication that an asset may be impaired. If an 
impairment indicator exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is determined and compared to the carrying amount of the asset. If the 
recoverable amount is lower, any difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount is written off to the consolidated 
statements of loss and comprehensive income as an impairment charge. 
 
Acquisition accounting 

The Company accounts for business acquisitions where control is acquired as business combinations under IFRS 3, Business 
Combinations, which requires the allocation of the purchase price to the various tangible and intangible assets and liabilities of the 
acquired business at their respective fair values with excess recorded as goodwill. The Company uses all available information to 
determine the fair values of the various tangible and intangible assets and liabilities acquired. 
 
Option related compensation and warrants 
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The Company measures share based payments to employees and contractors by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at 
the date on which they are granted or committed. The fair value of shares is based on recent transactions with arm’s length parties. 
The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of options and warrants. The inputs into the 
Black-Scholes model, including the expected life of the instrument, expected volatility, risk-free interest rate, dividend yield and 
expected forfeiture rate are determined by reference to the underlying terms of the instrument, the Company’s experience with similar 
instruments and observable market data. The assumptions used for estimating fair value of share based payments, options and 
warrants are disclosed in Note 11. The value of options is expensed on a graded basis over the vesting or service period for each 
tranche. Warrants are issued in connection with common stock issuances and accordingly the fair value of warrants is netted off against 
the proceeds from the issuance and recorded as contributed surplus. Stock based compensation for the three ended November 30, 
2017 was $206. For the three months ended November 30, 2016, stock based compensation totaled $678.  
 
Basic and diluted loss per share 

 
The Company presents basic and diluted loss per share data for its common shares, calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable 
to common shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
loss per share is determined by adjusting the loss attributable to common shareholders and the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential securities, which are comprised of stock options and warrants. Diluted loss per 
share is not shown where the effects of the above adjustments are anti-dilutive. 
 
 
 
Foreign currency translation 

 
Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are 
measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities in their 
respective functional currency at rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. 

 
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting 
date and their statements of loss are translated at the average rate of exchange for the period being reported. The exchange 
differences arising on the translation are recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). On disposal of a foreign operation, the 
component of other comprehensive income (loss) relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in profit or loss.  

Functional Currency 

The Company determines the functional currency for each entity by performing an assessment of the primary economic environment in 
which each entity operates. The determination of functional currency affects how the Company translates foreign currency balances 
and transactions. As an investment holding company, management of BLVD Centers, Corp. considered the currency that primarily 
influences the issuance of shares, outstanding options, incurring of costs and inter-company receivables, all of which are in Canadian 
dollars. Management thus concluded that the functional currency of BLVD Centers, Corp. is Canadian dollars. For Convalo Health, Inc. 
and its U.S. subsidiaries the Company reviewed the indicators that primarily influence or determine the selling price of its services and 
the cost of providing those services to be United States dollars.  

Leases 

The economic ownership of a leased asset is transferred to the lessee if the lessee bears substantially all the risks and rewards related 
to the ownership of the leased asset. The related asset is then recognized at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased 
asset or, if lower, the present value of the lease payments plus incidental payments, if any. A corresponding amount is recognized as a 
finance leasing liability, irrespective of whether some of these lease payments are payable upfront at the date of inception of the lease. 
Leases of land and building are classified separately and the minimum lease payments are allocated between the land and building 
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests at the inception of the lease. 
 
Assets under finance lease are amortized on a straight-line basis, over the shorter of the useful life and the lease term. The depreciation 
policy for depreciable leased assets is consistent with that for depreciable assets that are owned by the Company. The corresponding 
finance leasing liability is reduced by lease payments less finance charges, which are expensed as part of finance costs. 
 
All other leases are accounted for as operating leases, and payments are expensed on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred. 
              

        Financial instruments 
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Financial assets and liabilities 
 

The Company classifies its financial assets as [i] financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, [ii] loans and receivables or [iii] 
available-for-sale, and its financial liabilities as either [i] financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or [ii] other financial 
liabilities. Appropriate classification of financial assets and liabilities is determined at the time of initial recognition or when reclassified 
in the statement of financial position.  
  
Financial instruments are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") 
 
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held-for-trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. 
Financial assets are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. This 
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships 
as defined by IAS 39. 
 
Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in the fair value recognized in the 
statement of loss and comprehensive loss. Transaction costs on FVTPL are expensed as incurred. 
 

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic 
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held-for-trading. These 
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the statement of loss and comprehensive 
income. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would 
otherwise be required. 
 
Loans and receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 
Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest method less any impairment. The effective interest amortization is included in finance costs in the 
statement of loss and comprehensive loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized as finance costs in the statement of loss 
and comprehensive loss. 
 

 
Impairment of financial assets 
 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is impaired. A financial asset is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one 
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, an incurred 'loss event', and that loss event has an impact on 
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. 
 
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial 
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines 
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a group of financial 
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for 
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of 
impairment. 

 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the 
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The present value of the estimated future cash flows is 
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. 
 
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit 
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to 
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance 
costs. 
 
Loans and receivables together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery. If, 
in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the 
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impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a 
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs. 
 

Other financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. All financial liabilities are initially measured at 
fair value. Transaction costs related other financial liabilities are included in the value of the instruments and amortized using the 
effective interest method. The effective interest expense is included in finance costs.  

 
Financial instrument classification 
 
The Company has designated its cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable and loans receivable as loans and receivables and accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities as other financial liabilities. The Company has designated its finance leases as other financed liabilities.   
 

Derecognition 
 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. 
 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and 
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 
 
Interest income and expense 
 

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income or expense is recorded using the effective interest method, 
which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or 
a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income and expense is 
included in finance cost. 
 

Fair value of financial instruments 
 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is 
determined by reference to quoted market prices, without any deduction for transaction costs. 
 
For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques that are 
recognized by market participants. Such techniques may include using recent arm's length market transactions, reference to the 
current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models. 
 
For those financial instruments where fair value is recognized in the statement of financial position the methods and assumptions used 
to develop fair value measurements have been classified into one of the three levels of the fair value hierarchy for financial 
instruments: 

 
Level 1 includes quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 includes inputs that are observable other than quoted prices included in Level 1. 
Level 3 includes inputs that are not based on observable market data. 
 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:  
 
Cash and restricted cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely 
due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.   
 

Impairment of non-financial assets 
 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If such an indication exists, 
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the “cash-generating unit” 
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(CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also 
allocated to individual CGU’s, or they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU’s for which a reasonable and consistent allocation 
basis can be identified. 
 
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount 
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.  
 
Value in use is determined by discounting estimated future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market 
assessment of the time value of money and the specific risks of the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market 
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. The 
recoverable amount of assets that do not generate independent cash flows is determined based on the CGU to which the asset 
belongs. 
 
The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of 
the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.  
 
An impairment loss is recognized in the statements of loss and comprehensive income if an asset's carrying amount or that of the CGU 
to which it is allocated is higher than its recoverable amount. Impairment losses of CGUs are first charged against the carrying value of 
the goodwill balance included in the CGU and then against the value of the other assets, in proportion to their carrying amount. In the 
statements of loss and comprehensive income, the impairment losses are recognized in those expense categories consistent with the 
function of the impaired asset. 
 
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's 
or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions 
used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the 
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such a reversal is recognized in 
the statements of loss and comprehensive income. 

Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amount 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.  

The following are the significant estimates that the Company has made in preparing the consolidated financial statements: 

Recognition of revenues 

Revenues from commercial payors are recognized based on expected realizable rates using historical collections rates by payor for each 
service provided. If no collections data is available for a payor (for example where the payor is new to the Company), the Company uses 
the Company-wide average reimbursement rate for that particular service. If commercial payors change their reimbursement rates for 
services already provided but not yet reimbursed, or a new payor rate is different from the estimated rate used, revenue is adjusted to 
account for the new rates. Because of continuing changes in the health care industry and third party reimbursement, it is possible the 
Company’s estimates could change, which could have a material impact on the Company’s recorded revenues and earnings. 

Valuation of accounts receivable 

The Company records bad debt expense based on the Company’s historical experience of denials from commercial insurers. Denials can 
be as a result of termed policies, client deductibles not met, client maximum benefits limit met, etc. In addition, management reviews 
accounts receivable in detail at each reporting period and provides for specific accounts that are deemed to not be collectible. Because 
of continuing changes in the health care industry and third party reimbursement, it is possible that the Company’s estimates could 
change, which could have a material impact on our operations and cash flows. If circumstances related to certain customers change or 
actual results differ from expectations, the Company’s estimate of the recoverability of receivables could fluctuate from that provided 
for in the consolidated financial statements. A change in estimate could impact expenses and accounts receivable. 

Valuation of deferred income tax assets 
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The Company assesses the probability of taxable profits being available in the future based on its budget forecasts. These forecasts are 
adjusted to take account of certain non-taxable income and expenses and specific rules on the use of unused credits and tax losses. 
When a forecast shows a net profit, the Company considers that the use of deferred income taxes is probable and recognizes the 
benefit. When management believes that the benefits will not be realized, the deferred income tax asset is not recognized.  

Identification of cash-generating units 

The Company has allocated its tangible and intangible assets to the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows and 
that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets. The Company applied judgment to determine its cash-generating 
units. 

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 

The Company tests whether goodwill or intangible assets are impaired in accordance with International Accounting Standard (“IAS”) 36, 
Impairment of Assets. The recoverable amount of cash-generating units is determined based on a value in use calculation. The method 
requires an estimate of future cash flows and the selection of a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the net present value of the 
cash flows. 

Stock based compensation 

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of the Company’s issued stock options and 
warrants as prescribed by IFRS 2. The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires management to make various estimates about certain 
inputs into the model, including the expected option life, expected volatility, risk-free interest rate and expected dividend yield. A 
change in any of these estimates at the time the underlying options or warrants were issued would have impacted the Company’s 
equity and ongoing stock-based compensation expense. 

Segment reporting 

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be determined based on the Company’s internal reporting to the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
(‘CODM’). The CODM has been determined to be the CEO as he is primarily responsible for the allocation of resources and the 
assessment of performance.  
 
The CODM uses operating profit, as reviewed at monthly business review meetings, as the key measure of the Company’s results as it reflects 
the Company’s underlying performance for the period under evaluation. Operating profit is defined as profit on operations before interest, 
taxes, stock-based compensation, amortization of intangibles and impairment expenses.  
 
The CODM’s primary focus for review and resource allocation is the Company as a whole and not any component part of the business. All 
revenue streams for the business are managed centrally by functional teams (Sales and marketing, Billing and Collections and Finance) that 
have responsibility for the whole of the Company’s location portfolio. Although some discrete financial information is available to provide 
insight to the management team of the key performance drivers, location profit is not part of the CODM’s review. Having considered these 
factors, management has determined that the Company comprises one operating segment under IFRS 8. As such, the disclosures required 
under IFRS 8 for the consolidated financial statements are shown on the face of the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive 
income and consolidated statements of financial position.  

 

5. Accounts Receivable 
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6. Property, plant and equipment 
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7. Goodwill and Intangible assets 

 

8. Capital leases and loans 

 

9. Share capital 

 

(i) On February 11, 2015, the Company issued 5,900,000 shares value at $0.10 per share to Valiant shareholders in 
connection with the Amalgamation transaction described in Note 2.  
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(ii) In conjunction with the Amalgamation, Valiant completed a non-brokered private placement of 58,140,000 subscription 
receipts at a price of $0.05 per subscription receipt for aggregate gross proceeds of $2,907. Each subscription receipt 
issued in connection with the private placement entitled the holder, just prior to the Amalgamation, to acquire one 
common share in the capital of Valiant and (i) one-half of one transferable share purchase warrant (a "Valiant A 
Warrant"), with each whole Valiant A Warrant entitling the holder to acquire one Valiant Share at a price of $0.10 per 
share until the date that is the earlier of (a) thirty (30) months from the date of issuance, and (b) ninety (90) days 
following the Amalgamation, and (ii) one-half of one transferable share purchase warrant (a "Valiant B Warrant"), with 
each whole Valiant B Warrant entitling the holder thereof to acquire one Valiant Share at a price of $0.10 per share 
until the date that is the earlier of (a) thirty (30) months from the date of issuance, and (b) twelve (12) months following 
the Amalgamation. In connection with the private placement 3,978,800 broker warrants were issued at an exercise 
price of $0.05 per Valiant share exercisable for a period of 24 months. Pursuant to the Amalgamation each Valiant 
share, A Warrant and B Warrant issued pursuant to a subscription receipt, and each broker warrant issued pursuant to 
the private placement was exchanged for similar securities of the Company on a one for two bases, and with the 
exercise price of the warrants increased by 100%. As a result, immediately following the Amalgamation, the Company 
issued 29,070,000 shares at $0.10 per share, 29,070,000 warrants exercisable at $0.10 per share and 1,989,400 broker 
warrants exercisable at $0.10 per share. The warrants issued were valued at $17 and the broker warrants were valued 
at $43. Costs directly attributable to the private placement amounted to $199.  

(iii) On April 22, 2015 (the “Closing), the Company closed on a bought deal private placement of 43,125,000 units. Each Unit 
consists of one common share in the capital of the Company issued at $0.40 per common share, and one warrant of the 
Company. Each Warrant entitles the holder thereof to acquire one common share for an exercise price of $0.50 per 
common share for a period of 36 months following the closing of the offering. The expiry date of the Warrants may be 
accelerated by the Company at any time following the six-month anniversary of the Closing and prior to the expiry date 
of the Warrants if the volume-weighted average trading price of the Company’s common shares is greater than $0.60 
for any 20 consecutive trading days. In addition, in connection with the bought deal, the Company issued 3,018,750 
compensation options to the underwriters. Each compensation option entitles the holder to purchase one unit (a 
“Unit”) consisting of a) one common share in the capital of the Company and b) one common share purchase warrant 
at an exercise price of $0.50 per common share on or before April 22, 2018. The compensation options are exercisable 
at a price per Unit of $0.40 and expire on April 22, 2018. The Company received gross proceeds of $17,250 in 
connection with the bought deal private placement and incurred cash share issuance costs of $1,467. The warrants 
issued were valued at $5,103 and the broker warrants were valued at $133.  
  
  
  

(iv) During the fifteen months ended February 29, 2016, a total of 60,944,550 warrants and 3,836,950 broker warrants 
were exercised at a weighted average exercise price of $0.19 per share for total net proceeds of $12,324. Costs directly 
attributable to the conversion into common stock amounted to $242. During the fifteen months ended February 29, 
2016 the vesting of 6,000,000 options was accelerated, of these options 2,000,000 options were exercised at a 
weighted average exercise price of $0.10 per share for total proceeds of $205, resulting in additional option expense of 
$143 which is included on the consolidated financial statements.  

(v) On June 30, 2015, the Company completed the acquisition of Hollywood Detox Center and Accredited Rehab and 
Treatment Services (ARTS). As part of the purchase the Company issued 12,000,000 common shares to Hollywood 
Detox and ARTS shareholders at a fair value of $0.375 per share.  

(vi) During the year ended February 28, 2017 66,500 warrants were exercised at a weighted average exercise price of $0.10 
per share for total net proceeds of $7 transferred from contributed surplus. Cost directly attributed to the conversion 
into common stock amounted to $nil.  

(vii) In October 2016, as part of the agreement with Kings Cross Advisors Inc. (“KCA”), the Company issued 4,350,000 
common shares to KCA shareholders at a fair value of $0.105 per share, for services provided.  

(viii) In January 2017, the Company issued 234,684 shares at a price of $0.075 per share, pursuant to an employment 
agreement between the Company and Todd Reber. 
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10. Options and warrants 

Options 
 
Subsequent to the Amalgamation transaction, the Company implemented an incentive stock option plan that provides that the Board of 
Directors of BLVD may from time to time, in its discretion and in accordance with Exchange requirements, grant to directors, officers and 
employees and consultants of BLVD, non-transferable options to purchase BLVD shares, provided that the number of BLVD shares reserved 
for issuance will not exceed 10% of the total issued and outstanding BLVD shares, exercisable for a period of up to ten (10) years from the 
date of the grant. The number of BLVD shares reserved for issuance to any individual director or officer of BLVD will not exceed 5% of the 
issued and outstanding BLVD shares and the total number of options awarded to any one consultant in any twelve-month period shall not 
exceed 2% of the issued and outstanding shares of BLVD at the date that the particular option was granted without consent being obtained 
from the Exchange. The exercise price of any options granted under the BLVD option plan shall not be less than the closing price of BLVD 
shares on the day preceding the day on which the directors grant such options, less any discount permitted by the Exchange. Options held 
by a director or employee who ceases to be employed by BLVD expire one year from the date the director or ceases to be a director of 
BLVD or the employee ceases to be employed by BLVD. 
 
On June 24, 2016, the shareholders approved a new 20% fixed number stock option plan (the "2016 Option Plan") at BLVD's Annual & 
Special Meeting of Shareholders. The 2016 Option Plan reserves 45,606,510 common shares and replaces BLVD's 10% rolling stock option 
plan.  
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The estimated fair value of options is expensed on a graded basis over the vesting or service period for each tranche. The vesting period 
approximates three years for all issued and outstanding option compensation. For the three months ended November 30, 2017, option 
related payments expense totaled $206 and were recorded relating to the fair value of options vested.  
 
The fair value of the Company’s stock options was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following 
assumptions: 
  
 
 

Category November 30, 2017 

Expected option life 5-10 years 

Expected volatility 40.4% - 64.7% 

Risk-free interest rate 0.74% - 1.83% 

Dividend yield Nil 

Weighted average share price at grant 
date 

$0.33 

Weighted average exercise price $0.28 

Estimated forfeiture rate 0.0% 
 

 
 

Expected volatility was estimated by reference to comparable listed entities since the Company’s own shares have limited trading 
history.  

 
Warrants 

 
Warrants to acquire voting common shares outstanding and exercisable at November 30, 2017 and February 28, 2017 were as follows:
  

 

 
 
(i) Included in warrants outstanding at November 30, 2014 are warrants to acquire 17,855,000 common shares pursuant to an 

issue of subscription receipts. These subscription receipts and warrants were held in escrow and were released in February 



 
BLVD Centers Corporation 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the three and six months ended November 30, 2017 and November 30, 2016 
Unaudited  
(CAD $000s) 

  

Page | 20  

2015 upon the conversion of the subscription receipts to common shares following the Amalgamation.  
(ii) In connection with the February 2015 private placement completed as part of the Amalgamation, the Company issued 

warrants to purchase 29,070,000 common shares at an exercise price of $0.20 per share and broker warrants purchasing 
1,989,400 common shares at a price of $0.10 per common share. 

(iii) In connection with the bought deal private placement in April, 2015, the Company issued warrants to purchase 43,125,000 
common shares at $0.50 and 3,018,750 compensation options to the underwriters. Each compensation option entitles the 
holder to purchase one unit (a “Unit”) consisting of a) one common share in the capital of BLVD and b) one common share 
purchase warrant at an exercise price of $0.50 per common share on or before April 22, 2018. The compensation options are 
exercisable at a price per Unit of $0.40 for a period of 36 months following the closing of the offering. These warrants are 
subject to acceleration at the Company’s option after six months if BLVD's share price achieves a volume-weighted average 
trading price greater than $0.60 for 20 consecutive trading days since closing. 

(iv) In October 2015, the Company confirmed that the expiry date of certain outstanding warrants, exercisable for 43,125,000 
common shares of the Company at $0.50 per share, were accelerated to November 17, 2015, pursuant to the terms of the 
warrant certificates. The acceleration is a result of the Company’s share price achieving a volume-weighted average trading 
price greater than $0.60 for 20 consecutive trading days around the time of closing of the Harmony Hollywood, LLC and 
Accredited Rehab and Treatment Services, LLC acquisition, which was announced on May 20, 2015. The warrants were 
originally issued pursuant to the Company’s bought-deal private placement (refer Note 10 (vi)). Warrants cancelled in 
connection with this transaction resulted in the reversal of $5,164 placed back into share capital with the offsetting entry 
being made to contribute surplus. 
 

 
Warrants outstanding at November 30, 2017 expire at various dates through February 2025. 

 
 
The fair value of the warrants issued in connection with the private placement was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing 
model with the following assumptions: 
 

Expected warrant life 1.75 years 

Expected volatility 41% 

Risk-free interest rate 0.43% 

Dividend yield Nil 

Share price at grant date $0.10 

Exercise price $0.10 

 

 

The fair value of the broker warrants issued in connection with the above offering was estimated using the Black Scholes model with 
the following significant assumptions: 

Expected warrant life 0.25 - 1 years 

Expected volatility  41% 

Risk-free interest rate 0.43% 

Dividend yield Nil 

Share price at grant date $0.10 

Exercise price $0.20 
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The fair value of the warrants issued in connection with the bought deal private placement was calculated using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model with the following assumptions: 
 

Expected warrant life 3 years 

Expected volatility  50% 

Risk-free interest rate 0.66% 

Dividend yield Nil 

Share price at grant date $0.40 

Exercise price $0.50 

 
 

The fair value of the compensation options issued to underwriters in connection with the bought deal private placement was calculated 
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: 
 

Expected warrant life 3 years 

Expected volatility  50% 

Risk-free interest rate 66% 

Dividend yield Nil 

Share price at grant date $0.40 

Exercise price $0.50 
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11. Expenses by nature 

 

12. Income taxes 

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, current income taxes are 
recognized for the estimated income taxes payable for the current year. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for 
temporary differences between the tax and accounting basis of assets and liabilities as well as for the benefit of losses available to 
be carried forward to future years for tax purposes are measured using the current or substantively enacted tax rates expected to 
apply when the differences reverse. A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that the recoverability of deferred income tax 
assets is considered probable. 

 
The Company's provision for (recovery of) income taxes differs from the amount that is computed by applying the combined federal 
and state statutory income tax rate of 40% in the United States to the Company's net income (loss) before income taxes as 
follows: 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset where they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the 
Company has the legal right and intent to offset. It is more probable than not that the Company will utilize available non-capital loss 
carry-forwards and deferred tax assets to offset the anticipated future taxable profits. Therefore, a net deferred income tax asset is 
being recognized for US non-capital tax loss carry-forwards and other available tax assets.  

  
Unrecognized deferred tax assets 
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Deferred taxes are provided as a result of temporary differences that arise due to the differences between the income tax values and 
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities.  
  

The Canadian non-capital loss carry forwards expire noted in the table below. The US loss carry-forwards expire as noted in 2035.  Share 
issuance and financing costs will be fully amortized in 2019. The remaining deductible temporary differences may be carried forward 
indefinitely.  Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it is not probable that future profit will be 
available against which the Company can utilize the benefits therefrom. 
 
The Company’s Canadian non-capital income tax losses expire as follows: 

 

                       
 

13. Financial instruments and financial risk management 

Foreign currency risk 
 

A significant portion of the Company's revenues are transacted in U.S. dollars and as a result, fluctuations in the rate of exchange 
between the U.S. dollar and Canadian dollar can have a significant impact on the Company's cash flows and reported results. As a 
majority of the Company’s operating expenses are also in United States dollars, operational foreign currency risk is limited. 

 
Fair value  

 

The fair values of cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying 
values given their short-term maturities.  
Credit risk 

 

Credit risk is the potential that customers or a counterparty to a financial instrument fail to meet their obligation to the Company.  
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of trade accounts receivable 
as the Company's revenues are concentrated to California. The Company had many customers during the course of the year and 
believes that there is minimal risk associated with collection of these amounts. The Company manages its credit risk by ensuring the 
eligibility of its patients for insurance or other coverage prior to admittance.  

 
As explained in Note 3, revenue is estimated to be the amount collectible from large insurers. Given the counterparties in these 
transactions, which are generally large, financially stable commercial insurers, the Company considers the credit quality of these 
receivables to be high. Credit risk is generally limited to the risk that the estimated amount of revenue that can be collected is not 
accurate. 

 
Liquidity risk 

 

Liquidity risk is the risk the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial liability obligations as they become due. The Company 
manages its liquidity risk through cash management. In managing liquidity risk, the Company maintains access to equity markets, the availability 
of which is dependent on market conditions. The Company monitors its requirements through the use of rolling future net cash flow projections 
and budgets and believes it has sufficient funding through its current cash position to continue operating for the foreseeable future. All financial 
liabilities, except for $x related to capital lease obligations which are due in the next 2 years, are current and due within the next twelve months. 

 
 

 
Other risk 

The Company is not exposed to any significant interest rate risk as it does not have any borrowings and loans receivable that carry fixed 
rates of interest. The Company is not exposed to any significant price risk or other financial risks due to the nature of its business 
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14. Capital management 

The Company’s objectives in managing capital are to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor and creditor confidence; 
to ensure sufficient liquidity to service its debts, support capital projects and growth-oriented acquisitions; and to provide a return to 
shareholders. 
 
Capital is used by the Company to finance capital expenditures and fund acquisitions that add to its ability to generate returns and 
meet long-term strategic growth objectives. 
 
The Company sets the amount and type of capital required relative to its assessment of risk and manages the capital structure and 
makes adjustments to it in light of changes to economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to 
maintain or modify its capital structure, the Company may adjust or defer the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new 
shares, seek other forms of financing, or sell assets to reduce debt.  
 
The Company manages its share capital, contributed surplus, deficit and long-term debt as capital.A 

15. Related party transaction 

 For the quarter ending November 30, 2017 there were no related party transactions to report. 

16. Commitments 

Leases 

The Company has property under operating leases. For the three months ended November 30, 2017 and November 30, 2016, the 
Company incurred rent expense of $161 and $541, respectively. 

Minimum aggregate payments on all operating leases in the future as of November 30, 2017 are as follows: 

 

In March 2016, the Company entered into a five-year master lease agreement with a Real Estate Investment Fund (the “RE Fund” or 
“Lessor”). The agreement covers the next eight inpatient pods, potentially including up to 16 properties, that the Company desires to utilize 
for inpatient services as part of its expansion plans. Subject to certain limitations, the agreement requires the RE Fund, as lessor, to 
purchase properties identified by the Company and to lease those properties to the Company for a period of five years, after which, the 
Company has the option to extend each lease for an additional five years, acquire all the properties at a guaranteed return to the RE Fund 
or let the leases lapse. The leases also contain an early termination right for the Company, which the Company may exercise after one year, 
provided the Company acquires the leased property from the RE Fund. As part of securing this agreement, the Company will issue 
8,700,000 shares to the RE Fund. The agreement allows the Company to support its expansion plans without having to utilize its own cash 
or access outside financing. 

17. Loss per share 

Income/Loss per share is based on the consolidated net loss for the period divided by the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per share is computed in accordance with the treasury stock method and based on the 
weighted average number of shares and dilutive share equivalents. 

 
For the three and six months ended November 30, 2017 and November 30, 2016, respectively, the outstanding warrants and options 
were excluded from the calculation of diluted loss per share because their effect is anti-dilutive. 
 
The following reflects the earnings and share data used in the basic and diluted loss per share computations: 
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18.  Contingencies 

From time to time the Company is subject to audits by commercial insurers as well as investigations from the Department of Insurance 
from the State of California or equivalent agencies for other states. These audits and investigations typically cover claims upon which 
payment has already been made to the Company. No provision has been established against any potential claims from commercial insurers 
or government agencies as the likelihood of settlement of some or all of any demand is not determinable at this time.  
 

19. Accounting standards issued but not yet effective 

 
The International Accounting Standards Board has issued several new standards and amendments that will be effective on various dates. 
The listing below is of standards, interpretation and amendments issued which the Company reasonably expects to be applicable at a 
future date. The Company intended to adopt those standards when they become effective. The impact on the Company is currently 
being assessed. 
 
Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures (“IFRS 7”). The Company will be required to adopt amendments to IFRS 7, 
requiring increased disclosure regarding derecognition of financial assets and the continuing involvement accounting for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2016. Management is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any that the adoption of IFRS 7 will 
have on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 
 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments  
 
In July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) issued the final version of IFRS 9 (2014) as a complete standard 
including the requirements previously issued and the additional amendments to introduce a new expected loss impairment model and 
limited changes to the classification and measurement requirements for financial assets. This Standard will replace IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 (2014) is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with 
early adoption permitted. The Company has yet to assess the impact of the new standard on its results of operations, financial position 
and disclosures. 
 
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers  
 
In May 2014, the International Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”) issued a new International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”) on 
the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 specifies how and when entities recognize revenue, as well as 
requires more detailed and relevant disclosures. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. 
Earlier application is permitted. The Company has yet to assess the impact of the new standard on its results of operations, financial 
position and disclosures. 
 
IFRS 16, Leases (“IFRS 16”) was issued by the IASB on January 13, 2016. The Company will be required to adopt IFRS 16 in its financial 
statements for the annual period beginning on January 1, 2019. The new standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and 
requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of 
low value. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability 
representing its obligation to make lease payments. This standard substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements of 
IAS 17, while requiring enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessors. Management is currently evaluating the potential impact, if any, 
that the adoption of IFRS 16 will have on the Company’s financial statements.  
 
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements (“IAS 1”). The Company will be required to adopt amendments to IAS 1, 
which includes amendments to further encourage companies to apply judgment in determining what information to disclose in their 
financial statements for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. Management is currently evaluating the potential impact, 
if any, that the amendments to IAS 1 will have on the Company’s financial statements. 
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The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) of the financial condition and results of operations of BLVD 
Centers, Corp. (“BLVD Centers” or the “Company”), prepared as of January 29th, 2018, should be read in conjunction with the 
consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended November 30, 2017 and November 30, 2016, including 
the notes therein. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Unless otherwise specified, all financial data is presented in Canadian dollars. The words “we”, 
“our”, “us”, “Company”, and “BLVD Centers” refer to BLVD Centers, Corp and/or the management and employees of the 
Company. 
 
Additional information relevant to the Company is available for review on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. 
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CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
Information included or incorporated by reference in this report may contain forward-looking statements. This information 
may involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors which may cause our actual results, performance, or 
achievements to be materially different from the future results, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by any 
forward-looking statements.  Forward-looking statements, which involve assumptions and describe our future plans, 
strategies, and expectations, are generally identifiable by use of the words “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “anticipate,” 
“estimate,” “believe,” “plan,” “intend” or “project” or the negative of these words or other variations on these words or 
comparable terminology. Readers are cautioned regarding statements discussing profitability; growth strategies; anticipated 
trends in our industry; our future financing plans; and our anticipated needs for working capital. Actual events or results may 
differ materially from those discussed in forward-looking statements. There can be no assurance that the forward-looking 
statements contained in this report will in fact occur. The Company bases its forward-looking statements on information 
currently available to it, and assumes no obligation to update them. 
 
THE FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS MD&A PRESENTS THE EXPECTATIONS OF THE COMPANY AS OF 
THE DATE OF THIS MD&A AND, ACCORDINGLY, IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE AFTER SUCH DATE. READERS SHOULD NOT PLACE 
UNDUE IMPORTANCE ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND SHOULD NOT RELY UPON THIS INFORMATION AS OF ANY 
OTHER DATE. WHILE THE COMPANY MAY ELECT TO, THE COMPANY DOES NOT UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE THIS INFORMATION 
AT ANY PARTICULAR TIME EXCEPT AS REQUIRED BY APPLICABLE SECURITIES LEGISLATION.  
 
  

http://www.sedar.com/
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HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED November 30, 2017 

 

▪ Revenue Growth: Revenue for the quarter was $9,819 while revenue for the previously reported quarter was $9,045 

resulting in 9% growth quarter over quarter. 

 

▪ Sustained Profitability: Adjusted EBITDA (adjusted for share-based compensation) for the quarter was approximately 

$159 as compared to ($116) for the quarter ending November 30, 2016, an increase in more than $275.  

 
 

 
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 

 
 

 

(1)  
Throughout this document, “EBITDA” and “Adjusted EBITDA” are used as profitability measures. Please refer to the “Non-IFRS 

Measures” section of this MD&A for further discussion on these measures. 

 
 
 

ABOUT OUR BUSINESS 
 
BLVD Centers business summary 
 
BLVD Centers is a public Canadian company

 
focused on the United States inpatient (detox and residential) and outpatient rehabilitation 

market and serves clients with addictive and co-occurring disorders. In March 2017, BLVD Centers shifted to a strategy where it 
decentralized major operations, including sales and marketing. All facility management and staffing decisions, including sales and 
marketing, will now reside with the local leadership at each individual center through a management services agreement ("MSA"). This 
new model has allowed BLVD Centers to reduce costs while simultaneously increasing revenue. 
 
The Board and management has adopted this new model to take advantage of BLVD Centers competitive advantages, while reducing costs 
and shrinking implementation periods. BLVD Centers shifted the clinical and operational staff management and hiring at each individual 
center, as well as the majority of the sales and marketing responsibilities of the clinics, to the local general managers and outreach leaders 
through an MSA, enabling these leaders to make cost decisions independently. The model allows local operators to keep some of the 
annual cash flow generated from their operations and aligns incentives between shareholders and operators.  
 
These leaders have been established at the current seven sites, in some cases for as long as two years. Because of the previous 
"centralized" management model, they were restricted from hiring local staff and managing the center as a "stand alone" or decentralized 
model. Further, they did not have an incentive to use local marketing techniques, which are often a fraction of the cost of national 
advertising. The previous management team attempted to centralize all aspects of the centers, from staffing and back office to sales and 
marketing, resulting in a tremendous amount of time, energy and money with no real revenue growth.  
 
Under the new model, BLVD Centers will continue to own or lease the current facilities (depending on the market) and provide branding 
support, facilities (real estate, furniture, fixtures and equipment) management and upkeep, call center services, clinical protocols, and 
documentation support to all existing centers. BLVD Centers will continue to maintain control of these facilities in the event a change in 
local management is someday needed. For new facilities, BLVD Centers will have the flexibility to decide whether to own or lease, and 
management will focus upon speed to profitability and return on equity in deciding upon the proper structure. BLVD Centers has shifted 
corporate ownership costs to the local operational and outreach leaders, incentivizing them like partners instead of employees. 
 
 
Key performance drivers 
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BLVD Centers revenues are based on the enrollment of clients that suffer from addiction requiring them to get inpatient and outpatient 
care for recovery. Overall capacity and occupancy rates are, therefore, key drivers of profitability. Operational effectiveness of these 
facilities, one reason for pivoting to the new business model, is a key to achieving industry-leading client success rates and maintaining 
insurance reimbursement.  
 
The growing demand for inpatient and outpatient services nationally provides significant opportunity to garner market share. The 
Company’s operational efficiency and marketing strategy are key going forward to driving more partner business to BLVD Centers, thus 
increasing revenues and gross profits. 
 
Future outlook 
  
Under the new model, BLVD Centers will be able to focus our time and resources on finding and developing new centers, as well as 
additional services, with local operators around the country to grow revenues rather than spending our time managing and controlling 
middle management layers of staff. We have a strong offering in the areas that are difficult for a single, local operator to succeed. By 
licensing our brand, providing access to our call center, facilities expertise and clinical protocols, we can deliver a turnkey center to a local 
operator quickly and for much less than we used to under the old model, all while collecting a healthy percentage of revenues from these 
centers with very little risk, improving our return on equity significantly. 
 
 

 
 

OPERATING RESULTS 
 
Accounting policies and estimates 
 
The consolidated financial statements for the period ended November 30, 2017 are prepared under International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the governing body of the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB’). The preparation of financial 
statements, in conformity with IFRS, requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect; 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosers of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses for the period of consolidated financial statements. The Company’s critical accounting estimates are described under Accounting 
and Disclosure Matters below. 
 
Non-IFRS measures 
 
Throughout this MD&A, references are made to a number of measures which are believed to be meaningful in the assessment of the 
Company’s performance. All of these metrics are non-standard measures under IFRS, and may not be identical to similarly titled measures 
reported by other companies. Also, in the future, we may disclose different non-IFRS financial measures in order to help our investors 
more meaningfully evaluate and compare our future results of operations to our previously reported results of operations. Readers are 
cautioned that the disclosure of these items is meant to add to, and not replace, the discussion of financial results as determined in 
accordance with IFRS. The primary purpose of these non-IFRS measures is to provide supplemental information that may prove useful to 
investors who wish to consider the impact of certain non-cash or uncontrollable items on the Company’s operating performance and who 
wish to separate revenues and related costs associated with start-up activities that may not be ongoing. 
 
EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA 
 
In calculating EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA certain items are excluded from net loss including interest, taxes, amortization and non-cash 
share-based payments. Set forth below are descriptions of the financial items that have been excluded from net loss to calculate EBITDA 
and adjusted EBITDA and the material limitations associated with using this non-IFRS financial measure as compared to net loss. 

 
- Depreciation and amortization expense may be useful for investors to consider as they generally represent the wear and tear 

on our property, as well as the equipment used in our operations. However, we do not believe these charges necessarily 
reflect the current and ongoing cash charges related to our operating costs. 

 
- The amount of interest expense we incur or interest income we generate may be useful for investors to consider and may 

result in current cash inflows or outflows. However, we do not consider the amount of interest expense or interest income to 
be a representative component of the day-to-day operating performance of our business. 

 
- Income tax expense may be useful for investors to consider as it generally represents the taxes.  The taxes may be payable for 

the period, which will change deferred income taxes and may reduce the amount of funds otherwise available for use. 
However, we do not consider the amount of income tax expense to be a representative component of the day-to-day 
operating performance of our business. 
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- Stock based compensation may be useful for investors to consider because it is an estimate of the non-cash component of 
compensation received by the Company’s directors, officers, employees, vendors and consultants for services rendered. 
However, stock-based compensation is being excluded from the Company’s operating expenses because the decisions which 
gave rise to these expenses were not made to increase revenue in a particular period, but were made for the Company’s 
long- term benefit over multiple periods. While strategic decisions, such as those to issue share-based payments are made to 
further the Company’s long-term strategic objectives and do impact the Company’s earnings under IFRS, these items affect 
multiple periods and management is not able to change or affect these items within any particular period. 

 
-  Facility start-up costs may be useful for investors to consider because they represent costs directly related to facilities that 

have yet to be opened and accordingly not yet generating revenues. Facility start-up costs include: pre-opening rent expense, 
non-capitalized building expense, permit fees, pre-opening training costs, and compensation costs of employees hired to 
work at the new facilities. We view facility start-up costs as investments that enable expansion and growth, but do not 
necessarily consider them a representative component of the day-to-day operating performance of our business. 

 
 
Management uses both IFRS and non-IFRS measures when planning, monitoring, and evaluating the Company’s performance. 
 
The following table shows non-IFRS measures reconciled to net income/loss for the indicated periods: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consolidated operating results 
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Revenue 
 
For the three months ended November 30, 2017 and November 30, 2016, revenue totaled $9,819 and $7,814, respectively, representing a 
26% annual growth rate. Management attributes the growth in revenue to the improved business model enacted earlier this fiscal year.  
 
Cost of revenue and gross profit 
 
For the three months ended November 30, 2017 and November 30, 2016, cost of revenue was $6,057 and $2,932, respectively, and gross 
profit was 38% and 62%, respectively. 
  
Facilities 
 
Facilities expense includes all expenses related to renting and maintaining our physical corporate and operating locations, but excludes 
facility costs related to new operating facilities which have yet to be opened. 
 
For the three months ended November 30, 2017 and November 30, 2016, facilities expense totaled $240 and $652, respectively. 
Management believes the decrease in facilities expense is a result of its new business model.  
 
Sales and marketing 
 
Sales and marketing costs are comprised primarily of salaries, commissions and related expenses for sales personal and other expenses 
incurred to acquire new clients and get them enrolled in our service, salaries and related expenses for marketing personal, and costs 
related to advertising. 
 
For the three months ended November 30, 2017 and November 30, 2016, sales and marketing expenses totaled $2 and $1,161, 
respectively. Management believes the decrease in sales marketing expense is a result of its new business model. 
 
General and Administrative 
 
General and administrative expenses are comprised primarily of salaries and related expenses for finance, IT, accounting, management, 
and human resource personnel.  In addition, there are new facility start-up costs, professional and legal services and other general 
overhead. 
 
For the three months ended November 30, 2017 and November 30, 2016, general and administrative expenses were $588 and $1,208 
respectively. Management believes the decrease in this cost is a result of the business model enacted earlier this fiscal year. 
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Stock based compensation 
 
Stock based compensation represents the amortization of the fair value of options and warrants issued to the Company’s directors, 
officers, employees, vendors and consultants for services rendered. For the three months ended November 30, 2017 and November 30, 
2016, stock based compensation costs were $206 and $678, respectively.  
 
Net Income/Loss 
 
For the three months ended November 30, 2017 and November 30, 2016, the Company incurred a net income/(loss) of $598 and $1,638, 
respectively.    
 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
 

 
 
Summary of Quarterly Results 

The Company’s revenues, net income/loss and net income/loss per share for each of the eight most recently completed quarters is as 
follows: 
 

 
 
 
Liquidity 
 
As of November 30, 2017, the Company had cash and restricted cash on hand of $3,843. Management considers liquid assets to consist of 
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, inventory, prepaid expenses and other current assets. According to this 
definition, the company's liquid assets equal the current assets totaling $25,538. While working capital is traditionally used as a measure of 
a company's liquidity, management believes that a more accurate view of the Company's liquidity is liquid assets less current liabilities. 
The Company's liquid assets less current liabilities equal $16,501.  
 
 
 
Contractual obligations 
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Operating Leases 
 
The Company leases certain facilities under the terms of non-cancelable operating leases. For the three months ended November 30, 2017 
amounts included in facilities expense totaled $164.  
 
Capital leases 
 
The company has capital lease obligations related to vehicles and laboratory equipment with terms of two to three years and fixed interest 
rates between 2.9% and 7.0%. 
 
Capital Management 
 
The Company considers its capital to be shareholders’ equity, which is comprised of share capital, contributed surplus, deficit and 
accumulated other comprehensive income and deficit, which totaled $16,051 at November 30, 2017, as well as long-term debt, which 
totaled $1,908 at November 30, 2017. 
 
The Company plans to raise capital and/or debt, as necessary, to meet its needs and take advantage of perceived opportunities and, 
therefore, does not have a numeric target for its capital structure. Funds are primarily secured through equity capital raised by way of 
private placements and convertible notes. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to continue raising capital in this 
manner. 
 
Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this approach, given the relative size of the 
Company, is reasonable. 
 
The Company invests all capital that is surplus to its immediate operational needs in short-term, liquid and highly rated financial 
instruments, such as cash and short-term guarantee deposits, held with major Canadian and US financial institutions. 
 
 
Financing 
 
On April 22, 2015 (the “Closing”), the Company closed on a bought deal private placement of 43,125,000 units. Each Unit consists of one 
common share in the capital of BLVD Centers issued at $0.40 per common share, and one warrant of BLVD Centers. Each Warrant entitles 
the holder thereof to acquire one common share for an exercise price of $0.50 per common share for a period of 36 months following the 
closing of the offering. The expiry date of the Warrants may be accelerated by BLVD Centers at any time following the six-month 
anniversary of the Closing and prior to the expiry date of the Warrants if the volume-weighted average trading price of the Company’s 
common shares is greater than $0.60 for any 20 consecutive trading days. The Company received gross proceeds of $17,250 and incurred 
cash share issuance costs of $1,467 for total net proceeds of $15,783. In addition, the Company issued 2,156,250 broker warrants to the 
underwriters. 
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Share Capital 
 

 
 
As of the date of this report 232,617,234 shares are outstanding.  
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements 
 
The Company has no material undisclosed off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future 
effect on its results of operations or financial condition. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

ACCOUNTING AND DISCLOSURE MATTERS 
 
Financial Reporting Controls 
 
The Company is not required to certify the design and evaluation of its disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over 
financial reporting and has not completed such an evaluation.  
 
There were no substantive changes in the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting 
during the period ended November 30, 2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s 
disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting. 
 
Critical Accounting Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities in the consolidated 
financial statements. We constantly evaluate these estimates and assumptions. 
 
We base our estimates and assumptions on past experience and other factors that are deemed reasonable under the circumstances. This 
involves varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty, thus the amounts currently reported in the consolidated financial statements could 
prove to be inaccurate in the future. 
 
We consider the estimates and assumptions described in this section to be an important part in understanding the consolidated financial 
statements. These estimates and assumptions are subject to change, as they rely heavily on management’s judgment and are based on 
factors that are inherently uncertain. 

Recognition of revenues 

The majority of the Company’s revenues are reimbursable by commercial payors, at out-of-network rates, with the remaining revenues 
payable directly by our clients. The Company bills commercial payors, once insurance has been verified and services have been performed, 
based on usual and customary rates for each service. Revenues from commercial payors are recognized based on expected realizable rates 
using historical collections rates by payor for each service provided. If no collections data is available for a payor (for example where the 
payor is new to the Company), the Company uses the Company-wide average reimbursement rate for that particular service. If commercial 
payors change their reimbursement rates for services already provided but not yet reimbursed, or a new payor rate is different from the 
estimated rate used, revenue is adjusted to account for the new rates. Because of continuing changes in the health care industry and third 
party reimbursement, it is possible that our estimates could change, which could have a material impact on the Company’s recorded 
revenues and consequently, reported earnings. 

Valuation of accounts receivable 

The Company records bad debt expense based on the Company’s historical experience of denials from commercial insurers. While the 
Company has controls in place to minimize the occurrence of denials, the underlying client insurance policy and deductible status is not 
always available at the time services are provided. Denials can be as a result of termed policies, client deductibles not met, client max 
benefits met, medical necessity not met, etc. In addition, management reviews accounts receivable in detail at each reporting period and 
provides for specific accounts that are deemed to not be collectible. Because of continuing changes in the health care industry and third 
party reimbursement, it is possible that our estimates could change, which could have a material impact on our operations and cash flows. 
If circumstances related to certain customers change or actual results differ from expectations, the Company’s estimate of the 
recoverability of receivables could fluctuate from that provided for in the consolidated financial statements. A change in estimate could 
impact bad debt expense and accounts receivable. 
 
Stock based Compensation 
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The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of the Company’s issued stock options and warrants 
as prescribed by IFRS 2. The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires management to make various estimates about certain inputs into 
the model, including the expected option life, expected volatility, risk-free interest rate and expected dividend yield. The company uses the 
following methodologies to estimate each of these inputs: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Black-Scholes Input Assumption Methodology 

Expected option/warrant life 5 years/2 years The life of the option or warrant is used 

Expected volatility 96.4% 
The trading volatility of similar companies as well as its own 
trading volatility for the previous 52 week period 

Risk-free interest rate 0.58-0.98% 
The Canadian Treasury rate on government bonds with 
similar duration 

Dividend yield Nil 
The Company’s expected dividend yield over the life of the 
underlying instrument 

 
 
A change in any of these estimates at the time the underlying options or warrants were issued would have impacted the Company’s equity 
and ongoing stock-based compensation expense. 
 
Changes in accounting policies including initial adoption 
 
There were no accounting policy changes or adoption of new accounting policies in the three months ended November 30, 2017. 
 
Related Party Transactions 
 
There were no related party transactions to report in the three months ended November 30, 2017. 
 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Financial instrument risk exposure  
 
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk. These risks arise from the normal course of operations and all transactions are undertaken to support the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. The Company’s financial risk management goals are to ensure that the outcome of activities 
involving elements of risk are consistent with the Company’s objectives and risk tolerance, while maintaining an appropriate risk/reward 
balance and protecting the Company’s consolidated balance sheet from events that have the potential to materially impair its financial 
strength. Balancing risk and reward is achieved through identifying risk appropriately, aligning risk with overall business strategy, 
diversifying risk, pricing appropriately for risk, mitigation through preventative controls, and transferring risk to third parties. 
 
Market risk 
 
Foreign Currency Risk 
 

A significant portion of the Company’s revenues are transacted in U.S. dollars and as a result, fluctuations in the rate of exchange between 
the U.S. dollar and Canadian dollar can have a significant impact on the Company’s cash flows and reported results. As a majority of the 
Company’s operating expenses are also in United States dollars, operational foreign currency risk is limited. 
 
The functional currency for all of the Company’s foreign operations is the US dollar which is the local currency.  The Company translates 
the assets and liabilities of its US dollar functional currency subsidiaries into Canadian dollars using exchange rates in effect at the end of 
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each period. Revenue and expenses for these subsidiaries are translated using average exchange rates that approximate those in effect 
during the period. The Company is affected by the fluctuations in the value of the US dollar. Significant fluctuations of exchange rates 
could adversely affect the Company’s financial condition and results of operations. At the present, the Company maintains cash balances 
in both US and Canadian dollars, but does not purchase any securities or financial instruments to speculate on or hedge against a rise or 
fall in the value of the US Dollar. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the potential that clients or a counterparty to a financial instrument fail to meet their obligation to the Company. Financial 
instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of trade accounts receivable as the 
Company’s revenues are concentrated in California. The Company had many customers during the period and believes that there is 
minimal risk associated with collection of these amounts. The Company manages its credit risk by evaluating the eligibility of its clients for 
insurance or other coverage prior to admittance. 
 
The Company’s customers are generally large, financially stable, commercial insurers and accordingly credit risk associated with each of 
them is considered low. Credit risk is generally limited to the risk that the estimated amount of revenue that can be collected is not 
accurate. 
 
Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial liability obligations as they become due. The 
Company manages its liquidity risk through cash management.  In managing liquidity risk, the Company maintains access to equity 
markets, the availability of which is dependent on market conditions. The Company monitors its requirements through the use of rolling 
future net cash flow projections and budgets and believes it has sufficient funding through its current cash position to continue operating 
for the foreseeable future.  

 
RISK FACTORS 

 
Due to the nature of BLVD Centers’ business, the legal and economic climate in which BLVD Centers operates and the present stage of 
development of its business, BLVD Centers may be subject to significant risks. BLVD Centers’ future development and actual operating 
results may be very different from those expected as at the date of this MD&A. There can be no certainty that BLVD Centers will be able 
to implement successfully the strategy set out herein. No representation is or can be made as to the future performance of BLVD Centers 
and there can be no assurance that BLVD Centers will achieve its objectives. In addition to the other information in this MD&A, an 
investor should carefully consider each of, and the cumulative effect of, the following factors. 
 
An investment in BLVD Centers’ shares should be considered highly speculative due to the nature of BLVD Centers’ business and the. In 
evaluating BLVD Centers and its business, shareholders should carefully consider the following risk factors. These risk factors are not a 
definitive list of all risk factors associated with BLVD Centers or in connection with their operations. It is believed that these are the factors 
that could cause actual results to be different from expected and historical results. You should not rely upon forward-looking statements 
as a prediction of future results. Additional risks and uncertainties that BLVD Centers is unaware of, or that BLVD Centers currently deems 
to be immaterial, may also become important factors that affect BLVD Centers. If any of the risks actually occur, the business, financial 
condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected, with the result that the trading price of BLVD Centers or BLVD 
Centers’ shares, as applicable, could decline and the shareholder could lose all or part of his or her investment. 
 

 
Capital Investment 
 
The timing and amount of capital expenditures by BLVD Centers will be dependent upon BLVD Centers’ ability to utilize credit facilities, 
raise new debt, generate cash from operations, meet working capital requirements and sell additional shares in order to accommodate 
these items. There can be no assurance that sufficient capital will be available on acceptable terms to BLVD Centers for necessary or 
desirable capital expenditures or that the amount required will be the same as currently estimated. Lack of these funds could limit the 
future growth of BLVD Centers and its subsidiaries and their respective cash flows. 
 
Competition 
 
BLVD Centers will participate in a highly competitive market, which may become more competitive as new players enter. Certain 
competitors will be subsidiaries or divisions of larger, much better capitalized companies. Certain competitors will have vertically 
integrated services sectors of the market. BLVD Centers will have less capital and may encounter greater operational challenges in serving 
the market. 
 
Dependence upon Management 
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Although BLVD Centers is expected to have experienced senior management and personnel, BLVD Centers will be substantially dependent 
upon the services of a few key personnel for the successful operation of its business. The loss of the services of any of these personnel 
could have a material adverse effect on the business of BLVD Centers. BLVD Centers may not be able to attract and retain personnel on 
acceptable terms given the intense competition for such personnel among competitors. If it loses any of these persons, or is unable to 
attract and retain qualified personnel, its business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected. 
 
Inability to Implement the Business Strategy 
 
The growth and expansion of BLVD Centers’ business is heavily dependent upon the successful implementation of BLVD Centers’ business 
strategy. There can be no assurance that BLVD Centers will be successful in the implementation of its business strategy. 
 
Issuance of Debt 
 
From time to time, BLVD Centers may enter into transactions to acquire assets or the shares of other corporations. These transactions may 
be financed partially or wholly with debt, which may increase BLVD Centers’ debt levels above industry standards. The level of BLVD 
Centers’ indebtedness from time to time could impair BLVD Centers’ ability to obtain additional financing in the future on a timely basis to 
take advantage of business opportunities that may arise. 
 
Conflicts of Interest 
 
Certain of the directors of BLVD Centers are also directors and officers of other companies, some of which may be in the healthcare sector, 
and conflicts of interest may arise between their duties as directors of BLVD Centers and as officers and directors of such other companies. 
Such conflicts must be disclosed in accordance with, and are subject to such other procedures and remedies as apply under the applicable 
corporate statute. 
 
Dilution and Future Issuances of BLVD Centers Shares 
 
BLVD Centers may issue additional shares in the future, which may dilute a shareholder’s holdings in BLVD Centers.  
 
Future Sales of BLVD Centers Shares by Directors and Officers 
 
Subject to compliance with applicable securities laws, directors and officers and their affiliates may sell some or all of their securities in 
BLVD Centers in the future. No prediction can be made as to the effect, if any, such future sales will have on the market price of BLVD 
Centers’ securities prevailing from time to time. However, the future sale of a substantial number of securities by BLVD Centers’ directors 
and officers and their controlled entities, or the perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect prevailing market prices for 
BLVD Centers’ securities. 
 
Reimbursement Rates May Decline 
 
Reimbursement for services to be provided by BLVD Centers come primarily from private health insurance companies. The reimbursement 
rates offered are out-of-network and therefore outside the control of BLVD Centers. Reimbursement rates in the United States, and much 
of the United States healthcare market in general, have been subject to continual reductions as health insurers and governmental entities 
attempt to control healthcare costs. The extent and timing of any reduction in reimbursement rates cannot be predicted by BLVD Centers. 
 
Reductions in reimbursement rates can have a material impact on the profitability of BLVD Centers’ operations. A reduction in 
reimbursement may be unrelated to any concurrent decline in the cost of operations, thereby resulting in reduced profitability. BLVD 
Centers’ costs of operations could increase, but the cost increases may not be passed on to customers because reimbursement rates are 
set without regard to the cost of service. 
 
Requirement for Permits and Licenses in a Highly Regulated Business 
 
Some operations of BLVD Centers require certain licenses and permits from the authorities in the United States. Licenses and permits may 
include those issued by both governmental and non-governmental entities.  Private insurance companies may require that providers 
obtain accreditation from non-governmental entities in order to provide service to their patients, or may require providers to agree to sign 
up for in-network agreements, which may have the impact of lowering reimbursement rates.  Private insurers may change their practices 
with limited or no notice to BLVD Centers.  The ability of BLVD Centers to obtain, sustain or renew any such licenses and permits on 
acceptable terms is subject to changes in regulations and policies and to the discretion of the applicable authorities or other governmental 
agencies. There is no guarantee that BLVD Centers will be able to obtain or maintain such licenses and permits. 
 
BLVD Centers will be subject to regulation from both United States federal and state authorities. Regulatory action could disrupt BLVD 
Centers’ ability to provide services. Such regulatory action could come in the form of actions based upon BLVD Centers’ operation. 
Regulatory action could prevent or delay reimbursement for certain services. There could also be legislative action that could adversely 
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affect BLVD Centers’ business model, including a decision by the United States government, to become the exclusive provider of 
healthcare services at some time in the future Amendments to current laws and regulations could have a substantial adverse impact on 
BLVD Centers.  Private insurers also have complex rules relating to reimbursement, and the failure of BLVD Centers to follow those rules 
may impact the ability to collect on amounts billed, and may expose BLVD Centers to the risk of audits on amounts that have already been 
collected. 
 
Privacy Legislation 
 
The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) required the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services to adopt standards to protect the privacy and security of individually identifiable health-related information. The department 
released regulations containing privacy standards in December 2000 and published revisions to the final regulations in August 2002. The 
privacy regulations extensively regulate the use and disclosure of individually identifiable health related information. The regulations also 
provide patients with significant new rights related to the understanding and controlling how their health information is used or disclosed. 
The security regulations require healthcare providers to implement administrative, physical and technical practices to protect the security 
of identifiable health information that is maintained or transmitted electronically. 
 
In addition to HIPAA, there are numerous federal and state laws and regulations addressing patient and consumer privacy concerns, 
including unauthorized access or theft of personal information. State statutes and regulations vary from state to state. Lawsuits, including 
class actions and action by state attorneys general, directed at companies that have experienced a privacy or security breach can also 
occur. 
 
BLVD Centers believes that the cost of compliance with HIPAA and other federal and state privacy laws will not have a material adverse 
effect on its business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. However, there can be no assurance that a breach of privacy 
or security will not occur. If there is a breach, BLVD Centers may be subject to various penalties and damages and may be required to incur 
costs to mitigate the impact of the breach on affected individuals. 
 
Information Technology Systems 
 
BLVD Centers’ business depends, in part, on the continued and uninterrupted performance of its information technology systems. 
Sustained system failures or interruptions could disrupt BLVD Centers’ ability to operate effectively, which in turn could adversely affect its 
business, results of operations and financial condition. BLVD Centers’ computer systems may be vulnerable to damage from a variety of 
sources, including physical or electronic break-ins, computer viruses and similar disruptive problems. Despite precautions taken and the 
extensive mitigation strategies put in place by BLVD Centers, unanticipated problems affecting the information technology systems could 
cause interruptions for which BLVD Centers’ insurance policies may not provide adequate compensation. 
 
Insurance and Uninsured Risks 
 
BLVD Centers’ business will be subject to a number of risks and hazards generally, including general liability. Such occurrences could result 
in damage to facilities, personal injury or death, damage to the properties of BLVD Centers, or the properties of others, monetary losses 
and possible legal liability. 
 
Although BLVD Centers will maintain insurance to protect against certain risks in such amounts as it considers to be reasonable, its 
insurance will not cover all potential risks associated with its operations. BLVD Centers may also be unable to maintain insurance to cover 
these risks at economically feasible premiums. Insurance coverage may not continue to be available or may not be adequate to cover any 
resulting liability. BLVD Centers might also become subject to liability which may not be insured against or which BLVD Centers may elect 
not to insure against because of premium costs or other reasons. Losses from these events may cause BLVD Centers to incur significant 
costs that could have a material adverse effect upon its financial performance and results of operations. 
 
General Litigation Risk 
 
Disputes are common in the United States healthcare industry and as such, in the normal course of business, BLVD Centers might be 
involved in various legal actions and proceedings which arise from time to time, some of which may be substantial. There is no assurance 
that BLVD Centers’ insurance arrangements will be sufficient to cover any particular claim or claims that may arise in the future. 
Furthermore, BLVD Centers is subject to the risk of claims and legal actions for various commercial and contractual matters in respect of 
which insurance is not available. 
 
Exchange Rate Fluctuations 
 
Exchange rate fluctuations may affect the costs that BLVD Centers incurs in its operations. The appreciation of non-United States dollar 
currencies against the United States dollar can increase the cost of operations in United States dollar terms. 
 
Holding Corporation 
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BLVD Centers is considered a holding corporation and a substantial portion of its assets is the capital stock of its subsidiaries. As a result, 
the holders of BLVD Centers shares are subject to risks attributable to its subsidiaries. As a holding corporation, BLVD Centers conducts 
substantially all of its business through its subsidiaries, which generate substantially all of its revenue. Consequently, BLVD Centers’ cash 
flows and ability to complete current or desirable future enhancement opportunities are dependent on the earnings of its subsidiaries and 
the distribution of those earnings to BLVD Centers. The ability of the subsidiaries of BLVD Centers to pay dividends and other distributions 
depend on their operating results and is subject to applicable laws and regulations which require that solvency and capital standards be 
maintained by such companies and contractual restrictions contained in ten instruments governing their debt. In the event of bankruptcy, 
liquidation or reorganization of any of BLVD Centers’ subsidiaries, holders of indebtedness and trade creditors will generally be entitled to 
payment of their claims from the assets of those subsidiaries before any assets are made available for distribution to BLVD Centers. 

 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
 
BLVD Centers may face risks if there are deficiencies in its internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures. 
Internal controls over financial reporting are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of the financial statements for external reporting purposes. Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
adequate internal controls over financial reporting appropriate to the nature and size of BLVD Centers. The board of directors, in 
conjunction with its Audit Committee, is responsible for assessing the progress and sufficiency of internal controls over financial reporting 
and disclosure controls and procedures and will make adjustments as necessary. However, these initiatives may not be effective at 
remedying any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures. Any deficiencies, if 
uncorrected, could result in BLVD Centers’ financial statements being inaccurate and in future adjustments or restatements of its financial 
statements, which could adversely affect the price of BLVD Centers shares and BLVD Centers’ business, financial condition and results of 
operations. 
 
Key Credentialed Employees 
 
BLVD Centers will rely on a number of key employees and licensed providers with specialized training in the delivery of BLVD Centers’ 
services. BLVD Centers’ operations will be adversely affected if any of the key employees cease their employment with BLVD Centers or if 
BLVD Centers is unable to recruit and retain qualified staff. 
 
Ability to Implement New Business Model 
 
BLVD Centers may not be able to effectively implement its new business model. There is the possibility that BLVD Centers will not be able 
to roll out additional rehabilitation facilities fast enough to meet its objectives. 
 
Uninsured and Underinsured Clients and Collection Risks 
 

An increase in uninsured and underinsured clients or the deterioration in the collectability of the accounts of such clients could have a 
material adverse effect on BLVD Centers’ business, financial condition and results of operations. Collection of receivables from third-party 
payors and clients is critical to BLVD Centers’ operating performance. The primary collection risks are (i) the risk of overestimating BLVD 
Centers’ net revenues at the time of billing that may result in BLVD Centers receiving less than the recorded receivable, (ii) the risk of non-
payment as a result of commercial insurance companies denying claims, (iii) the risk that clients will fail to remit insurance payments to 
BLVD Centers when the commercial insurance company pays out-of-network claims directly to the client, (iv) resource and capacity 
constraints that may prevent BLVD Centers from handling the volume of billing and collection issues in a timely manner, (v) the risk that 
clients do not pay BLVD Centers for their self-pay balance (including co-pays, deductibles and any portion of the claim not covered by 
insurance, and (vi) the risk of non-payment from uninsured clients. Significant changes in business office operations, payor mix or 
economic conditions, including changes resulting from implementation of the Affordable Care Act, could affect BLVD Centers’ collection of 
accounts receivable, cash flows and results of operations.  Changes to the Affordable Care Act or other changes in law or regulation, 
including provisions requiring health insurers to allow parents to insure dependent children up to 26 years of age, could also increase the 
number of individuals who have private health insurance.   
 
Increased State and Federal Investigation of Healthcare Providers 
 
Both federal and state government agencies have heightened and coordinated their civil and criminal enforcement efforts as part of 
numerous ongoing investigations of healthcare companies and various segments of the healthcare industry. These investigations relate to 
a wide variety of topics, including relationships with physicians, billing practices and use of controlled substances. The PPACA included an 
additional $350 million of federal funding over 10 years to fight healthcare fraud, waste and abuse, including $40 million for federal fiscal 
year 2014. From time to time, the Office of Inspector General and the Department of Justice have established national enforcement 
initiatives that focus on specific billing practices or other suspected areas of abuse. In addition, increased government enforcement 
activities, even if not directed towards our treatment facilities, also increase the risk that BLVD Centers’ facilities, physicians and other 
clinicians furnishing services in BLVD Centers’ facilities, or BLVD Centers’ executives and directors, could become named as defendants in 
private litigation such as state or federal false claims act cases or consumer protection cases, or could become the subject of complaints at 
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the various state and federal agencies that have jurisdiction over BLVD Centers’ operations. Any governmental investigations involving any 
of BLVD Centers’ facilities, executives or directors, even if BLVD Centers ultimately prevails, could result in significant expense and could 
adversely affect BLVD Centers’ reputation. 
 

Uncertainties Regarding the PPACA 
 

The PPACA provides for increased access to coverage for healthcare and seeks to reduce healthcare-related expenses. Overall, the 
expansion of health insurance coverage under the PPACA, most of which went into effect on January 1, 2014, is expected to be beneficial 
to the substance abuse treatment industry. Beginning January 1, 2014, health insurers are prohibited from denying coverage to individuals 
because of preexisting conditions. Further, all new small group and individual market health plans are required to cover ten essential 
health benefit categories, which include substance abuse addiction and mental health disorder services. Likewise, as of January 1, 2014, 
small group and individual market plans are required to comply with the requirements of the MHPAEA of 2008. According to the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services estimates published in February 2013, these changes are expected to expand coverage for 
substance abuse addiction treatment and mental health disorders treatment for another 62.5 million Americans. The expansion of 
commercial insurance for substance abuse treatment services under the PPACA may result in a higher demand for services from all 
providers. This may bring new competitors to the market, some of which may be better capitalized and have greater market penetration 
than BLVD Centers. Further, BLVD Centers expects increased demand for substance abuse treatment services to also increase the demand 
for case managers, therapists, medical technicians and others with clinical expertise in substance abuse treatment, which may make it 
both more difficult to adequately staff BLVD Centers’ substance abuse treatment facilities and could significantly increase its costs in 
delivering treatment, which may adversely affect both its operations and profitability. One of the many impacts of the PPACA has been a 
dramatic increase in payment reform efforts by federal and state government payors as well as commercial payors. These efforts take 
many forms including the growth of accountable care organizations, pay-for-performance bonus arrangements, partial capitation 
arrangements and the bundling of services into a single payment. The end result of these efforts is that more risk of the overall cost of care 
is being transferred to providers. As institutional providers and their affiliated physicians assume more risk for the cost of care, BLVD 
Centers expects more services to be furnished within provider networks formed to accept these types of payment reform.  
 
BLVD Centers’ ability to compete and retain traditional sources of clients may be adversely affected by BLVD Centers’ exclusion from such 
networks or its inability to be included in such networks. BLVD Centers cannot predict the impact the implementation of the PPACA and 
related rulemaking and regulations may have on BLVD Centers’ business, results of operations, cash flow, capital resources and liquidity or 
whether BLVD Centers will be able to adapt successfully to the changes required by the PPACA. 
 
Changes to Federal, State and Local Regulations 
 
Because BLVD Centers’ treatment programs and operations are regulated at federal, state and local levels, BLVD Centers could be affected 
by different regulatory changes in different regional markets. Increases in the costs of regulatory compliance and the risks of 
noncompliance may increase BLVD Centers’ operating costs, and BLVD Centers may not be able to recover these increased costs, which 
may adversely affect BLVD Centers’ results of operations and profitability. Also, because many of the current laws and regulations are 
relatively new, BLVD Centers does not always have the benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation of these laws and 
regulations. In the future, different interpretations or enforcement of these laws and regulations could subject BLVD Centers’ current or 
past practices to allegations of impropriety or illegality or could require BLVD Centers to make changes to its treatment facilities, 
equipment, personnel, services or capital expenditure programs. A determination that BLVD Centers has violated these laws, or the public 
announcement that BLVD Centers is being investigated for possible violations of these laws, could adversely affect BLVD Centers’ business, 
operating results and overall reputation in the marketplace. In addition, federal, state and local regulations may be enacted that impose 
additional requirements on BLVD Centers’ facilities, such as the 2013 changes to the HIPAA privacy and security regulations. Adoption of 
legislation or the creation of new regulations affecting BLVD Centers’ facilities could increase its operating costs, restrain its growth, limit it 
from taking advantage of opportunities presented and could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results 
of operations. Adverse changes in existing comprehensive zoning plans or zoning regulations that impose additional restrictions on the use 
or requirements with respect to its facilities may affect BLVD Centers’ ability to operate its existing facilities or acquire new facilities, which 
may adversely affect its results of operations and profitability. 

 
Estimates of reimbursement amounts for services performed 
 
BLVD Centers recognizes revenues from commercial payers at the time services are provided based on estimates of the amount that 
payors will pay the Company for the services performed. Management estimates the net realizable value of revenues by adjusting gross 
client charges using expected realization rates and applying this discount to gross client charges. Expected realization is determined by 
management after taking into account historical collections received from commercial payors in the prior nine-month period by facility, by 
type of service and by payer.  Estimates of net realizable value are subject to significant judgment and approximation by management. It is 
possible that actual results could differ from the historical estimates management has used to help determine the net realizable value of 
revenues. If actual collections either exceed or are less than the net realizable value estimates, the Company will record a revenue 
adjustment, either positive or negative, for the difference between our estimate of the receivable and the amount actually collected in the 
reporting period in which the collection occurred. A significant negative revenue adjustment could have a material adverse effect on our 
revenues, profitability and cash flows in the reporting period in which such adjustment is recorded. In addition, if we record a significant 
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revenue adjustment, either positive or negative, in any given reporting period, it may lead to significant shifts in our results from 
operations from quarter to quarter, which may limit our ability to make accurate long-term predictions about our future performance.  

 


